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Notice

NOTICE is hereby given that the For ty-first  Annual General Meeting of Warren Tea Limited will be held at the
G S Ruia Memorial Complex at Deohall Tea Estate, P O Hoogrijan, Dist.- Tinsukia, Assam 786 601 on Monday,
10th September,  2018 at 10.30 am for the following purposes:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To con sider and adopt the Financial Statements an d Consolid ated Financ ial Statements for th e year
ended 31st March, 2018 an d the Repor ts of  the Directors and the Auditors thereon.

2. To appoin t a Director in place of Mr Vinay K Goenka (DIN 00043124) who reti res by rotation and being
eligible, o ffer himself for reappointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the f ollowing Resolutions as Special  Resolutions:

3. “RESOLVED THAT  approval  be and is hereby accorded pursu ant to Section 149 of the Compan ies Act,
2013 and Regulation 17(1A) of  SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Reg ulations,
2015 for reappointment  o f Mr Sriprakash Bhoopal (DIN 00042977) as an Independent Directo r of the
Company whose term of  office expires on 31st March, 2019 for a fur ther period of  five years with effect
from 1st April, 2019.”

4. “RESOLVED THAT  approval  be and is hereby accorded pursu ant to Section 149 of the Compan ies Act,
2013 for  reappointment of Mr Nilotpal Dutta (DIN 00045667) as an Independent Director of the Company
whose term of  office expires on 31st March,  2019 for a fur ther period of  five years with effect from 1st
April, 2019.”

5. “RESOLVED THAT  approval  be and is hereby accorded pursu ant to Section 149 of the Compan ies Act,
2013 and  Regulation 17(1A) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Reg ulation,
2015  for   reappointment  of Mrs Anup Kaur  Bindra (DIN 03391125)   as an Independent Director of the
Company w hose term of  off ice expires on 28th May, 2019  for a fur ther period of  five years wi th effect
from 29th May, 2019.”

6. “RESOLVED THAT  approval  be and is hereby accorded pursu ant to Section 149 of the Compan ies Act,
2013 for  reappointment  of  Mr Lalit Kumar Halwasiya (DIN 00211756)  as an Independent Director of
the Company whose term of  office expires on 28th May, 2019  for a fur ther period of  five years with
effect from 29th May, 2019.”

7. “RESOLVED THAT  approval  be and is hereby accorded pursu ant to Section 149 of the Compan ies Act,
2013 for   reappointment  of  Mrs Sonia Barman (DIN 06910929)  as an Independent Directo r of the
Company w hose term of  off ice expires on 21st September, 2019  for a fur ther period of  five years with
effect from 22nd September , 2019.”

To  con sider an d i f th ough t f it, to pass with or  without modifications the fol lowing Reso lutions as
Ord inary Resolu tions:

8. “RESOLVED THAT  app roval be an d is hereby acco rded  for  paymen t of  remuneration of  ̀  1, 00,000
together w ith reimbursemen t of applicable taxes and out of  pocket expenses, if any, to M/s Shome &
Banerjee, Cost Accountants (FRN 000001) for audit of the cost records of the Company for the financial
year 2018-19.”
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Notice (Continued)

9. “ RESOLVED THAT  pursuan t to Regulation  31A of  Securities & Exchange Board  of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosu re Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and other  applicable provisions and
subjec t to requisite approvals, the en tities belonging to  a former promoter grou p of the C ompany
headed by Mr Anil Kumar Ruia be reclassified as public .”

Suvira House By Order of  the Board
4B, Hunger f ord Street Siddhar tha Roy
Kolkata 700017  President-Legal
26th May, 2018 & Company Secretary

Notes :

1. The Members may exercise their rights to vo te on the Resolu tions contained in the Notice by electronic
means fo r which necessary facility has been provided and  the instruction s therefor are attached.

2. In terms of Section 105(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 intimation is hereby given that a member  entitled
to attend  and vote at the meeting is entitl ed to appoint a p roxy to attend an d vote instead of  himself/
herself an d the proxy need no t be a member of th e Company.

A Proxy, in order to be ef fective, must be received at the Company’s Registered Office at Deohall Tea
Estate, PO Hoogri jan, Dist. Tinsu kia, Assam 786 601 not less than for ty eight h ours before the Meeting.

3. Relevant details in respect of Item No.  2 of the Notice pursuant to Sec retarial Standard on General
Meetings (SS-2) and  Regulation 36 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing  Ob ligations
& Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 are given hereinafter and detai ls in respect of Item Nos.
3 to 9 of  the Notice are included in the Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies
Act, 2013 given hereinafter.

4. The Register of Members and Share Transf er Books will r emain closed from 4th September,  2018 to
10th September, 2018  (both days inclusive) fo r the purpose of the  Annual General  Meeting.

5. In view o f  the amendment to Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 with effect from 7th May, 2018,
annual ratification of  appointment of Statu tory  Auditors  is no longer required and hence no resolution
is being  proposed for the same.

6. Pursuant to Section 136 of the Compan ies Act, 2013, printed abridged f inancial statements are being
sent to the Shareholders.  Shareholders requiring a copy o f the full Annual Repor t may wri te to the
Company’s Registrar and  Share Transfer Agent.

7. The Company is registered  with National Securities Deposi tory Ltd. and Central Depository Services
(India) Ltd. for dematerial ization of its Equity Shares which has been allotted  the ISIN INE712A01012. CB
Management Services (P) Limited having their office at P-22 Bondel Road,  Kolkata 700 019 are the
Registrar  and Share Transfer Agent of the Company.

8. Members are requested to in timate their e-mail ID in the attac hed form.
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9. Members ho lding shares in physical form are requested to:

a. no tif y any ch ang e in their add resses and commun ic ate on  al l matters per tain in g to their
shareholdings with the C ompany’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent at  Kolkata, quoting their
respective Ledger Folio Numbers;

b. note that as per provisions of the Compan ies Act, 2013 fac ility for making  nominations is available
for shareholders in respect of Equity Shares held by them.

c. The Securi ties and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of  Permanent
Accou nt Number  (PAN) by every par ticipant in secur ities market. Members holding  shares in
elec tronic  form are, therefo re, requested to submit their PAN/Bank Account par ticulars to their
Depository Par ticipants with  whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding
shares in physical form can submit thei r PAN/Bank Account Par ticulars details to the Company/
RTA.

10. i. Pursuant to Section 205A of the Companies Act, 1956 all dividends declared and relative dividend
warrants posted upto and including the Dividend for the year 1993-94 paid on 8th November, 1994
and remaining unclaimed by members have been transferred to the General Revenue Account of
the Central Government.  Shareholders w ho have not encashed their dividend warrants in  respect
of the said period are requested to prefer their claims to the Registrar of Companies, Nor th Eastern
Region, at Morello Building, Shillong 793 001, Meghalaya. In case any  assistance is required,
shareholders are requested to write to the C ompany’s Registrar and Share Transf er Agent.

ii. Pursuant to Section 205A of the Companies Act, 1956 dividends declared from 1994-95 upto 2002-03
and remaining unclaimed by the members have been transferred to  the Investor Educ ation and
Protection Fund constituted  by the Central Government under Section 205C of the said Act.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT
(Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013)

Item No.: 3, 4, 5, 6 &  7

Mr Sriprakash Bhoopal (‘Mr Bhoopal’) (DIN  00042977), Mr  Nilo tpal Dutta  (‘Mr Du tta’) ( DIN 00045667),
Mrs An up Kaur Bin dra (‘Mrs Bindra’) (D IN 03391125), Mr Lalit Kumar Halw asiya (‘Mr  Halwasiya’) (DIN
00211756) and  Mrs Sonia Barman (‘Mrs Barman’) (DIN 06910929)  are Non-executive Independent Directors
of the Company.

Mr Bhoopal and Mr Dutta both  joined the  Board of Directors of  the Company with effect from  17th  October,
2003 and at the  Thir ty-seventh Annual General Meeting held on 10th September,  2014, continuanc e of both
of them as Independent Directors of the Company was approved  for  five years upto 31st March , 2019. At the
same Annu al General Meetin g, both  Mrs Bind ra and Mr Halwasiya  were appointed as Independent Directors
of the Company for  a period of  five years  with effect from 29th May, 2014 whic h terms expire on 28th May,
2019. At the Thir ty-eighth  Annual General Meeting held on 26th September, 2015, Mrs Sonia Barman  was
appointed as an Independent Director for a period of five years  with effect from  22nd September, 2014 which
term expires on 21st September, 2019.

The Per fo rmance evaluation of all the Independent Directors w ere conducted by the entire Board (excluding
the Director being evaluated ) on the basis of criteria such as transparency, analytical capability, advising,
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providing  suggestion to th e Company’s manag ement, level of skill and exper tise etc. On the basis of said
evaluation , the Board approved all their reappointments.

The Company has received declarations from all the Independent Directors conf irming  that they meet the
criteria of Indepen dence as prescribed under Section 149(6) of the Act and as per SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

The Brief  resume ’ , nature of exper tise in specific functional  areas and names of companies in w hich they
hold directorsh ips, memberships/ch airmanships of Board Committees, shareh olding an d relation ships
between Directors inter -se, etc. are provided in the Annexure to this Notice.

In terms of Section 149 of the Act, an Independent Director shall hold office for a term of five consecutive years
on the Board of the Company; and shall be eligible   for reappointment on passing of a Special Resolution by the
Company and  disclosure of such appointment  in the Board’s Repor t. Fur ther, Regulation 17(1A) of the SEBI
(Listing Oblig ations and Disclosure Requ irements) Regulations, 2015  requires approval of th e Shareholders
for  reappointments of Mr Bhoopal, who has attained the age o f 75 years and Mrs Bindra, who wou ld attain
the age of 75 years during the course of her proposed period of reappointment, as Non-executive Indipendent
Direc tors.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee upon consideration has recommended  reappointment  for
fur ther  terms of five years  for  all the Independen t Direc tors. The Board con siders that th e continued
association of all the Independent D irectors would be beneficial to the Company and it is desirable to continue
to avail of their services as Independent Directors for fur ther periods of five years as aforesaid and that each of
them fulfill the conditions  required  for such reappointment.

The Special Resolutions set out in Item  Nos  3, 4, 5, 6 and 7  of the Convening Notice are to be c onsidered
according ly and the Board recommends their ac ceptance.

Mr Bhoopal, Mr Dutta,  Mrs Bindra,  Mr Halwasiya and  Mrs Barman are interested in Item  Nos 3,  4, 5, 6 and
7, of the Convening Notice respectively.  No o ther Director or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and
their relatives is concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in  the Special Resolutions set out at Item
Nos 3, 4, 5, 6, and  7 o f the Convening Notice.

Item No. 8

Pursuant to Section 148(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 14(a) o f the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, the Board  at their meeting held on 26th May, 2018,  based on the recommendations of
the Audit Committee, approved the appointment of M/s Shome & Banerjee, Cost Accountants (FRN 000001)
as Cost Auditors of the Compan y for th e financ ial year 2018-19 at a fee of  `1,00,000 together with
reimbursement of applicable taxes and out of  pocket expenses, if any, for condu cting the audit of  the cost
records of the Company. In acco rdance with the  said provision the  remuneration payable to the Cost
Auditors has to be approved  by the shareholders.

The Resolution set out in Item No. 8 of the Convening Notice is to be considered accordingly and the Board
recommends its acceptance.

No Director and Key Managerial Personnel of  the Company or  their relatives is concerned or in terested,
financial ly or otherwise, in the Resolution set out at Item No.  8 of the Convenin g Notice.
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Item No.9

Warren Tea Limited (‘ the Transferor Company’) had undergone a demerger through a Scheme of Arrangement
(‘the Scheme’)  after obtaining  requisite app rovals from BSE Limi ted and th e Calcutta Stock Exc hange
Limited by their Observation Letters dated 17th June, 2013 and  18th June, 2013 respectively and th at of the
Shareholders  of the Company on 13th September,  2013. The said Scheme  was effected  by Order dated 16th
December,  2013 of the Hon’ble Gauhati High  Cour t filed with  the Registrar of  Companies, Nor th Eastern
Region.

Prior to the aforesaid demerger, there had been two groups of  promoters, hereinafter called  th e “Goenka
Group” headed by Mr Vinay K Goenka and  th e “Ruia  Group” headed by Mr Anil  Kumar Ruia, con stituents
of both of which  had h eld shares  in the Transferor Company.

In consideration of the demerger , the Shareh olders  of the Transferor Company were given 1 equity share  of
` 10 each in the Transferee Company as ful ly paid up for every 1 equity sh are of ` 10 each  h eld in the
Transfero r Company.  The Scheme  contemplated  facilitation  and eventual  separation and real igning of
promoters’ interest in the Transferor Company and in  the Transferee Company between the aforesaid  two
groups o f promoters and  to that end al lowed the said  two  groups of p romoters to transfer  the shares in the
Transferor Company and the Transf eree Company  between themselves pursu ant to th e Scheme in any
manner whatsoever.

Following the Hon’ble High Cour t’s Order , subsequent to the Scheme having come into effect, the two group
of  promo ters exchanged id entical number of  the shares in the Transferor Company and in the Transferee
Company.  Subsequent to such exchange, the Ruia Group have been completely dissociated  f rom the
Transfero r Company in every way including  that no representative of the Ruia Group is a Director of the
Transferor Company and  the two Companies an d their respective p romoter  groups have stood to tally
indepen dent of  each  other.

In the p remises afo resaid , as all  the transaction s and  tran sfers pursu ant to the Scheme having been
completed and  since  there has been complete dissociation between the two groups, it is legally  inappropriate
to c onsider the enti ties in the Ruia  Group as ‘Promoter’ an y longer  but to treat an d reclassify them as
members of the public.

Both in terms of Regulation 31A of SEBI (Listing Obligation s and Disclosure Requirements) Reg ulations,
2015 and appl icable p rocedure of Stoc k Exchan ge, such reclassi fication   require the approval o f the
Shareholders of the (Transferor ) Company.

The Resolution set out in Item No.9  of the Convening Notice is to be considered accordingly and the Board
recommends its acceptance.

No Director and Key Managerial Personnel of  the Company or  their relatives is concerned or in terested,
financial ly or otherwise, in the Resolution set out at Item No.  9 of the Convenin g Notice.

Suvira House By Order of  the Board
4B, Hunger f ord Street Siddhar tha Roy
Kolkata 700017  President-Legal
26th May, 2018 & Company Secretary
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ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE
Disclosure required under Regulation 36(3) of SEBI (Listing Oblig ations and

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standard-2

(As on March 31, 2018)

Name Mr Sriprakash Mr Nilotpal Mrs Anup Mr Lalit Mrs Sonia Mr Vi nay K
Bhoopal Dutta Kaur Kumar  Barman  Goenka

Bindra Halwasiya

Director
Identification 00042977 00045667 03391125 00211756 06910929 00043124
Number

Date of Bir th 01/09/1942 27/05/1967 15/03/1949 14/03/1955 10/05/1951 05/07/1958
Age (Years)      76    51 69 63 67 59

Date of fi rst
Appointm ent 17/10/2003 17/10/2003 29/05/2014 29/05/2014 22/09/2014 04/04/1983
on the Board

Exper ience in Planta tion, Planta tion, Specialised Petroleum Specialised Planta tion,
Specific Manufacturing, Manufacturing, in Shellac refini ng and in nur turing Manufacturing,
Functional Tas ting and Tas ting and Aleuritic Petroleum young Marketing
Area Marketing Marketing Powder and pr oducts chil dren and Expor t

of Tea of Tea Shellac related of Tea
pr oducts

Qualifications Commerce Commerce Science Commerce Graduate Graduated
and Graduate Graduate Graduate Graduate from with B Sc
Experience from from Nor th from from Meerut (Botany).

Ca lcutta Eastern Hill Punjab Ca lcutta University. Four decades
University University, University. University Several of bus iness
and has Shill ong. Ar ound and MBA decades of experience
done  tea Undergone 25 yea rs of from experience in areas
tast ing tea tast ing and busi ness University in fie ld of inc ludi ng
training with marketing experience. of South educa tion. Planta tion,
J.Thomas & training with Dakota , Manufacturing,
Co.P. Ltd., J.Thomas & U.S .A. Marketing
Kolk ata. Co.P. Ltd. and More than and Expor t
Many Contem porary 4 decades of Tea.
decades of Brokers Pvt. of w ide
experience of Ltd.,Kolkata. busi ness
the tea Experience in experience.
indus try. tea industry for

over 3 decades.

No. of Shares
held in the 1 10 Nil Nil Nil 3601229
Company
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(As on March 31, 2018)

Name Mr Sriprakash Mr Nilotpal Mrs Anup Mr Lalit Mrs Sonia Mr Vi nay K
Bhoopal Dutta Kaur Kumar  Barman  Goenka

Bindra Halwasiya

Num ber of
meetings  of the
Board attended 5 2 4 4 4 5
during the year

Directorship Amarawati Contec Dip Software Vermillion       —         —
in Com panies Tea  Co. Ltd. Avia tion Solut ions Petrochem

Marangi Pvt. Ltd. (P) Ltd. (P) Ltd.
Pvt. Ltd.

Jalan Pi pes Ltd. Owners  Cour t
    . Good Team Cooper ative

Investment & Housi ng

Trading Co.Ltd. Society Ltd.

Patodi a Con-
sultants Ltd.

H.P. Barua
Tea Es tates
Pvt. Ltd.

Mouchak
Agro Pvt.Ltd.

Chairman/
Member in the
Com mittees of
the Boards of Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
(other)
companies

Terms and
Conditions of In accor dance with applicable provis ions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Securi ties and
Appointm ent / Exchange  Board of India  (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)Regulations, 2015
Reappointm ent

Detai ls of
remuneration
sought to be         Not
paid No remuneration payable other than Sitting Fees.                        Applicable

Last drawn
remuneration

Relationship
with other
Directors and           None of them  are related to any other Di rector or Key Managerial Per sonnel.
Key Managerial
Personnel
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INSTRUCTIONS FOR VOTING THROUGH ELECTRONIC MEANS

1) In compl iance with the p rovisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereu nder the
Company is pleased to provide the Members facility of voting  by electronic means in respect of
business to be transacted at the Annual Gen eral Meeting (Meeting) which includes remote e-voting (i.e.
voting electronically from a place other th an the venue of the Meeting) by u sing the electron ic voting
facility provided by Central Depository Services (India) Limi ted (CDSL). The f acility for votin g through
Ballot (Polling) paper sh all be made avai lable at the Meeting and Members attending the Meeting who
have not cast their vote by remote e-voting shall be eligible to exercise their right to vote at the Meeting
through Polling paper.

2) Persons w ho have acquired shares and became Members af ter th e dispatch of th e Notice of the
Meeting but before the ‘Cut-off  Date’ of 3rd  September, 2018  may obtain  their User ID and Password for
remote e-voting by sending a request to  the Company’s Registrar  & Sh are Transfer  Agent,  C  B
Manag ement Services (P) L td ., P-22, Bon del Road , Kolkata – 700 019 at r ta@cbmsl.com quoting
DP ID/CL ID/Folio No. as the c ase may be along wi th PAN No.

3) The e-vo ting period commences on 6th Sep tember, 2018 at 9.00 am and ends on 9th September, 2018
at 5.00 pm.

The e-voting module shall be disabled by C DSL for voting th ereafter. Once th e vote on a reso lution is
cast by th e shareholder he shall not be allowed to change it subsequently.

The instructions for shareholders voting electronically are as under :

(i) The voting period begins on 6th September, 2018  (9.00 am) and ends on  9th September, 2018 (5.00
pm). During this period shareholders of the Company, hold ing shares either in physical fo rm or in
dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date of 3rd September, 2018, may cast their vote electronically.
The e-voting module shall  be disabled by C DSL for voting thereafter. The facility for votin g through
Polling paper shall be made available at the Meeting an d the members attending the Meeting who
have not cast the vote by remote e-voting shall be able to exercise their right to vote at th e Meeting
through Polling paper.

(i i) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com during the voting period.

(ii i) Click on “shareholders” tab.

(iv) Now enter your User ID

a. For CDSL :    16 digits benef iciary ID,

b. For NSDL  :   8 Character DP ID followed  by 8 digits Cl ient ID,

c. Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company.

(v) Next enter the image Veri fication as disp layed and Click on Login.

(vi) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on
an earlier voting of any company, thereon your existing  password is to be used.

mailto:rta@cbmsl.com
http://www.evotingindia.com
http://www.evotingindia.com


11

Notice (Continued)

(vi i) If you are a first time user the steps given below :

For Members holding shares in  Demat Form and Physical Form

PAN Enter you r 10 digit alpha-numeric PAN issued by Income Tax Depar tment
(Applicable for both demat shareholders as wel l as physical shareholders)

 Members who have not updated thei r PAN with the Company/Depository
Par ticip ant are required to use the fir st two letters of their name and the 8
digits of  the sequence number in the PAN field. The sequence n umber has
been sent separately along  with these instructions.

 In  case th e sequen ce n umber is less than 8 digits en ter the appl icab le
number  of ‘0’s before the number after the first two characters of the name
in CAPITAL letters e.g. if your name is Satish Kumar with sequence number
1 then enter SA00000001 in the PAN field.

DOB Enter the Date of Bir th as recorded in your demat account or in the Company
records f or the said demat account or fol io in dd/mm/yyyy format.

Dividend Enter the Dividend Bank Details as recorded in your demat account or in the
Bank Detai ls Company records for the said demat account or folio.

 Please enter the DOB o r Dividend Bank Details in order to  log in. If the
details are not recorded with the depository o r Company, please enter the
Member  ID  /Fo l io  Nu mber  in  th e D ivid en d  Ban k detail s field as
mentioned in instruction (vii).

(vi ii) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.

(ix) Members holding shares in physical form will then direc tly reach the C ompany selection  screen.
However, members holding sh ares in demat fo rm will  now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu
wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their log in password in the ‘new password ’ field.
Kindly no te that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of
any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting
through C DSL platform. It i s strongly recommended not to share your password with another
person and take utmost c are to keep you r password confidential.

(x) For Members holding shares in physical form, the detai ls can be used only for e-votin g on the
resolution s contained in this Notice.

(xi) Click on  the EVSN for th e relevant ‘Company Name’ on w hich you choose to vote.

(xii) On the voting page, you will  see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and ag ainst the same the option “
YES/NO” fo r voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you
assent to  the resolution and option NO implies that you d issent to the resolution.

(xi ii) Click on  the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish the en tire resolution details.

(xiv) After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box
will be d isplayed. If you  wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vo te, click
on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.
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(xv) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution , you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

(xvi) You can also take out print of the voting done by you by c licking on “Click here to print” option on
the voting page.

(xvii) If Demat account holder has forgotten the same password then enter the User ID and  the image
Verification code and click on ‘Forgot Password’ and enter the details as prompted by the system.

    (xviii) Shareho lders can also cast their vote using CDSL’s mobile app m-Voting available for android
based mobiles. The m-Voting app can be downloaded from Google Play Store. Apple and Windows
phone users can download the app from the App Store and the Windows Phone Store respectively.
Please fol low  the instru ctions as prompted by the mobile app while voting on your mobile.

      (xix) Note for Institutional Shareholders

 In stitution al  shareh olders (i .e.  o th er th an  Individu als, HUF, NR I etc .) are requ ired
to  log  on to  https://www.evotingindia. com and register  themselves as Co rporates.

 A sc anned copy of  the Registration Form bearing the stamp and signature of the en tity
should be emailed  to helpdesk.evoting@cdslind ia.com .

 After rec eiving the login details they have to create ‘Compliance user’ which should be
created u sing the Admin login and password.  The Compliance user would be able to link
the account(s) for whic h they wish to vote in.

 Th e l ist of  ac cou nts sh ould be mailed to  helpdesk.evoting@cdslin dia.com and on
approval o f th e accounts they would be able to cast their vote.

 A sc anned copy o f the Board Resolution an d Power of Attorney (POA) which  they have
issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system
for the sc rutinizer to verify the same.

 In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the “Frequently
Asked Questions” (“FAQs”) and e-voting manual available at www.evotin gindia.com
under Help section or write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslin dia.com .

(xx) The e-voting period commences on 6th September, 2018 (9.00 am) and ends on 9th September,
2018 (5.00 pm). During  this period shareh olders of th e Company, ho lding shares either in
physical  form or in dematerialized form may cast their vote electronical ly. The voting r ights of
shareholders shall be in propor tion  to th eir sh ares in the paid up  equity share capi tal of  the
Company as on the cut-off d ate of 3rd September, 2018.

Mr Raj Kumar Banthia, Company Secretary in Practice has been appointed as the Scrutinizer to
scrutinize the e-voting p rocess in a fair  and transparent manner.

The Scru tinizer shall un block the votes cast through remote e-voting, after counting the votes
cast at the meeting in the presence of at least two (2) witnesses not in the employment of the
Company and submit a consolidated Scrutinizer’s Repor t of the votes cast in favour or against,
if any f or thwith to the Chairman of the Company.

The Results shall be declared in accordance with applicable regulations and  the same along with
the Scrutinizer’s Repor t shall be placed on the websites of the Company and CDSL immediately
after th e result is declared by the Chairman; the Resul ts shall also be forwarded to the Stock
Exchanges where the shares of the Company are listed.

https://www.evotingindia.com
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
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Directors’ Report

The Direc tors present their  For ty-first Annual Repor t with the Audited Financial  Statements of you r Company
for the year ended 31st March, 2018.

Extract of Annual Return

An extrac t of the Annual Return as provided under Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule
12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, is given in MGT-9 which is attached
as Annexure A to this Repor t.

Board Meetings

The Board  of Directors met 5 (Five) times on  various dates du ring the financial  year 2017-18. Th e details
have been p rovided in the Corpo rate Governance Repor t pursuant to Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Ob ligation and Disclosu re Requirements) Regu lations, 2015 which is annexed as Annexure G to this
Repor t.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 134(3)(c) read with Section 134(5) of the Companies Act,  2013 the
Directors would like to state that:

(a) in the p reparation of th e annual accoun ts, the applicab le Indian Accou nting Standards (Ind AS)
have been  followed and th ere are no mater ial depar tures therefrom;

(b) the Directors had selected such accounting policies and app lied them consistently in accordance
with applicable provisions and made judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent
so as to give a true and f air view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial
year and of the loss of th e Company for that period;

(c) the Directors had taken proper and suff icient care for  the maintenance of adequate ac counting
records in accordance wi th the provision s of this Act fo r safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) the Direc tors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

(e) the  Directors, had laid  down internal f inancial controls to be followed  by the Company and that
such internal financial c ontrols are adequate and were operating effectively; and

(f) the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems were adequate and operating eff ectively.

Independent Directors’ Declaration

All the Independent Directo rs have given dec larations required under Section 149(7) of the Companies Act,
2013 confirming that they meet the criteria of independence under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013,
which were duly received by th e Company.

Particulars of loans, guarantees and investments

The par ticulars of loans made by the Compan y are covered in  Notes 4 & 12 of the Notes to the Financial
Statements.

The Compan y has not given any guarantee.

Par ticulars of investments made by the Compan y is given in Note 3 of the Notes to the Financial Statements.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)

Related Party Contracts

The par ticulars of contracts or arrangements made with related parties is attached to this Repor t as Annexure B.

State of the Company’s Affairs
Curren t Year Previou s Year
(` in Lakhs) (` in Lakhs)

Profit/(Loss) before Depreciation and Tax (714.03) (2008.36)
Less: Depreciation and Amor tization 363.87 361.91
Profit/(Loss) for the period (1077.90) (2370.27)
Tax Expense

Current Tax — —
Deferred Tax (288.66) (742.01)

Profit/ (Loss) for the Year (789.24) (1628.26)
Other C omprehensive Income 374.64 (131.91)
Total C omprehensive Income (414.60) (1760.17)
Balance brought forward from Previous Year 5687.72 7447.89

Balance carried to Balan ce Sheet 5273.12 5687.72

The finan cial statements fo r the year ended 31st March, 2018 are the first financ ial statemen ts of the
Company u nder Indian Accou nting Standards. Comparative figures relating to previous year and on  the date
of transi tion i.e. 1st Apri l, 2016 have also been prepared in accordance with th e Ind AS.

There were no companies w hich have become/ceased to be Su bsidiaries, Join t Ventures and Associate
Companies during th e year.

Maple Hotels & Reso r ts Limited (‘Maple’) continues to remain an  Associate Company whose finan cial
statements for the year en ded 31st March, 2018 are the first financial statements of that company under
Indian Acc ounting Standards;  comparative figures relating to previous year and on the date of transition i.e.
1st April , 2016 have also been prepared in accordance with th e Ind AS. During the year ended 31st March,
2018, Maple recorded an increase of  about 21.07% in its turnover to ̀  1860.88 Lakhs from ̀  1537.08 Lakhs
in the previous year which  has resulted in p rofit before Exceptional Items and  Tax at  ` 182.87 Lakhs during
the year  under review as against a loss of ̀  161.00 Lakhs in the previous year.

As required under Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 consolidated Fin ancial Statements together
with a statement containing  the salient features of the Financ ial Statements of  Maple forms a par t of this
Annual Repor t.

Deposits

The   Company   has   not   accepted any deposits within the meaning of Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013.

Regulatory Orders

There is no significant and material o rder passed by Regulators/Cour ts/Tribunals impacting the going
concern status and Compan y’s operations in future.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)

Internal Control Systems

Your Company has adequ ate Internal Financial Contro l systems at all levels of Management and they are
reviewed from time to time by firms of practising Char tered Accountants who submit Repor ts upon completion
of audit for consideration by the Directors. The details of the Internal Control Systems and their adequacy are
set out in the Management Discussion and An alysis Repor t fo rming par t of the Board’s Repor t. The Audit
Committee of the Board looks into the Auditors’ review whic h is deliberated upon and corrective action
taken, wherever required.

Auditors’ Report

Messrs B M Chatrath & Co LLP,  Statutory Auditors have submitted their Repor t in respect of the financial year
2017-18 under Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The repor t of the Statutory Auditors during the year under review does not contain any qualification, reservation
or adverse remark or disc laimer, which requires any fur ther comments or exp lanations in this repor t.

The Notes to the Financial Statements are also self-explanato ry and do not call  for any fur ther comments.

Cost Audit

For the year ended 31st March, 2017, the C ost Audit had been completed by  Messrs Shome and Banerjee,
Cost Accountants. The Cost Audit Repor t had been submitted by the Cost Auditors to the appropriate authorities
within the stipulated time on 4th October, 2017.

Secretarial Audit

In terms of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, Messrs MKB & Associates, Practising Company Secretaries had been
appointed  as the Secretarial Auditor of the C ompany to carry ou t the Secretarial Audit for the year  2017-18.

The Secretarial Au dit Repor t given by Messrs MKB & Associates, C ompan y Sec retar ies in Practice is
annexed to this Repor t as Annexure C which is self-explanatory and does not contain any quali fication,
reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer, which requi res any fur ther comments or explanation.

Resumé of Performance

During th e year under review, climatic condi tions arising primarily from global  climatic changes generally
remained below the levels desirable to resu lt in augmented vo lume of crop produced which contin ued to be
affected by pest attacks. As you r Company continues wi th its emphasis on tea as health drink, in  consonance
with its integrated Pest Management Policy i t does not use strong pesticides th ereby also maintain Maximum
Residual Levels and accord ingly it has adop ted appropriate measures to counter pest. Production for the
year has increased resulting in improved bottom-line. You would be happy to note that the Company’s revenue
improved to  ̀  12037.54 Lakhs from ̀  11155.36 Lakhs in the previou s year  and th e loss for th e year  was
` 414.60 Lakhs which was a substantial reduction from ̀  1760.17 Lakhs in the previous year.

Crop

Your Company’s saleable crop was higher at 6.71 Million Kgs. as compared to the previous year’s production
of 6.09 Million Kgs.
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Comparative Crop figures during the past five years for  its seven tea estates are given below:

Year Saleable Crop
Ended on In Million Kgs.

31.03.2018 6.71
31.03.2017 6.09
31.03.2016 7.18
31.03.2015 6.58
31.03.2014 7.77

Sales

Proceeds f rom sale of tea increased to ̀  11845.39 Lakhs for the year under review as against ̀  10878.26
Lakhs in the previou s year.

Quality

Your Company’s policy of manufacture only from its own leaf  together with good agricultural practices
continue to contribute to  Quality.

Your Directors remain stead fast in their endeavour that the teas of your Company are produced in a socially
responsib le manner. All tea estates of your C ompany continue to have Rainforest Alliance Cer tification, ISO
22000:2005 Cer tification as well as Trustea Verification Cer tification apar t from continuing to be par ticipants
of the Ethical Tea Par tnership Programme of UK. The Compan y’s Integrated Pest Management Policy for
agro inputs are in  consonance with the Plant Protection Code of the Tea Board of India. Your Company and its
Management continues to be ever watchful on the issues of Maximum (Permissible Chemicals) Residue Limits.

Exports

Expor ts for the year was ̀  479.21 Lakh s against ̀  953.88 Lakhs for the previous year.

Prospects

Your Directors have taken d iverse steps for improving production both in terms of quality and quantity and
it is expected that with average growing c onditions, the Company’s per forman ce would improve fur ther.
Your Di rectors are p leased to repor t that during the current year there is marked improvement in quality
resultin g in higher un it price reali zations.

Shareholders

Your Direc tors are of the view that considerin g the loss for the year, it would no t be prudent to declare any
dividend for the year under review.

It is proposed to reclassif y as public the entities belonging to a former promo ter group. For the purpose,
necessary approvals would be sought including that of the Shareholders at the for thcoming Annual General
Meeting.
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Material changes and commitments consequent to year end

Your Directors confirm that there were no material changes and  commitments affec ting the financial  position
of the Company which have occurred between the end of the fin ancial year to which the financial statement
relates an d the date of this repor t .

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

The detai ls of conservation of energy, tech nology absorption,  foreign exchange earnings and outgo are as
follows:

(A) Conservation of energy

(i) The steps taken or impact on conservation o f energy:

The Company is ever sensible on  conserving en ergy an d reduc ing its consu mption.  The
Compan y has been sensitive enough on th is issue f or several years and c ontinues wi th its
effo r ts to regulate consumption and  conserve energ y. Apar t from th e ecolog ical impact,
energy c ost is one of th e two major inpu ts in the produ ction cost, other being the labour cost.
The Company with the view to reduce the major item of cost, is continu ously trying to  explore
avenues to  reduce consumption of energy.

As a po licy, the old  and existin g equipment are being replaced with newer/energy ef ficient
equipment. To become more energy efficient, the processes are being reviewed and necessary
changes are being carried out wherever possib le with a view to conserve and make efficient
use of energy.

The process of replacing incandescent bulbs with CFL/LED continues. The Company is continuously
replacing the traditional high gas consumption burners with more efficient ec onomical burners
which have reduced energy consumption. All the estates of the Company are making effor ts to
optimize  machinery output, resulting in power  savings.

(i i) The steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources o f energy:

During the year under review, no major steps were initiated for utilizing alternate sources of energy
by your Company.

(ii i)The capital investment on en ergy conservation equipment:

The Company continues to in vest, resulting in  energy savings. Installation of VFBD and CFM
together with economical burners and installation of conveyer system have increased production
efficiently which has resulted in overall redu ction of both energy consumption and  manpower
which has ultimately reduced the cost of production. Daily monitoring of both gas and electricity
are being carried out and immediate corrective action, where necessary, is being taken to become
more energy efficient.
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(B) Technology absorption:

(i) The effo r ts made towards technology absorption;
(i i) The benef its derived like product improvement, cost

reduction, product development or impor t substitution;
(ii i) In  case of impor ted techn ology (impor ted during the

last three years reckoned from the beginning of the
financial  year) -       Not Applicable
(a) the detai ls of technology impor ted;
(b) the year o f impor t;
(c) whether the technology been fully absorbed;
(d) if not fu lly absorbed, areas where absorp tion has

not taken place, and th e reasons thereof; and

(iv) The expen diture incurred on  Research and Development:

The Compan y did not car ry out any Research  & Developmen tal ac tiviti es on i ts own . However,
during the year the Company subscribed a sum of  ̀  24.36 Lakhs to Tea Research Association (‘TRA’)
which has been set up for the purpose of carrying out research aimed at improving various aspects
of tea plantations who derive benefit from such detailed work carried out by TRA. The expenses for
such work are collectively borne by TRA from the contr ibutions made by various tea companies.

(C)  Foreign exchange earnings and outgo:

Foreign exchange — Earned (Gross) — ` 496.07 Lakhs

— Outgo — ` 24.64 Lakhs

Risk Management

The Company has developed  and implemented  a Risk Management Policy. The R isk Management C ommittee
of the Board reviews the r isk assessment an d minimization procedure in the light of the Risk Management
Pol icy o f the Company. Detai ls of  Risk Management Committee are given  separately in the C orporate
Governanc e Repor t at Annexu re G to this Repor t. In the opinion  of the Board there is no such risk which may
threaten  the present ex istence of the Company.

Corporate Social Responsibility

The Corpo rate Social Responsibility Committee, comprises o f Mrs S Barman as Chairperson an d Mrs A K
Bindra, Mr Vinay K Goenka and Mr S K Ghosh as Members with President-Legal & Company Secretary as
its Secretary. The broad terms of reference of the Corporate Social Responsib ility (CSR) Committee are:

— Formulate and recommend to  the Board, the C SR Policy
— Recommen d the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities un der taken

— Monitor th e CSR Policy of th e Company from time to time
— Review the per formance of the Company in the area of CSR including the evaluation of the impact of

the Company’s CSR activities

— Review the Company’s disclosure of CSR matters
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The Committee has framed the CSR Policy wh ich is available on Company’s website at www.warrentea.com
The CSR Policy and related  matters together  with details of the Committee have been annexed as Annexure
D to this Repor t.

Board Evaluation

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has earlier approved the Board Evaluation Policy. All the Directors
including Independent Directors and the Non-Independent Directors have continued to contribute their inputs in
the process of evaluation of the Directors. The Independent Directors and the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee Members have continued to review the per formance of all the Directors including the Chairman and
the Managing Director and thence the per formance of the Board as a whole. The Board in turn, with such inputs
have carried out annual evaluation of its own per formance, its Committees and individual Directors.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Board consists o f three Non-executive Independent D irectors with Mr S Bhoopal
as Chairman, Mr L K Halwasiya and Mr N Dutta as members. During the year  u nder  review,  the  Board
accepted  all  the  recommendations made by  the  Audit Committee. Fur ther detail s of the Committee relating
to their terms of reference, composition and  meetings held du ring the year, are included in the repor t on
Corporate Governance in Annexure G to this Repor t.

Vigil Mechanism Committee

The Company has established a Vigil Mechanism for directors and employees to repor t their genuine concerns
about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of Company’s Code of Conduct or ethical
policy. The Audit Committee of the Board monitors an d oversees such Vigil Mechanism of the Company. The
Vigil Mechanism provides the whistle blower to lodge Protected Disclosure in writing to the Committee in the
form of a letter in a closed envelope or by e-mail to  the dedicated address; protection to genuine whistle
blowers would be given against any unfair treatment and  any abuse of this protection will attract disciplinary
action.  The Company has also provided a direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee on repor ting
issues concerning the interests of the employees and the Company. The Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower
Pol icy of th e Company has been  uploaded  on the w ebsite of  the Company and can be accessed  at
www.warrentea.com  .

Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Policy

The Committee consists of  Mr S Bhoopal,  Mrs S Barman and Mr N Dutta, all Non-executive In dependent
Directors with Mr S Bhoopal  as Chairman. It recommends to the Board, inter alia, the Remuneration Package
of Di rectors and  Key Managerial Person nel. Fur ther details relating to the Committee are set out in the
Repor t on Corporate Governance in Ann exure G to this Repor t.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has formulated a policy for evaluation of Directors which contains
evaluation criteria; such criteria include contributing to, monitoring and reviewing etc. and has acted upon the
same. The par ticulars required to be furnished relating to the Policy on Directors’ appointment and remuneration
including criteria for determining qualification, positive attributes and independence of a Director and other related
matters including remuneration of employees has been uploaded on the website of the Company, which can be
accessed under the weblink: http://www.warrentea.com/Documents/nomination_remuneration_policy.pdf  .

http://www.warrentea.com
http://www.warrentea.com
http://www.warrentea.com/Documents/nomination_remuneration_policy.pdf
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The Company’s Policy on Di rector’s appointment and remuneration and other matters provided in Section
178(3) of  the Act has been disclosed in the C orporate Governanc e Repor t.

Stakeholders Relationship Committee

The Committee consists of Mr S Bhoopal as the Chairman and Mrs A K Bindra, Mr Vinay K Goenka and Mr S K
Ghosh as members. Details of the Committee are provided in the Repor t on Corporate Governance in Annexure
G to this Repor t.

Change in nature of Business, if any

There has been no change in the nature of  business of the Company.

Statement of compliance of applicable Secretarial Standards

Your Company has complied with applicable Secretarial Standards.

Details of Directors/Key Managerial Personnel

In accordance with the Ar ticles of Association of the Company, Mr Vinay K Goenka (DIN 00043124), Chairman
of the Company retires by ro tation and being eligible has offered himself for reappointment.

On recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board o f Directors have approved
reappointment of all five Independent Direc tors of the Company subject to app roval of the shareholders.

Personnel

In accordance with the provisions of Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 the par ticulars and information of the
employees has been set out in Annexure E to th is Repor t.

Your Company treats its human capital as its most impor tant asset. The welfare and well-being of the workers
are monito red closely and th e Company maintain s harmonious relationship with the employees.

Industrial relations remained peaceful throughout the year and your Board of Directors thank executives, staff
and workers at all levels for their valuable service and suppor t during the year. All estates of your Company are
cer tified under the Rainforest Alliance as well as Trustea indicating firm commitment towards sustainability as
well as w orkers’ health, h ygiene and safety. It is your Company’s endeavour to  provide safe, healthy and
sustainable work environment in all the estates. The Company has always believed in a policy against sexual
harassmen t which has also found its place in the governing Codes of Conduct an d Ethics applicab le to its
employees which includes a mechanism to redress such complaints. Further, the Company has in place Internal
Complaints Committees for Assam and Kolkata and during the year under review there were no complaints of
sexual harassment at any of the units.

Corporate Governance

The Company has complied with the Corporate Governance requirements under the Act as stipulated under Regulation
17 to Regulation 27 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015. A Management  Discussion and Analysis Report is provided in Annexure F. A separate Repor t on
Corporate Governance in terms of Regulation 34(3) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is also provided in Annexure G to this Repor t.
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Certifications

A Declaration affirming compliance with the Code of Conduct of the Company an d Auditor’s Cer ti ficate of
compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance are collectively annexed and forms par t of this Repor t.

Auditors

Messrs B M Chatrath & Co LLP, Char tered Accountants,  were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company
at the th ir ty-seventh Annual General Meeting held on 10th September, 2014 to hold  office till the c onclusion
of the f or ty-second An nual General Meeting.

Messrs Shome & Banerjee, Cost Accountants have been reappointed for audit of Cost Accounts maintained by
the Company fo r the year ending 31st March, 2019 and their remuneration is being placed for approval of the
Shareholders at the for thcoming Annual General  Meeting.

Ko lkata Vinay K Goenka
26th May, 2018 Ch airman
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Annexure ‘A’ to the Directors’ Report

FORM NO. MGT-9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on the financial year ended on 31.03.2018

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014]

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

(i) CIN : L01132AS1977PLC001706

(i i) Registration Date : 31.05.1977

(ii i) Name of th e Company : WARREN TEA LIMITED

(iv) Category/Sub-Category of th e Company : Company Limited by shares
(v) Address o f the Registered o ffice and : Deohall Tea Estate, P.O. : Hoogrijan,

contact details Dist. : Tinsukia, Assam 786601

Telephone No. : 0374 2911369

(vi) Whether listed company : Yes

(vi i) Name, Add ress and Contact d etails of : CB Manag ement Services (P) Ltd.
Registrar  and Transfer Agen t, if any P-22 Bondel Road, Kolkata 700 019

Telephone No. 033-40116700 / 22806692 / 22823643 / 22870263

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:-

Sl. No. Name and Description of NIC Code of the % to total turnover
main products/services Product/service  of the company

1. Plantation of Tea 01271 100%

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES-

Sl. Name and Address CIN/GLN Holding/Subsidiary % of shares Applicable
No. of the Company /Associate held  Section

1. Maple Hotels & Resor ts U70101WB2000PLC091582 Associate Company 46.92% 2(6)
Limi ted

Suvira House,
4B Hunger fo rd Street,

Kolkata 700 017
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IV. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
(i) Category-wise Shareholding

Category of No. of Shares  held at No. of Shares  held at %
Shareholders the beginning of the year the end of the year Change

during
 the year

Dem at Physical Total % of Dem at Physical Total % of
Total Total

Shares Shares

A. Promoters
(1)  Indian
a) Individual / HUF 5486078 — 5486078 45.9055 5454489 — 5454489 45.6412 ( 0.2643)
b) Centr al Govt. — — — — — — — — —
c) State Govt.(s) — — — — — — — — —
d) Bodies Corp. 3355510 — 3355510 28.0777 3355510 — 3355510 28.0777 —
e) Banks/F.I. — — — — — — — — —
f) Any  Other — — — — — — — — —
Sub-total  (A) (1) 8841588 — 8841588 73.9832 8809999 — 8809999 73.7189 (0.2643)

(2)  Foreign
a) NRIs-Individuals — — — — — — — — —
b) Other-I ndividuals — — — — — — — — —
c) Bodies Corp. 106211 — 106211 0.8887 106211 — 106211 0.8887 —
d) Banks/F.I. — — — — — — — — —
e) Any  Other — — — — — — — — —
Sub-total  (A) (2) 106211 — 106211 0.8887 106211 — 106211 0.8887 —
Total shareholding
of Promoter (A)=
(A)(1)+(A)(2) 8947799 — 8947799 74.8719 8916210 — 8916210 74.6076 (0.2643)

B . Publ ic
  Shareholding

1. Insti tutions
a) Mutua l Funds — 42 42 0.0004 — 42 42 0.0004 —
b) Banks/F.I. 79 178 257 0.0022 79 178 257 0.0022 —
c) Centr al Govt. 3 — 3 * 3 — 3 * —
d) State Govt. (s) — — — — — — — — —
e) Ventur e Capital
    F unds — — — — — — — — —
f) Insurance
   Com panies — 178 178 0.0015 — 178 178 0.0015 —
g) F IIs — — — — — — — — —
h) Foreign Venture
    Capital Funds — — — — — — — — —
i) Others — — — — — — — — —
Sub-total (B) (1) 82 398 480 0.0040 82 398 480 0.0040 —
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Category of No. of Shares  held at No. of Shares  held at %
Shareholders the beginning of the year the end of the year Change

during
 the year

Dem at Physical Total % of Dem at Physical Total % of
Total Total

Shares Shares

2. Non-Ins titutions
a) Bodies Corp.

i)Indian 104056 10362 114418 0.9574 955674 10322 965996 8.0831 7.1257
ii) Overseas — — — — — — — — —

b) Indi viduals
i) Indi vidual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital
upto ` 1 lakh 867596 382722 1250318 10.4622 909659 374080 1283739 10.7418 0.2796
ii) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital
in excess
of  ` 1 lakh 1602225 34518 1636743 13.6957 749521 34518 784039 6.5606 ( 7.1351)

c) Quali fied
 For eign
 Investor — — — — — — — — —

d) Others — — — — — — — — —
e) Trust 1046 — 1046 0.0088 340 — 340 0.0028 ( 0.0059)

Sub-total  (B) (2) 2574923 427602 3002525 25.1240 2615194 418920 3034114 25.3884 0.2643
Total  Publ ic
Shareholding
(B)=(B)(1)+
(B)(2) 2575005 428000 3003005 25.1281 2615276 419318 3034594 25.3924 0.2643

TOTAL (A)+(B) 11522804 428000 11950804 100.0000 11531486 419318 11950804 100.0000 —

C. Shares  held by
Custodian for
GDRs &  ADRs

1.P romoter and
Promoter Group — — — — — — — — —

2.Public — — — — — — — — —
Sub-Total (C ) — — — — — — — — —

Grand Total
(A+B+C) 11522804 428000 11950804 100.0000 11531486 419318 11950804 100.0000 —
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(ii) Shareholding of Promoters

Sl. Shareholder’s  Name Shareholding at the Shareholding at the
No. beginning of the year end of the year

No. of % of % of No. of % of % of %
Shares total Shares Shares total Shares change

Shares Pledged/ Shares Pledged/ in share
of the encumbered of the encumbered holding

Company to total Comapny to total during
shares shares the year

1. Vinay Kum ar Goenka 4009202 33.55 NIL 3977613 33.28 NIL (0.27)

2. Vivek Goenka 1476876 12.36 NIL 1476876 12.36 NIL —

3. Maple Hotel s & Resor ts
Limi ted 3196448 26.75 NIL 3196448 26.75 NIL —

4. Sectra Plaza Private
Limi ted 159062 1.33 NIL 159062 1.33 NIL —

5. Isis Enterpr ises Limited 91826 0.77 NIL 91826 0.77 NIL —

6. Woodcutter Li mited 14385 0.12 NIL 14385 0.12 NIL —

Total 8947799 74.88 NIL 8916210 74.61 NIL (0.27)

(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

Sl. Shareholder’s  Name Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
No. beginning of the year during the year

No. of % of total No. of % of total
Shares shares of the Shares shares of the

Company Company

1. Vinay Kumar  Goenka
At the beginning of the year
(01/04/2017) 4009202 33.55 4009202 33.55
Date-wise Increase/Decrease
during the year – Transfer
Decrease (08/12/ 2017) 21216 0.18 3987986 33.37
Decrease (05/01/ 2018) 10373 0.09 3977613 33.28
At the end of the year (or on the
date of separation, if separated
during the year) (31/03/2018) 3977613 33.28 3977613 33.28

2. Vivek Goenka
At the beginning of the year
(01/04/2017) 1476876 12.36 1476876 12.36
At the end of the year (or on the
date of separation, if separated
during the year) (31/03/2018) 1476876 12.36 1476876 12.36
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(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

Sl. Shareholder’s  Name Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
No. beginning of the year during the year

No. of % of total No. of % of total
Shares shares of the Shares shares of the

Company Company

3. Maple Hotels & Resorts Limited
At the beginning of the year
(01/04/2017) 3196448 26.75 3196448 26.75
At the end of the year (or on the
date of separation, if separated
during the year) (31/03/2018) 3196448 26.75 3196448 26.75

4. Sectra Plaza P rivate Limited
At the beginning of the year
(01/04/2017) 159062 1.33 159062 1.33

At the end of the year (or on the
date of separation, if separated
during the year) (31/03/2018) 159062 1.33 159062 1.33

5. Isis Enterpr ises Limited
At the beginning of the year
(01/04/2017) 91826 0.77 91826 0.77
At the end of the year (or on the
date of separation, if separated
during the year) (31/03/2018) 91826 0.77 91826 0.77

6. Woodcutter  Limited
At the beginning of the year
(01/04/2017) 14385 0.12 14385 0.12

At the end of the year (or on the
date of separation, if separated
during the year) (31/03/2018) 14385 0.12 14385 0.12
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(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of
GDRs and ADRs):

Sl. Shareholder’s  Name Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
No. beginning of the year during the year

For  Each of the Top 10  Shareholders No. of % of total No. of % of total
Shares shares of the Shares shares of the

Company Company
1. Chandra Kum ar Dhanuka,

Pradip Kumar  Khaitan,
Dharampal J indal
At the  beginning of the year (01/04/ 2017) 1416074 11.85 1416074 11.85

Date-wi se Increase/ Decrease dur ing the
year - Transfer
Decrease (29/12/ 2017) 597524 5.00 818550 6.85
Decrease (12/01/ 2018) 818550 6.85 0 0.00
At the end of the yea r (or on the date of
separat ion, if separa ted during the year)
(31/03/2018) 0 0.00 0 0.00

2. Radhe Shyam Saraf
At the  beginning of the year (01/04/ 2017) 44225 0.37 44225 0.37
Date-wi se Increase/ Decrease dur ing the
year – Transfer
Incr ease (19/01/2018) 818550 6.85 862775 7.22
Decrease (16/02/ 2018) 100000 0.84 762775 6.38
Decrease (02/03/ 2018) 200000 1.67 562775 4.71
Decrease (09/03/ 2018) 300000 2.51 262775 2.20
Decrease (16/03/ 2018) 213477 1.79 49298 0.41

At the end of the yea r (or on the date of
separat ion, if separa ted during the year)
(31/03/2018) 49298 0.41 49298 0.41

3. Pradeep Kumar  Saraf
At the  beginning of the year (01/04/ 2017) 42061 0.35 42061 0.35
Date-wi se Increase/ Decrease dur ing the
year – Transfer
Decrease (08/12/ 2017) 1176 0.01 40885 0.34
Incr ease (16/02/2017) 150 * 41035 0.34

At the end of the yea r (or on the date of
separat ion, if separa ted during the year)
(31/03/2018) 41035 0.34 41035 0.34

4. Chandmull Batia
At the  beginning of the year (01/04/ 2017) 34518 0.29 34518 0.29

At the end of the yea r (or on the date of
separat ion, if separa ted during the year)
(31/03/2018) 34518 0.29 34518 0.29
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Sl. Shareholder’s  Name Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
No. beginning of the year during the year

For  Each of the Top 10  Shareholders No. of % of total No. of % of total
Shares shares of the Shares shares of the

Company Company
5. Vinodchandra Mansukhlal Parekh

At the  beginning of the year (01/04/ 2017) 33093 0.28 33093 0.28
At the end of the yea r (or on the date of
separat ion, if separa ted during the year)
(31/03/2018) 33093 0.28 33093 0.28

6. Chandrika V inodchandra Parekh
At the  beginning of the year (01/04/ 2017) 28369 0.24 28369 0.24
At the end of the yea r (or on the date of
separat ion, if separa ted during the year)
(31/03/2018) 28369 0.24 28369 0.24

7. Rathinasam y Narayanasamy Rubesh
At the  beginning of the year (01/04/ 2017) 18575 0.16 18575 0.16

At the end of the yea r (or on the date of
separat ion, if separa ted during the year)
(31/03/2018) 18575 0.16 18575 0.16

8. Sunil  Kum ar Gupta
At the  beginning of the year (01/04/ 2017) 15000 0.13 15000 0.13
At the end of the yea r (or on the date of
separat ion, if separa ted during the year)
(31/03/2018) 15000 0.13 15000 0.13

9. Henko Commodities  Private Limited
At the  beginning of the year (01/04/ 2017) 13827 0.12 13827 0.12
Date-wi se Increase/ Decrease dur ing the
year-Transfer
Decrease (24/11/ 2017) 13827 0.12 0 0.00
At the end of the yea r (or on the date of
separat ion, if separa ted during the year)
(31/03/2018) 0 0.00 0 0.00

10. Vinodchandra Mansukhlal Parekh
At the  beginning of the year (01/04/ 2017) 13203 0.11 13203 0.11

At the end of the yea r (or on the date of
separat ion, if separa ted during the year)
(31/03/2018) 13203 0.11 13203 0.11

11. Edelweiss B roking Ltd.
At the  beginning of the year (01/04/ 2017) 519 * 519 *
Date-wi se Increase/ Decrease dur ing the
year – Transfer
Incr ease (07/04/2017) 77 * 596 *
Decrease (14/04/ 2017) 77 * 519 *
Incr ease (28/04/2017) 94 * 613 0.01



29

Annexure ‘A’ to the Directors’ Report (Continued)

Sl. Shareholder’s  Name Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
No. beginning of the year during the year

For  Each of the Top 10  Shareholders No. of % of total No. of % of total
Shares shares of the Shares shares of the

Company Company

Decrease (05/05/2017) 100 * 513 *
Increase (19/05/2017) 100 * 613 *
Increase (26/05/2017) 100 * 713 *
Decrease (02/06/2017) 700 0.01 13 *
Increase (09/06/2017) 8 * 21 *
Increase (16/06/2017) 8 * 29 *
Increase (23/06/2017) 1133 0.01 1162 0.01
Increase (30/06/2017) 95 * 1257 0.01
Increase (28/07/2017) 10 * 1267 0.01
Increase (04/08/2017) 10 * 1277 0.01
Increase (11/08/2017) 5 * 1282 0.01
Decrease (25/08/2017) 141 * 1141 0.01
Increase (01/09/2017) 11 * 1152 0.01
Increase (22/09/2017) 270 * 1422 0.01
Increase (27/10/2017) 50 * 1472 0.01
Decrease (10/11/2017) 6 * 1466 0.01
Increase (17/11/2017) 600 0.01 2066 0.02
Increase (24/11/2017) 3165 0.03 5231 0.04
Decrease (01/12/2017) 3792 0.03 1439 0.01
Increase (08/12/2017) 1484 0.01 2923 0.02
Increase (15/12/2017) 2100 0.02 5023 0.04
Increase (22/12/2017) 1116 0.01 6139 0.05
Decrease (29/12/2017) 1136 0.01 5003 0.04
Increase (05/01/2018) 1250 0.01 6253 0.05
Increase (12/01/2018) 3150 0.03 9403 0.08
Increase (19/01/2018) 7501 0.06 16904 0.14
Increase (09/02/2018) 11 * 16915 0.14
Increase (16/02/2018) 800 0.01 17715 0.15
Increase (23/02/2018) 100906 0.84 118621 0.99
Increase (02/03/2018) 101354 0.85 219975 1.84
Increase (09/03/2018) 250000 2.09 469975 3.93
Increase (16/03/2018) 1 * 469976 3.93
Increase (30/03/2018) 193 * 470169 3.93

At the end of the yea r (or on the date of
separat ion, if separa ted during the year)
(31/03/2018) 470169 3.93 470169 3.93

12. Sanidhya Mittal
At the  beginning of the year (01/04/ 2017) 0 0.00 0 0.00
Date-wi se Increase/ Decrease dur ing the
year – Transfer
Incr ease (12/01/2018) 55260 0.46 55260 0.46
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Sl. Shareholder’s  Name Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
No. beginning of the year during the year

For  Each of the Top 10  Shareholders No. of % of total No. of % of total
Shares shares of the Shares shares of the

Company Company
Incr ease (19/01/2018) 169740 1.42 225000 1.88
Incr ease (09/03/2018) 50000 0.42 275000 2.30
Incr ease (16/03/2018) 25000 0.21 300000 2.51

At the end of the yea r (or on the date of
separat ion, if separa ted during the year)
(31/03/2018) 300000 2.51 300000 2.51

13. Karuna M ittal
At the  beginning of the year (01/04/ 2017) 0 0.00 0 0.00
Date-wi se Increase/ Decrease dur ing the
year – Transfer
Incr ease (12/01/2018) 61200 0.51 61200 0.51
Incr ease (19/01/2018) 40832 0.34 102032 0.85
Incr ease (26/01/2018) 47968 0.40 150000 1.26
Incr ease (02/02/2018) 72250 0.60 222250 1.86
Incr ease (16/03/2018) 52750 0.44 275000 2.30

At the end of the yea r (or on the date of
separat ion, if separa ted during the year)
(31/03/2018) 275000 2.30 275000 2.30

14. Lil ly Exporters Pr ivate Limited
At the  beginning of the year (01/04/ 2017) 0 0.00 0 0.00

Date-wi se Increase/ Decrease dur ing the
year – Transfer
Incr ease (30/03/2018) 118000 0.99 118000 0.99

At the end of the yea r (or on the date of
separat ion, if separa ted during the year)
(31/03/2018) 118000 0.99 118000 0.99

15. Indistock Private Limited
At the  beginning of the year (01/04/ 2017) 631 0.01 631 0.01

Date-wi se Increase/ Decrease dur ing the
year – Transfer
Decrease (17/11/ 2017) 3 * 628 0.01
Incr ease (23/03/2018) 99372 0.83 100000 0.84

At the end of the yea r (or on the date of
separat ion, if separa ted during the year)
(31/03/2018) 100000 0.84 100000 0.84
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Sl. Shareholder’s  Name Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
No. beginning of the year during the year

For Each of the Directors and KMP No. of % of total No. of % of total
Shares shares of the Shares shares of the

Company Company
1. Vinay Kumar Goenka — Chairman

At the  beginning of the year (01/04/ 2017) 4009202 33.55 4009202 33.55

Date-wi se Increase/ Decrease dur ing the
year - Transfer
Decrease (08/12/ 2017) 21216 0.18 3987986 33.37
Decrease (05/01/ 2018) 10373 0.09 3977613 33.28

At the end of the yea r (or on the date of
separat ion, if separa ted during the year)
(31/03/2018) 3977613 33.28 3977613 33.28

2. S K  Ghosh – Managing Director
At the  beginning of the year (01/04/ 2017) 1 * 1 *

At the end of the yea r (or on the date of
separat ion, if separa ted during the year)
(31/03/2018) 1 * 1 *

3. N Dutta – Director
At the  beginning of the year (01/04/ 2017) 10 * 10 *
At the end of the yea r (or on the date of
separat ion, if separa ted during the year)
(31/03/2018) 10 * 10 *

4. S Bhoopal – Director
At the  beginning of the year (01/04/ 2017) 1 * 1 *
At the end of the yea r (or on the date of
separat ion, if separa ted during the year)
(31/03/2018) 1 * 1 *

5. S Roy  – President -Legal &
Com pany  Secretary
At the  beginning of the year (01/04/ 2017) 1 * 1 *

At the end of the yea r (or on the date of
separat ion, if separa ted during the year)
(31/03/2018) 1 * 1 *

Notes : 1)Where there was no movemen t of shares during  the year, increase/decrease not separately
indicated.

2)* Indicates that percentag e is below the rounding off norm adopted by the Company.
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V. INDEBTEDNESS
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment.

                                                                                                                                                     (` in Lakhs)
Secured Loans Unsecured Deposit Total

excluding Loans Indebtedness
deposits

Indebtedness at the beginning
of the financial year
(i) Principa l Amount 2570.56 — — 2570.56
(ii) Interes t due but not paid 15.73 — — 15.73
(iii) Inter est accrued but not due — — — —

Total  (i+ii+ii i) 2586.29 — — 2586.29

Change in Indebtedness  during
the financial year
 Additi on 1334.45 2700.00 — 4034.45
 Reducti on 593.17 2700.00 — 3293.17

Net Change 741.28 — — 741.28

Indebtedness at the end of the
financial  year
(i) Principa l Amount 3309.46 — — 3309.46
(ii) Interes t due but not paid 18.11 — — 18.11
(iii) Inter est accrued but not due — — — —

Total  (i+ii+ii i) 3327.57 — — 3327.57

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. Remuneration to  Chairman and Managing Director:

           (` in Lakhs)
Sl. Particulars of Remuneration Vinay K  Goenka S K Ghosh Total  Amount
No. (Chairman) (M anaging Director)
1. Gross Salary

(a) Salary as per provi sions contai ned in
section 17(1) of the Incom e-Tax Act, 1961 142.61 129.15 271.76

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of
the  Income-Tax Act, 1961 9.38 0.71 10.09

(c) Profits in lieu of sala ry under secti on 17(3)
of the Income-Tax Act, 1961 — — —

2. Stock Opt ion — — —
3. Sweat Equity — — —
4. Commi ssion

- as % of profit — — —
- others — — —

5. Others — — —
Total  (A) 151.99 129.86 281.85
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B. Remuneration to  other Directors:                                           (` in Lakhs)

Sl. Par ticulars  of Nilotpal Sr iprakash Anup Lali t Sonia Total
No. Remuneration Dutta Bhoopal Kaur Kum ar Barm an Am ount

Bindra Halwasiya

1. Independent Directors
l Fee for attending board

/ committee meetings 0.32 1.03 0.66 0.47 0.40 2.87
l Commi ssion — — — — — —
l Others , please specify — — — — — —

Total (1) 0.32 1.03 0.66 0.47 0.40 2.87

2. Other  Non-executive
Directors — — — — — —

Total (2) — — — — — —

Total (B )=(1 +2) 0.32 1.03 0.66 0.47 0.40 2.87

Total M anagerial
Remuneration 0.32 1.03 0.66 0.47 0.40 2.87

Overall Ceiling as
per the Act NOT APPLICABLE

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD:
                                                                                                                                                      (` in Lakhs)

Sl. Particulars of Remuneration S Roy S K  Mukhopadhyay Total
No. (President – (Chief Financial Am ount

Legal & Company Officer)
Secretary)

1. Gross Salary
      (a) Salary as per provi sions contai ned in

section 17(1) of the Income-Tax Act, 1961 23.57 24.88 48.45
      (b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2)

of the I ncome-Tax Act, 1961 3.98 0.26 4.24
      (c) Profits in lieu of sala ry under

sect ion 17(3) of the
Income-Tax  Act, 1961 — — —

2. Stock Opt ion — — —
3. Sweat Equity — — —

4. Commi ssion
- as % of profit — — —
- others, specify — — —

5. Others — — —

    Total 27.55 25.14 52.69
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VII. PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type Section of Brief Description Details of Authority Appeal made,
the Penalty/ [RD/NCLT/ if any (give

Companies Punishment/ COURT] details)
Act Compounding

fees imposed

A. WARREN TEA LIMITED

Penal ty
Punishment NIL

Compounding

B. DIRECTORS
Penal ty

Punishment NIL
Compounding

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penal ty

Punishment NIL

Compounding



35

Annexure ‘B’ to the Directors’ Report

Form No. AOC - 2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of  section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

1. Details o f contracts or arrangements
or transactions not at arm’s length basis : Ni l

2. Details of material con tracts or arrangements
 or transactions at arm’s length basis : No material contracts o r arrangements

or tran sactions has been en tered in to
w i th  Related  Par ties in  terms o f
p rovision s o f Section 188 (1) o f th e
Companies Act,  2013.
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FORM NO. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2018

[Pursuant to section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To
The Members,
WARREN TEA LIMITED

We h ave conducted  the secretar ial aud it of the compliance of applicable statutory p rovisions and  the
adherence to good corporate practices by WARREN TEA LIMITED (hereinafter called “the C ompany”).
Secretarial Audit was condu cted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis f or evaluating the corporate
conducts/statutory compliances an d expressing our opinion thereon.

The Company’s Management is responsible for preparation and maintenance of secretarial and other records
and for devising proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of applicable laws and Regulations.

Based on our verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company and also the inf ormation provided by the Company,  its officers, agents and
authorized  representatives during the conduct of secretarial aud it, we hereby repo r t that in our opinion, the
Company has, during the audit p eriod covering the financial year ended on  31st March, 2018 complied with
the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that th e Company has proper Board processes and
complianc e mechanism in place to the extent,  in the manner an d subject to the repor ting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and  returns filed an d other records maintained
by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2018, to the extent applicable, according to the
provisions of:

i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and th e rules made thereunder;

ii ) The Securi ties Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 and Rules made thereunder;

ii i) The Deposi tories Act, 1996 and Regulations and  Bye-laws framed thereunder;

iv) The Foreig n Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regu lations made thereunder
to the extent of Foreign  Direct Investment, Overseas Di rect Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings;

v) The Regu lations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities & Exchange Board of In dia Act,
1992 (“SEBI Act”) or by SEBI, to the extent applicable:

a) The Securities & Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeover)
Regulations, 2011

b) The Securi ties & Exchange Board of  India (Proh ibition of Insider  Trading) Regulations,
2015
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c) The Secur ities & Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital an d Disclosure Requ irements)
Regulations, 2009

d) The Secur ities and Exchang e Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Reg ulations,
2014

e) The Securi ties & Exchange Board of India (Issu e and listing of Debt securities) Regulations,
2008

f) The Securi ties & Exchan ge Board of India (Registrars to  an Issue and  Share  Tran sfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993

g) The Sec urities & Exc hang e Board o f In dia (Delistin g of  Equi ty Shares) Regulations, 2009

h) The Secur ities & Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Secu rities) Regulations, 1998

vi ) Other than fiscal, labour and environmental laws which are generally applicable to all manufacturing
companies, the following laws/acts are also, inter alia, applicable to the Company:

a) The Tea Ac t, 1953 and Rules there under

b) The Tea (Marketing) Control O rder, 2003

c) The Tea (Distribution & Expor t) Contro l Order, 2005

d) The Tea Waste Control Order, 1959

e) The Plantations Labour Act, 1951

f) The Assam Plantations Labour Rules, 1956

g) The Legal Metrology Ac t, 2009

h) The Food Safety And Standards Act, 2006

We have also examined compliance with the applicable c lauses of the fo llowing:

a) The Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

b) Provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelin es, Standards,  etc. mentioned above.

We fur ther repor t that

a) The Board  of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-executive Directors and Independent Directors. No changes in the composition
of the Board of Directors took place durin g the period under review.

b) Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists fo r seeking
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and obtain ing fur ther information and clarific ations on the agen da items before th e meeting
and for meaningful par ticipation at the meeting.

c) None of the directors in any meeting dissented on any resolution and hence there was no
instance of recording any dissenting member’s view in the minutes.

We fur th er repor t that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commen surate wi th
th e size and  operations o f th e C ompany to monitor  and  ensure complian ce with applicab le laws,
rules, regulations and gu idelines.

This repor t is to be read wi th our l etter of  even date wh ich is annexed as Annexure – 1 which forms
an integ ral par t of this repor t.

For MKB & Assoc iates
Company Secretaries
Manoj Kumar Banthia

(Par tner)
ACS no. 11470

Date:  26.05.2018 COP no. 7596
Plac e: Kolkata FRN: P2010WB042700
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Annexure - 1

To
The Members,
WARREN TEA LIMITED

Our repo r t of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. It is man agement’s respon sibility to identify the Laws,Rules, Regulations, Guidelines and D irections
which are applicable to the Company depen ding upon the in dustry in which it operates and to comply
and maintain those records with same in letter and in spirit.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on those records based on our audit.

2. We have f ollowed the audi t practices and process as were appropriate to ob tain reasonable assurance
about the correctness of th e contents of the secretarial reco rds. The verification was done on test basis
to ensu re th at co rrec t fac ts are reflected in sec retar ial records. We believe that the proc ess and
practices we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have n ot verified the correctness and appropriateness o f financial reco rds and Books of  Accounts
of the Company.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management’s Representation about th e comp liance of
Laws, Ru les, Regulations, Guidelines an d Directions an d happening even ts, etc.

5. The Secretarial Audit Repor t is neither an assurance as to th e future viability of the Company n or of the
efficacy or effectiveness with which th e management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For MKB & Assoc iates
Company Secretaries
Manoj Kumar Banthia

(Par tner)
ACS no. 11470

Date:  26.05.2018 COP no. 7596
Plac e: Kolkata FRN: P2010WB042700
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ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES

1. Outline of the Company’s Policy

The Compan y has framed a CSR Policy in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and it is p laced on the Company’s website.  Your Company has been committed to do business
while imp roving the quality of life of the workforce and  their families as well as the community and
society at large.

The Company is also deeply sensible of its responsibilities not only to its stakeholders  but also to the
society at large. The CSR initiative foc uses on-

 Eradication of hu nger and pover ty

 Health care and hygiene and sanitation

 Education including vocational skills an d livelihood enh ancement

 Gender, social and economic  equality

 Empowermen t of Women

 Care for sen ior citizens

 Envi ronmental sustainabi lity

 Protection of national h eritage, ar t and  culture

 Benefit o f armed forces veterans, war widows and their dependents

 Training for promotion of spor ts

 Contribution to funds approved by the Central Government

 Rural development

2. Composition of the Committee

The Compan y has a CSR Committee of directors c omprising of  Mrs S Barman as Chairperson and
Mrs A K Bindra, Mr Vinay K Goenka and  Mr S K Ghosh as Members with President-Legal & Company
Sec retary as i ts Secretary.

3. Average n et profit/(loss) o f the Company for last  three financ ial years — ` (91.95) Lakhs

4. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two percent of the amount as in item 3 above) —  NIL

5. Details of  Payments

(a) Total amount to be spent for the financ ial year — NIL

(b) Amount unspent — NIL
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(c)    Manner in which th e amount spent du ring the financial year is detail ed below:

Sl. CSR Sector in Projects or Am ount Am ount Cumulative Am ount
No. project or whi ch the programs outlay spent on expendi- spent:

activity project is (a) Local area (budge t) the pr ojects tur e upto Directly
ident ified cove red or other proj ect Sub heads the or

(b) Specify or 1.Direct repor ting through
the s tate programs expenditure period impleme-
and di strict wise on projects nti ng
where or programs agency
project or 2. Ove rheads
programs
were under
-taken

1. a) Educa ti on Educa ti on Howr ah,  ` 38.00 — ` 5.20 Chatrachhaya,
to less West Bengal  Lakhs Lakhs 4/B Little
privileged Russell
chil dren Street,

Kolk ata
700 071,
a NGO
registered
as a Trust.

  b) Educa ti on Educa ti on Chetla, Kolkata, ` 1.60 — ` 7.50 Women’s
to under West Bengal Lakhs Lakhs Coordinat ing
privileged per year Council
chil dren (WCC),5/1

Red Cross
Place,
Kolk ata
700 062,
a NGO.

2. Promoting Educa ti on Bokul,Near Bokul ` 36.00 — ` 5.00 Purna Bikash
Rural Tea Es tate’s Lakhs Lakhs Sans tha,
Educa ti on Hospi tal, appr ox. Bokul (Near

P.O. Lahowal, Bok ul T.E.
Dibrugarh, Hospi tal),
Assam P.O. Lahowal,

Dibrugarh,
Assam, a
registered
Charitable
Trust.
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(c)    Manner in which th e amount spent du ring the financial year is detail ed below:

Sl. CSR Sector in Projects or Am ount Am ount Cumulative Am ount
No. project or whi ch the programs outlay spent on expendi- spent:

activity project is (a) Local area (budge t) the pr ojects tur e upto Directly
ident ified cove red or other proj ect Sub heads the or

(b) Specify or 1.Direct repor ting through
the s tate programs expenditure period impleme-
and di strict wise on projects nti ng
where or programs agency
project or 2. Ove rheads
programs
were under
-taken

3. Construction Empower- Kolk ata, ` 1500.00 — ` 35.00 Dhanuka
of girl s’          ment of West Bengal Lakhs Lakhs Dhunseri
hostel Women excludi ng Founda tion,

cost of a registered
land Charitable

Trust

Total — `  52.70
Lakhs

6. As there has been a loss for the year with its consequential effect on cash flow, your Directors have decided
that it would be essential to conserve funds for the Company’s business and hence no contribution towards
Corporate Social Responsib ility activities c ould be made for the year.

7. The CSR Committee of the Company hereby confirms that the implementing and monitoring of CSR Policy,
is in compliance with CSR objectives an d Policy of the Company.

Vinay K Goenka Sonia Barman
Ch airman               Chairperson CSR  Committee
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Particulars of Employees

a) Information as per Rule 5(1) of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014

1) Th e Ratio of remun eration paid to the Ch airman  an d to the Managin g D irector to the median
remuneration of the employees of the Company for the Financial Year is 157:1  and 134:1 respectively.

2) Remuneration of Key Management Personnel inclu ding Whole-time Di rectors :

Names Percen tage increase in
Remuneration during 2017-18

compared to 2016-17

Vinay K Goen ka, Chairman 16.60

S K Ghosh, Managing D irector 17.09

S Roy, President–Legal & Compan y Secretary (8.14)

S K Mukhopadhyay, Chief Financial Officer 16.29

3) Median remuneration of the employees during the financial year 2017-18 increased by 11.49% over
that of financial year 2016-17.

4) Number of  permanent employees on  the rolls o f the Compan y as on 31. 03.2018 is 8704 wh ich
includes plantation workforce of 7827.

5) The average change in th e salaries of th e employees oth er than managerial  personnel du ring the
financial year 2017-18 is (13.28%). The average percentage of increase in managerial remuneration
for the f inancial year 2017-18 is 16.82. The salary of the managerial personnel is paid on the basis
of contractual agreement whereas the salary of other employees is non-con tractual.

6) All remuneration paid by the Company are in accordance with the Remuneration Policy of the Company.
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b)  Information as per Rule 5(2) of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

Sl. Name Des ignat ion Gross Qualifi cation Age Date  of             Last Employm ent held
No. Remuner- and (Years) Com mence- before joining the

ati on Exper ience ment of Company
(` in Lakhs) (Years) Employm ent Organizat ion Des ignat ion

1. Arora  U C President – 32.42 B Com 62 21.05.1984 Kanoi Executive–
Marketing (42) Planta tions Tea

Pvt. Ltd. Depar tment

2. Barua A Manager 14.72 B Com 54 14.03.1987 — —
(31)

3. * Bhattac- Manager 19.00 M Sc 58 15.07.1989 Jorhat Assis tant
haryya B (32) Gr oup Ltd. Manager

4. Ghosh S K Managi ng 129.86 B Com ( Hons), 64 02.05.1983 — Consultant
Director FCA

(43)

5. Goenka Chairman 151.98 B Sc (B otany) 59 19.04.1983 The Senior
Vinay K (42) Eriabarie Tea Executive

Co. Pvt. Ltd.

6. Goenka President 23.45 M A ( F&I) 35 15.09.2004 — —
Vivek (13)

7. Karmakar B Senior 20.86 B Com, 53 15.11.1996 M/s M . P. Senior
Manager- ACA Bazari  & Co. Audit
Finance & (25) Assis tant
Accounts
(Assam)

8. Mukhopad- Chief 25.13 B Com ( Hons), 64 11.05.2009 — Consultant
hyay  S K Financial FCA

Offi cer (40)

9. Roy S President – 27.55 B A (Hons), 62 15.07.1996 — Consultant
Legal & FCS, L I.B
Company (37)
Secretary

10. * Sinha A N General 27.29 M Com 56 15.04.1984 Murari Audit
Manager- (35) Agarwal  Assi stant
Assam & Com pany

Notes : (1)The gross remuneration shown above is subject to tax and comprises of salary, bonus,allowances, monetary
val ue of pe rqui sites ev alua ted as per I ncom e Tax Rules, Com pany ’s contr ibut ions  to Prov ident Fund,
Superannuation and Gr atuity Funds subject to the  relative Fund Rules.

(2)Appointments of Mr Vi nay K Goenka, Chairman and Mr S K Ghosh, Managing Director are contr actual;
all othe r appointments  are non-contr actual.

(3)Mr  Vinay K Goenka and Mr Vivek Goenka each holds more than 2% of the Equity S hares of the Company.
(4)Mr Vivek  Goenka is a r elative of Mr V inay K Goenka, Chairman and except for him none of the others is a

relativ e of any Director of the Company.
* Since left
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Management Discussion and Analysis Report

Regulation 34 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 stipulates disclosure under specific heads which are given in the following paragraphs and
which con tinue to be followed in the usual course of the Company’s business over the years in d iscussion
amongst the Directors and Senior Management Personnel.

(a) Industry Structure and Developments

Tea enjoys worldwide consumer preferen ce. India is the world’s second largest consumer and
second largest tea produc er, providing employment oppor tu nities, both direct and indirect, to more
than a mill ion people.

Tea has always been a vital par t of the country’s culture. This is an area where the country can take a
lot of pride in also becau se of its foreign exchange earnings with its consequ ential contribution to the
Company’s National Income. Tea is still the beverage of choice in India. Creative marketing and branding
has also elevated the status of tea and brough t it under the purview of a lifestyle choice.

(b) Opportunities and threats

Your Company’s product and vision focuses on a natural beverage which also finds itsel f in the
health an d wellness segment. Significant increase in commodity input costs may lead to a dilution
of margin s which can limi t the scope to innovate and expand. Tea is a valuable global agr icultural
commodity, both commercially and culturally. Assam, an agrarian state in  nor theast India, is the
largest tea growing region in the world an d the productivi ty (both in terms of quantity and  quality)
requires a specific range of enviro-climatic conditions. Climatic changes are occurring across the
globe, effects of which are also felt in this country. In the last decades, In dia has come down to lower
range in the expor t ladder due to stiff c ompetition mainly from Sri Lanka, Kenya and Chin a. Other
threats are weather related which are not in the control of the Industry. Nonetheless, good agricultural
practices can redu ce the effects of adverse climatic  conditions to some extent. Your C ompany
maintains the standards o f its produce bo th in the domestic as well as overseas markets, due to its
consisten t thrust on qual ity and best agr icultural practic es. Your Company’s estates are Rainforest
All iance, ISO  22000:2005 and  also  Trustea c er tif ied. In addition, Company’s In tegrated Pest
Management Policy relating to agro inputs is in conformi ty with the Plan t Protection Code of Tea
Board of India.

(c) Segment-wise or Product-wise Performance

The Company does not have any separate primary business segment as it sells only blac k tea in
bulk both in domestic and overseas markets.

(d) Outlook

Tea continues to be the most popular beverage in the country and is growing in significance as a health
drink.The industry continues to be affected by steadily rising input costs, including labour and welfare
costs.  Besides these, climate change is also a factor likely to affect growing conditions and truly the
quality and quantity of produce. Strategies should be adopted to infiltrate more into the market on the
strength of quality and thereby increase demand.  Your Di rectors continue in their emphasis on the
“Quality” of tea as well as maintaining strict watch on MRL norms so as to make your Company’s tea
a truly health drink.
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(e) Risks & Concerns

Weather, historically, has played an impor tant role in the success or failure of any agro hor ticultural
pursuits including plantations. With climatic changes, erratic rainfall and weather conditions, the tea
bushes get affected which takes time to recover. Increasing input costs including wages, social costs,
energy costs and other input costs remain a major constraint for the Indian Tea Industry. In the face of
fluctuating growing conditions coupled with increasing costs, what is called for are good agricultural
practices, an adaptive strategy to deal wi th climate chang e, suitable adaptations in the plantations
including mechanized harvesting together with pro-active marketing effor ts with a view to improving
the per fo rmance of the in dustry, of which  your Company is a par t.

(f) Internal Control Systems & their Adequacy

There are adequate intern al control systems at all levels of Management o f the Company. These are
reviewed from time to time and improved upon,  where required. The Company has implemented
internal control systems with a view to ensure that  assets are safeguarded and protected  against
losses an d transactions are recorded and repor ted correctly. These include comprehensive internal
audit by external Char tered Accountants besides checks carried out by the Cost Auditors, the Secretarial
Auditors and the Statutory Auditors durin g the course of their respective audits. Such systems are
commensu rate with the Company’s size an d nature of operations and provide reasonable assurance
with regard to reliable data, compliances, securing its assets from unauthorized use or loss and ensuring
that operations are carried out in consonance with the Company’s policies. The different sets of auditors
periodically visit the Company’s units, their repor ts are looked into by the Management and by the
Audit Committee for effec ting corrective action/improvement as may be cal led for.

(g) Financial Discussion on Performance with respect to Operational Performances

Climatic conditions durin g the year under  review continued  to fall shor t o f the levels con ducive to
result in desired quality and quantity o f the crop produ ced. The Company’s revenue improved from
that of the previous year, which contribu ted to improvement in the bottom-line for the year under
review. However, the Company continues with its focus in improvement both qualitative and quantitative
terms  an d continues to f ollow good govern ance practices across all its operations.

(h) Material Developments in Human Resources/Industrial Relations Front including number of people
employed

Human resources are the most valuable assets of the Company and thus adequate care is taken by the
Company for their development and wel l being. Tea being an essentially  labour  intensive  industry,
the employees are the mainstay of its operations. All estates of your Company are cer tified under the
Rainforest Alliance as well as Trustea indicating firm commitment towards sustainability as well as
workers’ health, hygiene and safety. It is your Company’s endeavour to p rovide safe, healthy and
sustainab le work environment in all the estates. Your Company deeply appreciates the per formance
and cooperation of the employees for the year and looks fo rward to maintain  cordial relations in the
years to  come. Your Company continues wi th its endeavours for ongoing training at variou s levels
as well as with its efforts to bring down absenteeism. Your Company believes in employee empowerment
across the entire organization in order to achieve organ izational effectiveness.
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

1. Company’s Philosophy on Code of Governance

The Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance is aimed at efficient conduct of its affairs. Your Board
of Directors keenly suppo r t the principles of Corporate Governance. Your C ompany believes that good
Corporate Governance emerges from the application of the best and sound management practices and
compliance with laws coupled w ith adherence to the highest standards o f professionalism an d business
ethics; great emph asis is placed on transparency in decision making process, integrity, fairness, honesty,
accountability in dealings with its dealers, employees, customers, business associates, government and
all its stakeholders. The labour and management practices are also followed in conformity with law and
also for welfare of the employees so as to aim at optimum economic utilization of resources. The Company’s
overall phi losophy is that of excellence.

2. Board of Directors

At present the Board of your Company comprises of a Chairman, a Managin g Director and f ive Non-
executive Independent Directors (includin g two Woman Direc tors). Par ticulars of the Directors as on
31st March, 2018 and attendance of each Directors at the meeting of the Board held during the year and at
the last Annual General Meeting are given below:

Name Category Attendance Directorships Committee Positions
in other in other companies

companies

At Board At last As As
Meetin gs AGM Chairman Member

Mr Vinay K Goenka Executive Director 5 Yes — — —
(Chai rman)

Mr S K Ghosh Executive Director 5 Yes — — —
(Managing Director)

Mr S Bhoopal Non-executive 5 Yes 7 — —
Independent Director

Mr N Dutta Non-executive 2 Yes 1 — —
Independent Director

Mr L  K Halwasiya Non-executive 4 No 1 — —
Independent Director

Mrs A K Bindra Non-executive 4 No 1 — —
Independent Director

Mrs S Barman Non-executive 4 No — — —
Independent Director
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Notes :
i) There is no inter-se relationship between any of the D irectors of the Company.

ii ) Directorships and Committee Memberships exclude Directorships and Committee Memberships of
Warren Tea Limited.

During the year under review, five Board Meetings were held on 30th May, 2017, 30th August, 2017,
18th September, 2017, 30th November, 2017 and 8th February, 2018.

The maximum interval betw een any two consecutive Meetings did not exceed 120 days.

Mr N Dutta holds 10 Equity Shares and Mr S Bhoopal holds 1 Equity Share in the Company.  The Company
has not issued any con ver tible instruments.

Mrs A K Bindra, Mr L K Halwaisya and Mrs S Barman do not hold  any share in the Company.

3. Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of th e Board as on 31st March, 2018 c omprised of Mr S Bhoopal, Mr N Dutta and
Mr L  K Halwasiya, Non-executive In dependent Di rectors who are persons of  standing  in th e indu stry
having experience and exper tise to carry ou t their obligations with necessary adequate inputs from the
Whole-time Directors. Mr S Bhoopal is the Chai rman of the Audit Committee.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee broadly cover the areas specified in Regulation 18(3) read
with Schedule II, Part – C of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 which are briefly described
below:

a) Review internal control systems, nature and scope of audit as well as post audit disc ussions;

b) Review quar terly, half-yearly and annual financial statements with par ticular reference to matters to
be included in the Directors’ Responsibility Statement to be inc luded in the Board ’s Repor t;

c) Evaluation of internal f inancial control  and risk manag ement systems an d ensure compliance with
internal control systems;

d) Recommen d to the Board on any matter relating to financ ial management,  including audit repor t;

e) Oversee C ompany’s financial repor ting process and disclosure of financial inf ormation;

f) Recommendation of appointment and remuneration of  auditors;

g) Review per formance of statu tory and internal auditors;

h) Review with the management and monitor the Auditor’s independence, per formance of Statutory and
Internal Auditors and adequacy of the internal control systems and effectiveness of audit process;

i) Approval o r any subsequent modification of transactions of the C ompany with related par ties;

j) Valuation  of under takings or assets of the C ompany wherever n ecessary;
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k) Monitorin g the end use of  funds raised th rough public off ers and related matters;

l) Approval of appointment o f CFO after assessing the qualif ication, experience and backgrou nd of the
candidate;

m) Oversee the establishmen t of Vigil Mechanism for Directo rs and employees to repor t concern about
unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation of Company’s Code of Conduct or Ethics Policy.

Du rin g the year un der  review, fi ve Meetin gs of  th e Aud it Committee w ere held on  30th May, 2017,
30th August,  2017, 18th September, 2017, 30th November, 2017 and 8th Feb ruary, 2018.

The composition and atten dance of the members of the Audit Committee are as follows:

Name Position Held No. of Meetings
Held Attended

Mr S Bhoopal Chai rman 5 5
Mr N Dutta Member 5 2

Mr L  K Halwasiya Member 5 4

The Chief  Financial Officer  and the representatives of the Statutory, Cost and Internal Auditors attend the
Meeting whenever required. The President-Legal & Company Secretary continues as the Secretary to the
Committee.  Mr S Bh oopal atten ded the last An nual  Gen eral  Meetin g held on 11th September, 2017 as
Chairman  of the Audit Committee.

4. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Th e Nomination and Remun eration Committee of  the Board as on  31st March , 2018 compr ised of
Mr S Bhoopal, Mrs S Barman and Mr N Dutta, all of whom are In dependent Directors. Mr S Bhoopal is the
Chairman of the Nomination and  Remuneration Committee and the President -Legal & Company Secretary
is the Secretary to the Committee. During 2017-18 the Nomin ation and Remun eration Committee met on
3rd  November, 2017, 8th February, 2018 and 12th March, 2018.

The details of meetings held and attended by the Directors during the year 2017-18 are as under:

Name No. of Meetings
Held Attended

Mr S Bhoopal 3 3
Mr N Dutta 3 2
Mrs S Barman 3 3

The terms of reference of the Nomination an d Remuneration C ommittee inter-al ia, include the f ollowing:

i) To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a Director
an d recommen d to the Board policies relating  to  th e remuneration of the Di rectors, Key Managerial
Personnel and other employees.
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ii ) To formulate the criteria f or evaluation of Independent Directors and  the Board.  The said Policy
contains evaluation cri teria for evalu ation of all Di rectors.

ii i) To devise a policy on Board Diversity.

iv) To identif y and access poten tial in dividu als wi th respect to thei r skill s, exper tise, attr ibutes for
appointment, removal, reappointment of Directors and recommend  to the Board of D irectors.

Details of remuneration paid to the Executive Directors during the year under review are given below:

Name Mr Vinay K Goenka Mr S K Ghosh
(Chai rman) (Managing Director)
( ̀  in Lakhs) ( ̀  in Lakhs)

Salary 43.20 32.40
Contributions to Provident,
Gratuity and  Other Funds 16.47 13.86

Bonus 43.20 32.40

Other Benefits 49.12 51.20

Total 151.99 129.86

A  New Service Agreement with Mr Vinay K Goenka as Chairman of the Compan y for a period o f 3 years
with effect from 1st April, 2016, was approved at the Annual General Meeting held on 1st August, 2016. As
the remun eration is within  the amended limi ts of Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013, no approval of
the Central Government is required. The C ompany also has a separate new Service Agreement with Mr
S K Ghosh , Managing Director of the Company for a period of 3  years  with  eff ect  from  1st Ap ril, 2017
which was approved by the Shareholders at the Annual General Meeting held  on 11th September, 2017.
There is no severance  compensation  other  than  six  months   remuneration in absence of any notice, the
period being six months in writing for both the Chairman and the Managing Director, none of whom are entitled
to any Stoc k Option or Per fo rmance Linked Inc entive. Only Sitting Fees for attending the meetin gs of the
Board and Committees thereof are paid to the Non-executive Directors. Par ticulars of sitting fees paid to the
Non-exec utive Directors during the year 2017-18 are as under:

Name Board Fees Committee Fees Total Fees
( ̀  ) ( ̀  ) ( ̀  in Lakhs)

Mr S Bhoopal 25750 77250 1.03

Mr N Dutta 10750 20750 0.32

Mr L  K Halwasiya 20750 25750 0.47

Mrs A K Bindra 20000 46500 0.66

Mrs S Barman 20000 20000 0.40
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The criteria of making payments to Non-executive Directors has been put up on the  website of the Company
at webl ink : http://www.warrentea.com/Documents/nomination_remuneration_policy.pdf  .

5. Stakeholders Relationship Committee

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee is responsible for the satisfactory redressal of investor’s complaints
and recommends for overall  improvements in  the quality of investor  services. The Committee presently
comprises of Mr S Bhoopal as Chairman an d Mrs A K  Bindra, Mr Vinay K Goenka and Mr S K Ghosh as
Members with Mr S Roy, President-Legal &  Company Secretary as the Secretary.

Share Transfer formalities are complied with the power to approve the same being delegated jo intly and
severally to Mr Vinay K Goenka, Mr S K Ghosh and  Mr S Roy.

Mr S Roy,  President-Legal & Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer.

During th e year under review, the Committee had seven meetings which were held on 7th Apr il, 2017,
16th June, 2017, 3rd November, 2017, 27th November, 2017, 22nd December, 2017, 29th January, 2018
and 28th February, 2018.

Mr S Bhoopal attended th e last Annual General Meeting on  11th September,  2017 as Chairman of the
Stakeholders Relationship Committee.

E-mail ID  pursuant to Regu lation 46 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Ob ligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015: investors@warren tea.com  .

The detai led par ticulars of investors’ complaints handled by the Company an d its Registrar and Share
Transfer  Agent during the year are as under:

No. of complaints remaining unresolved as on 01.04.2017 : Ni l

No. of complaints received du ring the year and dealt with : One

No. of complaints pending as on 31st March, 2018 : Ni l

No. of pending share transf ers as on 31st March, 2018 : Ni l

6. Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee of the Board is composed of  Mr S K Ghosh, Managing Di rector, as
Chairman and Mr L K Halwasiya and Mrs A K Bindra, Independent Directors, Mr U C Arora, President-
Marketin g and Mr S K Mu khopadhyay,  Ch ief  Finan cial O fficer ; Mr S Roy, President-Legal & Company
Secretary is the Secretary of the Committee. During 2017-18, the Committee met once during th e year on
16th Marc h, 2018 and all Members of the Committee attended the same.

7. Meeting of Independent Directors

The Company’s Independent Directors had met twice during the year without the presence of  the Non-
In dependen t Di rec tors and  the Management Team to discharge duties enjo ined  on  them. All the
Independen t Directors were p resent in both the meetings.

http://www.warrentea.com/Documents/nomination_remuneration_policy.pdf
mailto:investors@warrentea.com
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8. General Body Meetings

Location and time where last three Annual General Meetings w ere held:

Date Location Time

26th September, 2015 G S Ruia Memorial Complex at 11.00 AM
Deohall Tea Estate, P O Hoogrijan,
Dist. Tinsukia, Assam 786 601

1st August, 2016 G S Ruia Memorial Complex at 10.30 AM
Deohall Tea Estate, P O Hoogrijan,
Dist. Tinsukia, Assam 786 601

11th September, 2017 G S Ruia Memorial Complex at 10.30 AM
Deohall Tea Estate, P O Hoogrijan,
Dist. Tinsukia, Assam 786 601

Three Special Resolutions were passed at the Annual General Meeting held on 26th September, 2015  for the
purpose of:

i) Payment of remuneration to Mr Vinay K Goenka, Chairman, in the absence or inadequacy of profits in
any year.

ii ) Payment of  remun eration to Mr S K Ghosh,  Manag ing Di rector, in the absence o r  inadequac y of
profits in  any year.

ii i) To borrow in excess of paid u p capital and free reserves.

Three Special Resolutions were passed at the Annual General Meeting held on 1st August, 2016 for the
purpose of:

1) Paymen t of  ful l c ontractu al r emu neration  (in clu ding  bon us) for  2015-16 to Mr Vinay K Goen ka
(DIN 00043124).

2) Payment of full contractual remuneration (including bonus) for 2015-16 and 2016-17 to Mr S K Ghosh
(DIN 00042335).

3) Reappointment and remuneration payable to Mr Vinay K Goenka (DIN  00043124) as  Chairman for
3 years from 1st April , 2016.

One Special Resolution was passed at the Annual General Meeting held on 11th September, 2017 for
the purpose of reappointment and remuneration payable to Mr Subhajit Kumar Ghosh (DIN 00042335)
as Managing Director for 3 years from 1st Apr il, 2017.

No Special Resolution is proposed to be condu cted through postal ballot.

Resume’  and other information on the Directors appointed or reappointed as required under Regulation
36(3) o f the Sec uri ti es and  Exch ang e Board o f Ind ia (Listing  Ob lig ation s and Disclosu re
Requirements) Regulations,  2015 is given in  the Notice of the Annual General  Meeting.
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9. Disclosures

a) Related party matters – The Company has not entered into any transactions of material nature with its
promoters, directors, the management, subsidiary companies or relatives, etc. that have potential
conflict with its interest during the year u nder review. However, the list of related par ty relationships
and transactions as required to be disclosed in accordance with Accounting Standard as provided in
the (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 has been given in Note 30(22) to the Financial
Statements for th e year ended 31st March, 2018. As required under Regulation 46 o f Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the
Company has formulated a Related Party Transactions Policy which has been put up on the website
of the Company at weblink: http ://www.warrentea.com/Documents/relatedpar ty.pdf  .

b) No penal ties/strictures have been imposed on the Company by any regulatory authority for non-
complian ce of any laws o r any matter relating to capital markets durin g the last three years.

c) Vigil Mechanism/Whistle-Blower Policy – The Company has established a Whistle-Blower Policy/Vigil
Mechanism for Directors and employees to repor t genuine concerns regarding unethical behaviour,
actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct and Ethics Policy. The said
mechanism also provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of persons who use such
mechanism and makes provision for direct access to the chairperson of the Audit Committee in
appropriate and exceptional cases. It is affirmed that no person has been denied access to the Audit
Committee during the year under review.

d) The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements under Schedule II of Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015. The
Company continues in its effor ts on improvement, consolidation and documentation of methods of
internal  control for fin ancial repor tin g and its effectiveness.

e) The Company has complied with the requirements specified in Regulation 17 to 27 including some of
the Discretionary Requirements and clauses (b) to (i) of Sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

f) During the year under review  there are no shares in the demat su spense account or unclaimed
suspense account of the Company.

10. Familiarization Programme for Independent Directors

The Company continues in its effor ts to familiarize Independent Directors with the Company, its business,
the industry and their inter face with the Company. To that end the Independent Directors periodically visit
the Compan y’s tea estates and  its Registered Off ice in  Assam.  The C ompany’s Policy of conduc ting
th e Familiari zation Prog ramme has been  d isc losed on th e w ebsite o f the Company at web link  :
http://www.warrentea.com/Docu ments/familiarisation.pdf  .

http://www.warrentea.com/Documents/relatedparty.pdf
http://www.warrentea.com/Documents/familiarisation.pdf


54

Annexure ‘G’ to the Directors’ Report (Continued)

11. Means of Communication

a) Unaudited  half-yearly and  quar terly resul ts alongwith Limited Review Repo r t as well as th e Audited
Annual Results are submitted to the Stock Exchanges after they are approved by the Board of Directors
in compliance with Regulations 33 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and published in newspapers namely, Nor th East
Times/Amar Asom having wide circulation in Assam, where the Registered Office of the Company is
situate and in Business Standard in terms of Regulation 47 of the said Regulations. The quar terly
results are simultaneously posted on the website of the Company, www.warrentea.com . Results are
also sen t to the Stock Exchanges for display on their w ebsites.

b) During th e year, the Long  Term Rating for  the Company’s L ine of Credit has been revised to [ICRA]
BBB+ from [ICRA]A and the Shor t Term Rating to [ICRA]A2 from [ICRA]A1.

c) The document on Management Discussion and Analysis Repor t is annexed to the Directors’ Repor t.

12.    General Shareholder Information

a) Annual General Meeting : date, time an d venue:

10th September, 2018 at 10.30 am at the G S Ruia Memorial Complex, Deohall Tea Estate,  P O Hoogrijan,
Dist. Tinsukia, Assam 786 601.

b) Financial Year : 1st April 2017 to 31st March 2018

c) Dividend Payment Date : Not App licable

d) Listing on Stock Exchanges and
Stock Codes : The shares of the Company are

listed at the Stock Exch ang es
given hereinbelow  :

Stock Exchange Stock Code

(i) BSE Limited 508494
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street,
For t, Mumbai 400 023

(i i) The Calcu tta Stock Exchang e Limited 33002
7 Lyons Range, Kolkata 700 001

Listin g Fees as prescr ibed  have been paid  to the aforesaid Stock Exch anges up to
31st March, 2019.

ISIN Code No. allotted by NSDL & CDSL : INE712A01012

http://www.warrentea.com
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e) Stock Price Data for 2017-18

i) BSE Limited

Month High (`) Low ( )̀

April, 2017 144.50 121.85
May, 2017 144.00 118.00
June, 2017 125.00 112.00
July, 2017 125.00 105.00
August, 2017 122.00 101.25
September, 2017 117.90 100.40
October, 2017 122.00 105.30
November, 2017 183.25 112.45
December, 2017 181.80 131.00
January, 2018 139.50 115.60
February, 2018 122.80 103.00
March, 2018 120.00 102.70

ii ) The Calc utta Stock Exchange Limited  :  No Trade
f) Stock Per formance:

Share Price Per formance in comparison to BSE SENSEX : (April, 2017 to March, 2018)

Company’s Share Price on 01.04.2017 : ` 129.00  (Open)
on 31.03.2018 : ` 105.50  (Close)

Change : (-)  18.22%
Indices on 01.04.2017 : 29737.73 (Open)

on 31.03.2018 : 32968.68 (Close)
Change : (+)   10.86%

g) Share Transfer System:
All  transfers,  transmissions or  transpositions o f the shares of the Company are c ompleted in
comp liance with the requiremen t of Regulation 40 of  Securities and Exchange Board  of  India
(Listing Ob ligation s an d Disclosure Requiremen ts) Reg ulations, 2015. Share transfer requests,
valid an d complete  in all respects are normally processed  within a maximum period of 15 days.
The shares of the  Company are compulsorily traded in dematerialized form for all shareholders with
effect from 28th August, 2000.

h) Dematerial ization of shares & liquidity:

CB Management Services (P) Limited having their office at P-22 Bondel Road, Kolkata 700 019 are
th e Reg istrars an d Share Tran sfer Ag ents of th e C ompan y.  As on 31st March, 2018, 96.49% of
the total number of shares relating to 52.27% shareholders stood demater ialized.

i) Outstanding GDR/ADR/Warrants or any conver tible instruments: No such instruments have been issued.

j) Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities: Subject to usual market risks;
no hedgin g activities under taken.
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k)   (A)  Distribu tion of Shareholding as on 31st March, 2018:

Break-up of No. of Percentage of No. of Equity Percentage of
Equity Sh ares held Shareh olders Shareh olders Shares held Equity Shares

1 - 500 10788 96.57 868224 7.27
501 - 1000 219 1.96 163792 1.37
1001 - 2000 72 0.64 105512 0.88
2001 - 3000 28 0.25 70423 0.59

3001 - 4000 8 0.07 28842 0.24
4001 - 5000 10 0.09 45409 0.38
5001 - 10000 14 0.13 109053 0.91
10001 - 50000 19 0.17 394761 3.30

50001 - 100000 3 0.03 257546 2.16
100001 and above 10 0.09 9907242 82.90

Total 11171 100. 00 11950804 100. 00

     (B)  Shareholding Pattern as on 31st Marc h, 2018 :

Category No. of Percentage of
Shares held Shareholding

A Promoters’ Holding
1. Promoters

- Indian Promoters 8809999 73.72
- Foreign Promoters 106211 0.89

2. Persons actin g in concer t — —
Total (A) 8916210 74.61

B Non-Promoters’ Holding
1. Institutional Investors

a) Mutual Fun ds and UTI 42 —
b) Banks, Financial Insti tutions,

Insurance Companies,
(Cen tral/State Government
Institu tions/Non-Government
Institu tions) 438 —

c) FIIs — —
Sub-Total 480 —

2. Oth ers
a) Private Corporate Bodies 965996 8.08
b) Individuals 2068118 17.31

Sub-Total 3034114 25.39
Total (B) 3034594 25.39

Grand Total (A+B) 11950804 100.00
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l) Plant locations : The Compan y owns seven Tea Estates in the Sub-districts of Assam as under:

Tea Estates Sub-districts

Deoh all Tingri

Hatimara Tingri
Balijan  Nor th Panito la

Sealko tee Panito la

Du amara Doom Dooma

Rupai Doom Dooma

Tara Doom Dooma

      m) Address for Correspondence :

Corporate Office : Suvira House
4B, Hunger f ord Street
Kolkata 700 0 17
Tel No. : 2287 2287
Fax No.: 2289 0302
E-mail ID  : investors@warrentea.com

Signatures to Annexures A to G

Ko lkata Vinay K Goenka
26th May, 2018 Ch airman

mailto:investors@warrentea.com


58

Annexure ‘G’ to the Directors’ Report (Continued)

DECLARATION BY THE CEO ON AFFIRMATION OF COMPLIANCE

WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT OF THE COMPANY

To the Members of

Warren Tea Limited

Pursuant to  Regulation 34 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and  Disclosure
Requ irements) Regu lations, 2015 with th e Stock Exchang es, I h ereby declare that al l Direc tors of  the
Company an d Members of the Man agement Staff (other  than those who have retired or resigned from the
services of  the Company) have affirmed compliance wi th the Code of Condu ct of the Company, f or the year
ended 31st March, 2018.

Vinay K Goenka
26th May, 2018 Chairman



59

Annexure to the Directors’ Report (Continued)

Auditors’ Certificate regarding compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance

To the Members of

Warren Tea Limited

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Warren Tea  Limited (‘the
Company’), for the year ended March 31, 2018 as per Regulations 17-27, clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2)
and paragraphs C, D and E of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing Regulations’).

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our examination
was limited to procedures and implementation thereof adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of
the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is n either an Audit n or an expression o f opinion on the Financial
Statements of the C ompany.

We conducted our examination in accordance with the Guidance Note on Repor ts or Cer tificates for Special
Purposes (Revised 2016) issued by the Institute of Char tered Accountants of India. The Guidance Note requires
that we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Char tered Accountants
of India. We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control(SQC) 1,
Quality Control for Firms that Per form Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and other Assurance
and Related Services Engagements.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and ac cording to the explanations given to us, we cer tify that
the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as specified in Regulations 17 to 27,
clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 and paragraphs C, D and E of Schedule V of the Listing
Regulations, as appl icable.

We state that such complianc e is neither an assurance as to the future viability o f the Company nor as to the
efficien cy or effectiven ess with which the Management h as conducted the affairs of the Company.

For B M Chatrath & Co LLP
Char tered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 301011E/E300025
Sukhpreet S. Sidhu

Plac e: Kolkata Partner
Date: 26 May, 2018 Membership Number 052187
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of

Warren Tea Limited

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

We have audited the acc ompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of Warren Tea  Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(includin g other comprehensive income), th e Statement of C hanges in Equity and the Statemen t of Cash
Flows f or the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting  policies an d other explanatory
information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) wi th respect to th e preparation of  these standalone Ind AS financ ial statements that give
a true an d fair view of the financial position, financial per f ormance including other comprehensive income,
cash flow s and changes in equity of the Company in accordanc e with the Indian  Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) presc ribed under Section 133 of the Ac t read with Companies (Indian Acc ounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended, and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.

This responsibi lity also includes maintenance of adequ ate accoun ting records in acco rdance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irr egularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judg ments and
estimates that are reason able and p rudent; and  design, implementation and  main tenan ce of adequ ate
internal f inancial controls,  that were operating effectively for  ensuring the accu racy and completeness of the
accounting records,  relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone Ind AS f inancial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone Ind AS financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions o f the Act, the ac counting and audi ting standards an d matters
which are required to be inc luded in the audit repor t under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there
under an d the order issued under Section 143(11) of the Act.

We conduc ted our audit of the standalone In d AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of  the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and per form the audit to obtain reason able assurance about whether the standalone
Ind AS financial statements are free from material  misstatement.

An audit involves per formin g procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amou nts and disclosures in the
standalone Ind As financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether
due to f raud or error. In making those risk assessmen ts, the audito r considers internal financial  control
relevant to the Company’s preparation of the standalone Ind AS financ ial statements that give a true and



61

Auditors’ Report (Continued)

fair  view in order to design audit p rocedures that are appropriate in the circ umstan ces. An  audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting
estimates made by the Company’s directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the standalone
Ind AS financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have ob tained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit op inion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to th e best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalon e Ind AS financial  statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so  required
and give a true and fair  view in conformity with the ac counting princip les generally accepted in India, of the
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2018, and its loss, total comprehensive income, th e changes
in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on th at date.

Other Matter

The financial information of the Company for the year  ended March 31, 2017 and the transition date opening
balance sheet as at April 1 , 2016 included in  these standalone Ind AS financial statements, are based on the
previously issued statutory financial statements for the years ended March 31, 2017 and March  31, 2016
prepared in accordance wi th the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended) which were
audited by us, on which we expressed an  unmodified opin ion dated May 30, 2017 and May 26, 2016
respec tively. Th e adjustments to those financial statemen ts for the differences in accou nting prin ciples
adopted by the Company on transition to the Ind  AS have been audi ted by us.

Our opinion is not qualified  in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal And Regulatory Requirements

i) As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Repor t) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of sub-sec tion (11) of section 143 of the Act,  we give in the “Annexure A” statement on the
matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

ii) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we repo r t that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief  were necessary fo r the purposes of our audit;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Compan y so far
as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Pro fit and Loss in cluding other comprehensive inc ome, the
Statemen t of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt wi th by this Repor t are in
agreement with the books of  account.

d) In our opinion, the af oresaid stan dalone Ind AS financial statements c omply with the Ind ian
Accounting  Standards specified  under Section 133 o f the Act.
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e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2018, taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2018, from
being appointed as a direc tor in terms of Section 164 (2) of  the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial repor ting of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Repor t in “Annexure B”.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Repor t in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Compan y has disclosed th e impact of pendin g litigations on i ts financial position in its
standalone Ind AS financial statements as referred to in Note No. 30 (11) to the fin ancial
statements.

ii. The Compan y did not have any long-term contrac ts including derivative contracts as at March
31, 2018 for which there were any mater ial foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which  were required to be transferred to  the Investor Educ ation and
Protection Fund by the C ompany during the year.

For B M Chatrath & Co LLP
Char tered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 301011E/E300025

Sukhpreet S. Sidhu
Plac e: Kolkata Partner
Date: 26 May, 2018 Membership Number 052187
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‘ANNEXURE - A’ TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Annexure referred to in our  Independent Auditors’ Repor t to th e members of the Company on the
standalon e Ind AS financial  statements for the year ended March 31, 2018 we repor t that:

1. In respect of fixed  assets:

  (a) The C ompany has maintained proper records showin g full par ticulars, including quantitative details and
situation of fixed assets.

  (b) The fixed assets were physically veri fied during the year by the Management in a phased programme
which in  our opinion provides for physic al verification of all the fixed assets at reasonable intervals. And as
per the information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

  (c)  Ac cording to the inf ormation and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records o f the company, the title deed of immovable proper ties are held in the name of the Company as at the
Balance Sh eet date.

2. As exp lained to us, the inventory of the Company has been  physically verif ied during the year by the
Managemen t. In our opinion,  the frequency of  such verification  is reasonable an d no material disc repancies
were noticed on such veri fication.

3. The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecu red to companies,  firms, limited liability
par tnersh ips or other par ties covered in th e register maintained under section  189 of the Companies Act,
2013 Hen ce, clause 3(iii )(a), (iii)(b) & (iii)(c) of the order is not applicable to the company.

4. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of loans, guarantees,
investmen ts and security,  the company has complied with th e provisions of section 185 and 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

5. The Company has not acc epted any deposits from the public,  hence the clause 3 (v) of the order is not
applicable to the c ompany.

6. We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained  by the Company pursuant to the rules made
by the Central Government f or the maintenanc e of cost records under section 148 of the Act, and are of the
opinion th at prima facie, th e prescribed accou nts and records have been made and maintained.

7. (a) Ac cording to the in formation and exp lanations given to  us and the records of the Company examined
by us, in  our opinion, the Company has been regular in deposi ting the undisputed statutory dues including
Provident Fund, Employees State Insu rance, Income tax, Sales-tax, Service tax, Goods & Service Tax,
Customs du ty, Excise duty, Value added tax, Cess and other statu tory dues as applicable, with the appropriate
author ities.

According  to the information and explanation s given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of the
above items were in arrears as at March 31, 2018 for a period exceeding six months from the date they
became payable.

  (b)  Ac cording to the inf ormation and explanation given to u s and the records of the Company  examined by
us, the par tic ulars of dues of Income-Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Goods & Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise
duty, Value added tax as at March 31, 2018,  which have not been deposited on  account of Dispu te are as
follows:
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Name of the Nature of Amount Period to Forum where
Statute the dues (Rs. in Lacs) which the dispute is pending

amount relates

Income Tax Income Tax 33.53 2014 - 2015 Deputy
Act, 1961 Commissioner

of Income Tax

0.09 2012 – 2013 Commissioner of
Income Tax
- Appeals

24.98 2013 - 2014 Commissioner of
Income Tax
- Appeals

Central Sales Assam General 1.56 2008 - 2009 Deputy
Tax Act, 1956 Sales Tax & Commissioner of

Central Sales Tax 66.60 1998 - 1999 Taxes

Assam General 1.71 1997 - 1998 Commissioner of
Sales Tax & Taxes
Central Sales Tax 4.15 1998 - 1999

Assam General Assam General 9.71 2004 – 2005 Gauhati High Cour t
Sales Tax Sales Tax &
Act, 1993 Central Sales Tax 0.94 1997 - 1998

6.95 2004 – 2005

Assam Land Land Revenue Tax 28.33 2003-2004 Additional Deputy
Revenue to 2007-2008 Commissioner
Reassessment
Act, 1936

8. According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanations given to us,
the Company has not defaul ted in repayment of dues to any banks at the Balan ce Sheet date. Th e Company
had neith er any outstandin g debenture nor h as it issued any debenture during the year.

9. The Company has not raised money by way o f initial public o ffer or fur ther public offer (inclu ding debt
instrumen ts). Fur ther, mon ey raised by way of term loans, on an overall basis,  have been applied for the
purposes f or which they were obtained.

10.  During the course of our examination  of the books and records of  the company and according to the
information and explanations given to us, w e have neither come across any instances of material  fraud on
or by the Company by its of ficers or employees being noticed o r repor ted during  the year, nor have we been
informed o f such case by the Management.
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11. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of th e records
of the Company, the C ompany has paid/provided fo r Managerial Remuneration in accordance w ith the
requisite approvals of Shareholders/Central  Government as man dated by the provisions of Section  197 read
with Schedu le V to the Companies Act,2013.

12. The company is not a Nidhi Company as per the provisions of section 406 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013.
Hence, clause 3 (xii) of the order is not applicable to the company.

13. According to the records of the Company examined by us an d the information  and explanations given to
us, all transactions with the related par ties are in complianc e with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act,
2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the
applicable Indian Ac counting Standards.

14. The c ompany has not made any preferential allotment or pr ivate placement of  shares or fully or par tly
paid debentures during the year under review. Hence, clause 3  (xiv) of the order is not applicab le to the
company.

15. The c ompany has not entered into any non -cash transaction s with directors o r persons connected to its
directors, and hence provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

16. The company is not required to register itself under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Ac t, 1934.

For B M Chatrath & Co LLP
Char tered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 301011E/E300025

Sukhpreet S. Sidhu
Plac e: Kolkata Partner
Date: 26 May, 2018 Membership Number 052187
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‘ANNEXURE – B’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial repor ting of Warren Tea Limited (“the Company”)
as of March 31, 2018 in conjunction with ou r audit of the standalone Ind AS f inancial statemen ts of the
Company fo r the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The C ompany’s management is responsible for establishin g and main taining in ternal fin ancial con trols
based on the internal control over financial  repor ting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential  components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial  Controls
over Financial Repor ting issued by the Institute of Char tered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities
include th e desig n, implementation an d main tenance of adequate internal financial c ontrols that were
operating  effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its busin ess, including adh erence to
company’s policies, the saf eguarding of its assets, the preven tion and detection of frauds and er rors, the
accuracy and completeness of the acc ounting records, and  the timely preparation of rel iable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsib ility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal fin ancial c ontrols over financial
repor ting  based on our aud it. We conducted  our audit in acc ordance with the Guidance Note on  Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Repor ting (the “Gu idance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing,
issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to  the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Gu idance Note require that we
comply wi th ethical requi rements and plan and per form the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal f inancial controls over financial repor ting was establ ished and maintain ed and if
such con trols operated effectively in  all material r espects.

Our audit involves per forming  procedures to ob tain aud it evidence about the adequacy of  the internal
financial  controls system over financial repor ting and thei r operating effec tiveness.

Our audit of internal financial controls over financial repor ting included obtaining an understanding of
internal f inancial controls over financial repor ting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing an d evaluating the design and operatin g effectiveness of  internal control based on the assessed risk.
The p rocedures selected depen d on the auditor ’s judgement, inc luding the assessment of  the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud o r error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have ob tained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opin ion on the Company’s internal financ ial controls system over financial r epor ting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financ ial control over f inancial repor tin g is a process designed to provide reasonable
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assurance regard ing the rel iability o f financial  repor ting  and the preparation of financial statemen ts for
external purposes in acco rdance with generall y accepted accounting princip les. A company’s internal
financial  control over fin ancial repor ting includes those pol icies and procedu res that:

(1) per tain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance wi th generally accepted accounting pr inciples, and that receipts and expenditures
of the company are being made only in accordance with author isations of the management and directors of
the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assu rance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial repor ting, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and no t be detected. Also, p rojections of any evaluation of the internal  financial controls over financial
repor ting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial repor ting may
become in adequate because o f changes in cond itions, or that the degree of compl iance with the po licies or
procedu res may deter iorate.

Opinion

In our opin ion, and to the best o f our information and  according to the exp lanations given to us the Company
has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial repor ting and such
internal financial controls over financial repor ting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2018, based on
the internal control over f inancial repor ting  criteria established by the Compan y considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Repor ting  issued by the In stitute of Char tered Accountants of India.

For B M Chatrath & Co LLP
Char tered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 301011E/E300025

Sukhpreet S. Sidhu
Plac e: Kolkata Partner
Date: 26 May, 2018 Membership Number 052187
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BALANCE SHEET
as at 31st March, 2018 As at As at As at

31st March, 31st March, 1st April,
Notes 2018 2017 2016

 ̀   in Lakhs  ̀   in Lakhs  ̀   in Lakhs
ASSETS

Non-Current Assets
Proper ty, Plant and Equipment 1 6931.66 6891.40 6477.22
Capital Work-in-Progress 1516.90 1241.32 1017.03
Other Intang ible Assets 2 1.93 6.07 11.31
Fin ancial Assets

In vestmen ts 3 3315.34 3280.44 3312.47
Loans 4 616.68 621.36 626.47
Oth er Financial Assets 5 3.80 177.75 797.63

Deferred Tax Assets - Liab ilities(Net) 6 10.53  —  —
Other Non-Cu rrent Assets 7 379.54 296.91 348.76

12776.38 12515.25 12590.89
Current  Assets

Inventor ies 8 825.67 894.18 959.20
Biological Assets oth er than Bearer  Plants 161.60 69.19 67.07
Fin ancial Assets

Trade Rec eivab les 9 3953.57 4606.41 3660.58
Cash and Cash  Equivalents 10 8.65 10.21 1420.41
Other  Bank Balances 11 1.19 1.19 1.19
Loans 12 7.99 8.59 5.48
Oth er Financial Assets 13 3.06 27.94 47.00

Other Current Assets 14 108.89 111.51 185.63
5070.62 5729.22 6346.56

17847.00 18244.47 18937.45
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity
Equity Share Capital 15 1195.08 1195.08 1195.08
Other Equity 8375.04 8789.64 10549.81

9570.12 9984.72 11744.89
Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities

Fin ancial Liabilities
Borrowings 16 1800.00  1699.90 914.71
Trade Payab les 110.00 110.00 122.07
Oth ers 17 113.61 81.42 —

Deferred Tax Assets - Liab ilities(Net) 6                        — 114.90 914.64
Provisions 18 868.95 1255.78 1158.19

2892.56 3262.00 3109.61
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As at As at As at

31st March, 31st March, 1st April,
Notes 2018 2017 2016

 ̀   in Lakhs  ̀   in Lakhs  ̀   in Lakhs

Current Liabilities
Fin ancial Liabilities

Borrowings 19 1134.90 655.95 —-
Trade Payab les 1341.15 1204.66 926.93
Other  Financial Liabil ities 20 1196.71 1518.31 1547.68

Other Current Liabilities 21 6.00 81.12 82.37
Provisions 22 746.13 577.94 642.79
Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 959.43 959.77 883.18

5384.32 4997.75 4082.95
17847.00 18244.47 18937.45

Notes to Financial Statements 30

The Notes referred to above form an integral par t of the Financial Statements.

As per our repor t of even date.

B M Chatrath & Co LLP
Firm Registration Number - 301011E/E300025
Char tered Accountants
Sukhpreet S. Sidhu S. Roy Vinay K.  Goenka
Partner Company Secretary Ch airman
Membership Number - 052187 S. K. Mukhopadhyay S. K. Ghosh
Kolkata, 26th May, 2018 Chief Financial Officer Managing Director
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS
for the year ended 31st March, 2018

Curren t Year Previou s Year
Notes `  in Lakhs `  in Lakhs

Income
Revenue from Operations 23   11899.11   10970.66
Other Income 24   138.43   184.70

Total Income 12037.54   11155.36

Expenses
Changes in  Inventories of Finished Goods 25   (72.02)   51.17
Employee Benefits Expense 26   8486.16   8943.01
Finance Costs 27   374.76   232.20
Depreciation and Amor tisation Expense 28   363.87   361.91
Other Expenses 29   3962.67   3937.34

Total Expenses 13115.44 13525.63

Loss before Tax  (1077.90)  (2370.27)
Tax Expense

Current Tax — —
Deferred Tax (288.66) (742.01)

Loss for the Year  (789.24)  (1628.26)

Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss :

Employee Benefits Expense 497.98 (184.47)
Effect for Change in Value of Investments 39.89  (5.17)
Income Tax relating to Items that wil l not be

reclassi fied to Profit or Loss (163.23) 57.73
374.64 (131.91)

Total Comprehensive Income (414.60)   (1760.17)

Basic an d Diluted Earnin gs per Equity Sh are of ̀  10 each (`) (6.60)   (13.62)

Notes to Financial Statements 30

The Notes referred to above form an integral par t of the Financial Statements.

As per our repor t of even date.

B M Chatrath & Co LLP
Firm Registration Number - 301011E/E300025
Char tered Accountants
Sukhpreet S. Sidhu S. Roy Vinay K.  Goenka
Partner Company Secretary Ch airman
Membership Number - 052187 S. K. Mukhopadhyay S. K. Ghosh
Kolkata, 26th May, 2018 Chief Financial Officer Managing Director
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the year ended 31st March, 2018

  (` in Lakhs)

A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
Changes in
Equity Share

Balance as Capital during Balance as
 at  01.04.2017 th e Year  at  31.03.2018

1195.08 — 1195.08

B. OTHER EQUITY
Reserves and Surplus Equity

Instruments
Sec urities through other Total
Premium General Retain ed comprehensive
Reserve Reserve Earnings Income

Balance as at 1st Apri l, 2016 686.34 2415.58 7456.93 (9.04) 10549.81

Profit /  (Loss) for th e Period  —  — (1628.26) — (1628.26)

Other C omprehensive Income — — (127.94) (3.97) (131.91)

Balance as at 31st March, 2017 686.34 2415.58 5700.73 (13.01)  8789.64

Profit /  (Loss) for th e Period — — (789.24) —  (789.24)

Other C omprehensive Income  —  — 345.03 29.61 374.64

Balance as at 31st March, 2018 686.34 2415.58 5256.52 16.60 8375.04

As per our repor t of even date.

B M Chatrath & Co LLP
Firm Registration Number - 301011E/E300025
Char tered Accountants
Sukhpreet S. Sidhu S. Roy Vinay K.  Goenka
Partner Company Secretary Ch airman
Membership Number - 052187 S. K. Mukhopadhyay S. K. Ghosh
Kolkata, 26th May, 2018 Chief Financial Officer Managing Director
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Notes to the Financial Statements

As at As at As at
31st March, 31st March, 1st April,

2018 2017 2016
` in Lakhs ` in Lakhs ` in Lakhs

Note 3

INVESTMENTS
(NON-CURRENT ASSET)

(At Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income)
   Unquo ted - Equity Instruments

10000 Equity Sh ares of ̀  10/- each fully
paid-up  in ABC Tea Workers * *  *
Wel fare Services

        150000 Equity Shares of  ̀  10/- each fully
paid-up in  Warren Steels Private Limited   167.05 127.36 133.36

Quoted - Equity Instruments
15150 Equity Sh ares of ̀  10/- each fully

paid-up in Pal Peugeot Limited  * *  *
35 Equity Shares of  ̀  10/- each fully

paid-up in Hindusthan Engineering  * *  *
& Industries Limited

225 Equity Sh ares of  ` 5/- eac h fully
paid-up in  McLeod Russel Ind ia Limited   0.32  0.37 0.42

864 Equity Shares of  ̀  10/- each f ully paid-up
in Syndic ate Bank   0.50 0.62 0.58

100 Equity Sh ares of  ` 10/- each f ully paid-up
in Good ricke Group Limited   0.32 0.27 0.17

100 Equity Sh ares of  ` 10/- each f ully paid-up
in NTPC Limited   0.17 0.17         0.13

Ni l (Previou s Year - 2700) Equity Sh ares of  ̀  2/-
each full y paid-up in Bank of Baroda — 4.67 3.97

Ni l Equity Shares of  ̀  1/- each fully paid-up in
State Bank of India — —  3.89

Ni l Equity Sh ares of ̀  2/- each fu lly paid-up
in Rain Indu stries Ltd. — —  5.21

Ni l Equity Sh ares of ̀  10/- each f ully paid-up
in Subex Ltd. — — 17.76

Quoted - Debenture an d Bonds
100 Debenture of  ̀  12.50 each f ully paid-up

in NTPC Limited  *  *  *

                                Carried  forward 168.36 133.46 165.49
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As at As at As at
31st March, 31st March, 1st April,

2018 2017 2016
` in Lakhs ` in Lakhs ` in Lakhs

Note 3 (Continued)

                              Brought forward 168.36 133.46 165.49

Unquoted - Equity Instruments (At Cost)
Investmen t in Associate

6500000   Equity Shares of ̀  10/- each fully
           paid-up in  Maple Hotels & Resor ts Limited   3146.98 3146.98   3146.98

 3315.34 3280.44   3312.47

Notes:
1 Market Value of Quoted Investments 1.31 6.10 32.13
2 Aggregate Book Value of Quoted Investments 0.77 5.76 36.12

3 Aggregate Book Value o f Unquoted Investments 3314.03 3274.34 3280.34
4 Aggregate Provision for d iminution in the value of

In vestmen ts 23.31 57.00 63.31

5 * Indicates that amount is below the roun ding off
norm adopted by the C ompany.

Note 4

LOANS
(NON-CURRENT ASSET)

(Unsecured - Considered Good)
Secur ity Deposits

(Include Deposit to Related Par ty ̀  430.80; 611.45  607.42 608.59
Previous Year - ̀  430.80:
Transition date - ̀  433.20) [Refer Note No. 30(22)]

Other Loans
Loans to  Employees for  housing, vehicle and
furniture [Refer Note No. 30(22)]                     5.23 13.94    17.88

616.68 621.36 626.47

Note 5

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
(NON-CURRENT ASSET)

Deposits with National Bank for Agricul ture and
Rural  Development 3.80 177.75 797.63

3.80 177.75 797.63
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As at As at As at
31st March, 31st March, 1st April,

2018 2017 2016
` in Lakhs ` in Lakhs ` in Lakhs

Note 6

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (NET)
(NON-CURRENT ASSET)

 Deferred Tax Assets
Timing difference on account of :

Expenses allowable on payment 118.27  147.55                   3.51
Provision for Doubtful Debts  1.91 2.04                   2.04
Business Loss 1130.14 873.00 —
Value of  Inventory of Black Tea — 12.51                 37.77
Present Value of Loans to Employees 1.89 3.22                   4.78
Fair Value of Investments  — 4.49                   3.97

1252.21 1042.81                 52.07
 Less : Deferred Tax Liabilities

Timing difference on account of :
Effect o f change in Proper ty, Plant & Equipment 836.79 808.07               693.45
Effect o f change in Investments 11.29 — —
Effect of change in Capital work-in-progress 393.60 349.64               273.26

 10.53  (114.90)             (914.64)

Note 7

OTHER ASSETS
(NON-CURRENT ASSET)

(Unsecured - Considered Good)
Deposits with Government Authorities an d Others  5.10  4.87  5.69
Capital Advances 183.56 159.85 61.90
Other Advances 190.88 132.19 281.17

379.54 296.91 348.76

Note 8

INVENTORIES
(CURRENT ASSET)

(At lower o f cost or net realisable value)
Stock of Tea 440.93  368.91 420.08
Stock o f Stores and  Spares 384.74 525.27 539.12

825.67 894.18 959.20
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As at As at As at

31st March, 31st March, 1st April,
2018 2017 2016

` in Lakhs ` in Lakhs ` in Lakhs
Note 9

TRADE RECEIVABLES
(CURRENT ASSET)

  (Unsecured)
Trade Rec eivab les

Considered Good 3953.57 4606.41 3660.58
Considered Doubtful 34.85 34.85               34.85
Less: Provision for Doubtful Debts                    34.85 34.85               34.85

                      — — —
3953.57 4606.41 3660.58

Note 10

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(CURRENT ASSET)

Cash and Cash  Equivalents
Balan ces with Banks

Current Accounts 4.77  6.37               65.91
Deposit Ac counts with less than three

months matu rity — — 1350.00
Cash on hand 3.87  2.30                 2.82
Cash with Garden Kayahs  0.01 1.54                 1.68

8.65 10.21 1420.41
Note 11

OTHER BANK BALANCES
(CURRENT ASSET)

Deposit Accounts  1.19  1.19                 1.19
1.19 1.19 1.19

Note 12

LOANS
(CURRENT ASSET)

(Unsecured - Considered Good)
Loans to Employees for housing, vehicle and furniture 7.99 8.59                 5.48

[Refer Note No. 30(22)]
7.99 8.59 5.48

Note 13

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
(CURRENT ASSET)

(Unsecured - Considered Good)
Interest Accrued on Deposits 3.06 27.94               47.00

3.06 27.94 47.00
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Notes to the Financial Statements
As at As at As at

31st March, 31st March, 1st April,
2018 2017 2016

` in Lakhs ` in Lakhs ` in Lakhs
Note 14

OTHER ASSETS
(CURRENT ASSET)

Deposits with Government Au thorities
 and O thers 1.28 3.45 2.98

Other Advances  53.78 41.04             113.34
Subsidy Receivable — —                 5.06
Prepaid Expenses  53.83 67.02               64.25

108.89 111.51 185.63
Note 15

EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised

2,00,00,000 Equity Shares of ̀  10/- each 2000.00 2000.00 2000.00
Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid-up

1,19,50,804 Equity Shares of ̀  10/- each
(including Bonus Shares - 57,86,601) 1195.08 1195.08 1195.08

1195.08 1195.08 1195.08

No. of Shares No. of Shares No. of Shares
Reconcil iation of the n umber of Equity Shares

Outstand ing at the beg inning and at the end
of the year 11950804 11950804 11950804

Shareholders holding more th an 5% shares of th e Company
Name No. of No. of No. of

Shares % Shares % Shares %

Vinay K.  Goenka 3977613 33.28 4009202 33.55 2004601 16.77
Maple Hotels & Resor ts Limited 3196448 26.75 3196448 26.75 1598224 13.37
Vivek Goen ka 1476876 12.36 1476876 12.36 738438 6.18
C. K. Dhanuka, P. K. Khaitan

and D. P. Jindal — — 1416074 11.85 1416074 11.85
(Jointly as Escrow Agents)

Ashden e Investments Ltd. —  — — — 1181505 9.89
Isis Enterp rises Ltd. — — —  — 1102785 9.23
Maygrove Investments Ltd. — — — — 630106 5.27

Rights, preferences and  restrictions attached  to shares
The Company has only one c lass of shares being Equity Shares having a par value of  ̀  10/- each. All
equity shares rank  pari p assu  in all respects inc lud ing voting r ights, entitlement to dividend and
repayment o f capital.
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As at As at As at

31st March, 31st March, 1st April,
2018 2017 2016

` in Lakhs ` in Lakhs ` in Lakhs
Note 16

BORROWINGS
(NON-CURRENT LIABILITY- SECURED )

Term Loans from a Bank 500.00 700.00              900.00
[Secured  by joint equi table mor tgage / first
charge on  the entire fixed assets of the Company,
ranking  pari passu amon gst the Banks, repayable
in quar terly instalments ending in Ju ly 2021]

Term Loans from a Bank 1300.00 999.90 —
[Secured by first charge on equitable mor tgage of
all the fixed assets, movable and immovable, and
second c harge on stock and book debts of the
Company ranking pari passu amongst th e banks,
repayab le in quar ter ly instalmen ts with a moratorium
of one year, ending in Febru ary 2023]

Term Loan f rom a Bank — — 14.71
[Secured  by way of hypothecation of related car,
repayable in monthly instalments]

1800.00 1699.90               914.71

Note 17

OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
(NON-CURRENT LIABILITY)

Deferred  Income received from
Govern ment Autho rities 113.61 81.42 —

113.61 81.42                     —

Note 18

PROVISIONS
(NON-CURRENT LIABILITY)

Provision for Employee Benefits 868.95 1255.78 1158.19
868.95 1255.78 1158.19
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As at As at As at

31st March, 31st March, 1st April,
2018 2017 2016

` in Lakhs ` in Lakhs ` in Lakhs
Note 19

BORROWINGS
(CURRENT LIABILITY - SECURED)

Working Capital Facilities f rom Banks
[Secured  by joint equi table mor tgage/charge
on the c urrent assets an d fixed assets,  present
and future,  ranking pari passu amongst the
Banks severall y, repayable on demand] 1134.90 655.95  —

1134.90 655.95 —

Note 20

OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
(CURRENT LIABILITY)

Current Maturity of Long-Term Debt 400.00 214.71              116.11
Interest accrued and due on borrowings 18.11 15.73                   8.79
Oth er Payab les

Employee Benefits Payable 771.94 1282.34 1418.04
Retention Money 6.66 5.53 4.74

1196.71 1518.31 1547.68

Note 21

OTHER LIABILITIES
(CURRENT LIABILITY)

Advance from Customers 0.88 3.43                  2.54
Statutory Dues 5.12 77.69                 79.83

6.00 81.12 82.37

Note 22

PROVISIONS
(CURRENT LIABILITY)

Provision for Employee Benefits 746.13 577.94 642.79
746.13 577.94 642.79
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Curren t Year Previou s Year
` in Lakhs ` in Lakhs

Note 23

REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Sale of Products - Tea 11845.39 10878.26
Other Operating Revenues

Sale of Tea Waste                  15.59 —
Government Gran t / Assistance 38.06 92.12
Sale of  Scrap 0.07 0.28

11899.11 10970.66

Note 24

OTHER INCOME
Changes in Fair value of Biolog ical Assets

other than Bearer Plants 92.41 2.12
Interest Income on Financial Assets on  Deposit 4.19 50.83
Dividend  Income from Non - Current Investments 0.01 0.24
Net Gain  on Sale of Non  - Current Investments 0.30 16.96
Net Gain on Sale of Current Investment                     —                   1.60
Other Non-operating  Income

Profit on D isposal of Proper ty,  Plant and
Equipmen t (Net) 1.64 2.23

Insuranc e Claims 15.52 25.72
Miscellaneous Receipts 6.97 63.28
Liabilities no longer required written back 0.53                 13.20
Net Gain  on Foreign Cur rency Transactions and

Translation 16.86                   8.52
138.43 184.70

Note 25

CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS
Opening In ventories 368.91 420.08
Less : Closing Inventories 440.93 368.91

(72.02) 51.17

Note 26

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
Salar ies and Wages 6343.01 6722.53
Contributions to Provident and Other Funds 1036.00 1000.68
Staff Welfare Expenses 1107.15 1219.80

8486.16 8943.01
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Curren t Year Previou s Year
` in Lakhs ` in Lakhs

Note 27

FINANCE COSTS
Interest Expense 358.09 212.60
Other Borrowing Costs 16.67 19.60

374.76 232.20

Note 28

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE
Depreciation on Proper ty, Plant and Equipment 359.73 356.67
Amor tisation on Intangible Assets 4.14 5.24

363.87 361.91

Note 29

OTHER EXPENSES
Consumption of Stores and Spare Par ts

Pac king Materials 132.14 128.09
Oth ers 1304.14 1128.84

Power and Fuel 1121.50 1067.19
Rent 43.27 20.43
Repairs to  Buildings 24.40 35.03
Repairs to  Machinery 21.36 19.24
Insurance 25.14 21.49
Rates and Taxes 170.82 159.60
Tea Board Cess 7.41 31.03
Administrative Overheads 532.00 699.59
Sell ing

Freight 320.13 309.12
Insurance 16.73 21.91
Other Selling Expenses 243.63 295.78

3962.67 3937.34
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 30

1. Company Overview
Warren Tea Limited is engaged in the growing, harvesting, manufacture and sale of tea. The Company operates
with seven tea estates situ ated in Assam and sells  tea  in bulk both in domestic  and international  markets.
The Company is listed on the Bombay and C alcutta Stock Exchanges.

2. Statement of Compliance with Ind AS
These financial statements comply in all material aspects wi th Indian Acc ountin g Standards (Ind AS) as
contained in Companies (In dian Accou nting Stan dards) Rules, 2015  notified u nder Section 133 and  other
elevant p rovisions of the C ompanies Act, 2013 (the Act). The f inancial statements up to the year ended 31st
March 2017 were prepared in accordance with the accounting standards notified under Companies (Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended) and other relevant provisions of the Act. The financial statements for
the year en ded 31st March, 2018 are the first financial statements of the C ompany under Ind AS. Comparative
figures relating to  previous year and on the date of transition have also been prepared in accordance with
Ind AS. The date of transition to  Ind  AS is 1st Apri l, 2016.

3. Significant Accounting Policies

3.1  Classification of Current and Non-Current Assets and Liabilities
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal
operating  cycle and other c riteria set out in the Schedule III  to the Companies Act, 2013 and Ind  AS 1.The
Compan y has ascer tained its operating cycle as tw elve month s for the purpose of c lassification of
current and non-current assets and liab ilities.

3.2  Historical Cost Conventions
These fin ancial statements have been prepared in accordan ce with the generally accepted accounting
principles in India under  the historical c ost convention, except for the f ollowing:

 i) cer tain financial assets and liabil ities that are measured at fai r value;
 ii) Plan  assets relating  to defined benef it plans that are measured at fair value;
iii) biological assets (in cluding un-plucked green leaves) – measured at fai r value less cost to sell.

Historical cost is general ly based on the f air value of the c onsideration received in exchange for goods
and services.

Fair Value is the price that would be received  to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market par ticipants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation tec hnique. In  estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the C ompany takes into account the charac teristics of the asset or liability if market
par ticipants would take those characteristics into account when pr icing th e asset or liab ility at the
measurement date.

Fair valu e for measuremen t and/or disclosu re purposes in these financial statements is determined on
such a basis and measurements that have some similarities to  fair value but are not fair value, such as
net real isable value in  Ind AS 2 or value in use in In d AS 36.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make estimates
based on its  judgements, and assumptions that affect the app lication of the accounting policies and the
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repor ted amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date
of the financ ial statemen ts,  and  the repor ted amoun ts o f reven ues and expenses du ring  the year.
Ac tual  results could differ from those estimates. The estimates and un derlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to acc ounting estimates are recognised  in the per iod in which the
estimate is revised if the revision  affects only that period ; they are recognised in the per iod of  the
revision  as well as for future periods i f the revision affects both cur rent and future periods.

3.3  Sales and Revenue Recognition

Revenue is measured at th e fair value of the consideration  received or receivable. Amounts disclosed
as revenue are net of sales returns and trade discounts.

Revenue f or Sale of Goods is recognised in the Income Statement when the title, risk and rewards of
ownership passed to th e buyer.

3.4  Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions in foreign  currenc y are acc ounted fo r at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities related to foreign currency transactions remaining unsettled
at the en d of the year are translated at year-end exchange rates. Exchange Gains or Losses ar ising out
of fluctu ations in the exch ange rates on settlement or translation are recognised  in the Statement of Profit
and Loss in the period  in which they arise.

3.5  Government Grants/ Assistance

Government Grants/ Assistance (Grant) are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable
assurance that the Grant will be received and the Company will comply with the conditions attached to them.

Grants relating to income are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which
the Company recognises as expenses the related costs for wh ich the Grants are intended to compensate.

Grants relating to assets are presented as deferred income in the Balance Sh eet and are recognised in
profit o r loss on a systematic basis over the useful lif e of the related  assets.

3.6  Property, Plant and Equipment

(i) Bearer Plants

Bearer Plants have been recognised  on 1st April, 2016 as an item of Proper ty, Plant and Equipment
in accordance with previous GAAP, on which depreciation has been provided. Expenses on replanting
and young tea maintenance of Bearer Plants are considered as Capital Work-in-Progress. Depreciation
on  Bearer Plants is ch arged  on  estimated useful  li fe of  77 years ascer tained u pon  tech nic al
evaluation . Depreciation on Bearer Plants is rec ognised so as to wr ite of f its cost over useful  lives,
using the straight-line method. In ac cordanc e wi th Ind AS, Bearer Plants are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

(ii) Items Other than Bearer Plants

Freehold land is carried at historical cost. All other items are stated at historical cost less depreciation.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the construction or acquisition of the
items of the related proper ty, plant and equipment.
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Proper ties in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative purposes are carried at
cost, less any recognised impairment  loss. Depreciation of these assets, are on the same basis as other
proper ty assets, and commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Subsequen t costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.  All other repairs and maintenance
are charg ed to profit and loss during the repor ting period in which they are incurred.

An item of proper ty, plant and equipment is derec ognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from its use.  Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or reti rement of
an item o f proper ty, plan t and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Items of Proper ty, Plant and Equipment are depreciated in  a manner that amor tises the cost of the
assets net of its residual value, over their useful lives on a straight line basis. For additions/ disposals
of items during the course of the year, depreciation/amor tisation is recognised on a pro- rata basis.
Estimated useful lives of the assets are considered as specified in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013.

The estimated useful lives, residual valu es and depreciation method are reviewed at the en d of each
repor ting  period and the effect of any ch anges in estimate is accounted fo r on a prospective basis.
Compensation receivable for acquisition of Assets of the Company is accounted for upon acceptance
of the Company’s claim by the appropriate authorities.

Impairment of Assets
Assets are tested for impairment wh enever  events or c hanges in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised  in profit or loss for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amou nt. Assets that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each repor ting period.

Transition to Ind AS
On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its proper ty,
plant an d equipment recognised as at 1st April, 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP and use
that carrying value as the deemed cost of proper ty, plant and equipment.

3.7  Intangible Assets
Intangible Assets of the C ompany are recog nised when it is an identifiable n on-monetory asset without
physical substance. An Asset is recognised  when it is expec ted to provide fu ture economic benefits to
flow to the Company. These assets are capitalised at the pr ice what would be received to sale an asset
or paid to transfer a liab ility in an order ly transaction between market par ticipants at the measurement
date. Useful life is determined as the period over which an asset is expected to be available f or use by
the Company. Depreciation on Intangible Assets is recognised so as to write-off its cost over the useful life.

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its Intangible
Assets recognised as of 1st April, 2016 (transition date) measured as per the previous GAAP and use
that carrying value as its deemed cost.



85

Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 30 (Continued)

3.8  Financial instruments

Financial assets an d finan cial liabilities are recognised when the Company bec omes a par ty to  the
contrac tual provisions of the relevant instru ment and are initially measured at fai r value. Tran saction
costs that are directly attr ibutab le to the ac quisition or  issues of financial assets and  finan cial l iabili ties
(oth er than financial assets and  financial li abilities measured at fair value through  profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of fin ancial assets or financial
liabili ties. Pu rchase o r sale o f financ ial assets that requ ire delivery of assets w ithin a time frame
establish ed by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the
trade date, i.e., the date when the Company commits to pu rchase or sell the asset.

(i) Financial Assets Recognition and Classification
The finan cial assets are c lassified at initial recognition in the following measurement categ ories as:
- those subsequently measured at amor tised cost.
- those to  be subsequently measured at fair value [either throug h other comprehensive income
(OCI), or through profit or loss]

Subsequent Measurement
- Financial assets measured at amortised cost –
Financial assets which are held with in the business model of collection of  contractual cash f lows
and where those cash flows rep resent payments solely towards principal  and interest on the principal
amount outstanding are measured at amor tised cost. A gain or loss on a financial asset that is measured
at amor tised cost is rec ognised in prof it or loss when  the asset is derecognised or impaired.

- Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
Finan cial assets that are held within a business model of collection of con tractual cash flow s and
for selling and where the assets’ cash flow  represents solely payment of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding are measured at fair  value through OCI.  Movements in carrying amount
are taken through OCI, except for recognition of impairment gains or  losses.
When a financial asset, o ther than investment in equity in strument, is derecognised, the c umulative
gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified f rom equity to statement of profit and loss.
Classification of  equity instruments, not being investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
arrangemen ts, depend on  wheth er the Compan y has made an  irrevocable election at the time of
initial r ecognition to acc ount for the equi ty investment at fair value throu gh OCI. When investment in
such equity instrument is derecognised, the cumulative gains or losses recognised in OCI is transferred
within equity on such derecognition.

- Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss
Financial  assets are measu red at fair valu e through profit or loss unless it is measured at amor tised
cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income on initial recog nition. Movements in fair
value of these instruments are taken in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets
The Company assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or a group of  financial
assets is impaired. Impairment losses are recognised in the profit or loss w here there is an objective
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evidence of impairment based on reasonab le and suppor tab le information that is available without
undue cost o r effor t. Th e Compan y recogn ises loss al lowances on trade receivables when th ere
is objective evidence that th e Company will not be able to collect all th e due amounts depending on
product c ategories and the payment mechanism prevailing in the industry.

Income recognition on financial assets
Interest income from financial assets is recognised in profit or loss using effective interest rate method,
where app licable. Dividen d income is recognised in profit or loss only wh en the Company’s right to
receive payments is estab lished and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably.

(ii)  Financial Liabilities
The Company’s financial liabilities in clude trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including
bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts.

Financial  liabilities are classified accord ing to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered
into. Fin ancial liabilities are classified, at initial recogn ition, as subsequently measured at amortised
cost unless they fulfill the requirement of  measurement at f air value through  profit or loss. Where the
financial  liability has been measured at amor tised cost, the difference between the initial  carrying
amount of  the financial li abilities and their redemption value is recognised in the statement of profit
and loss over the contractual terms using the effective interest rate method.
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are carried at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in the finance income or finance cost in the statement of profit and loss.

(iii)  Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to  receive benefits have expired or been transferred,
and the C ompany has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ow nership of such financial
asset.  Fin ancial l iabi liti es are derecogn ised  when th e liabil ity is extinguished , th at is wh en the
contractual obligation is disc harged, cancelled o r expires.

(iv)  Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial  assets and liabi lities are offset and the net amount is repor ted in the balance sh eet where
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised  amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a n et basis or  realise the asset an d settle th e liability simultaneously.

3.9 Employee Benefits

a) Short Term Employee Benefits
These are recognised at the undiscounted  amount as expense for the year  and are expensed as the
related  service is provided.

b) Other Long term Employment Benefits
The cost of providing lon g-term employee benefits is determined using Pro jected Unit Cred it Method
with actu arial valuation being carried out at each Balance Sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses and
past service cost are rec ognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the period in
which they occur. Long term employee benefit obligation recognised in the Balance Sheet represents
the present value of related obligation.
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c) Post Employment Benefits

Contributions under Defined Contribution Plans payable in keeping with the related schemes are recognised
as expenditure for th e year.

In case of Defined Benefit Plans, the cost of providing the benefit is determined using the Projected Unit
Credit Method with  actuarial valu ation being carr ied out at each  Balance Sheet date.  Actuarial
gain s and losses are recognised in full in the Other Comprehensive Income for the period in which
they occur. Past service cost is recognised immediately to the extent that the benefits are already vested,
and otherwise is amor tised on a straight-line basis over the average period until the benefits become
vested. The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the Balance Sheet represents the present value
of the defined benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecognised past service cost, if any, and as reduced
by the fair value of plan assets, where funded. Any asset resulting from this calculation is limited to the
present value of any economic benefit available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in
future contributions to the plan.

(i)  The Compan y operates defined  Contr ibution Schemes of  Provident Funds and makes reg ular
contributions to  Provident Fu nds wh ich are fully funded and administered by the Trustees and  are
independent of the Company’s finance. Such contributions are recognised in the Accounts on accrual
basis. In terest accruing to the Fund admin istered by the Trustees are credited to respective members’
accounts based on the rates stipulated by the Government and shor tf all if  any, recognised on  the
basis of  actuarial valu ation repor t in  this regard, is borne by the Company.
(ii)  Th e Company operates defined benefit Superannuation and Gratuity Schemes administered by
the Trustees, which are independent of the Company’s fin ance. Such oblig ations are recog nised in
the Accoun ts  on the basis of  actuar ial valuation  applying Projected  Unit Credit Method  inclu ding
gains and  losses at the year-end.
(iii) The Company operates a defined benefit Pension Scheme and Additional Retiral Benefit for cer tain
categories of employees for w hich obligations are recognised  in th e Accou nts based on  actuarial
valuation applying Projected  Unit Credit Method including gains and losses at the year-end.

3.10  Inventories
Inventor ies of Stores,  as existing at the year-end , represent weighted average cost of procu rements.
Provision is made for obsolete and slow  moving inventor ies whenever necessary in the Accounts.
Finished goods produced from agricultural p roduce are valued  at lower of cost, arrived at by adding the
cost of conversion to the fai r value of ag ricultu ral produce and the net realisable value.  Net realisable
valu e represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all selling  costs.

3.11  Biolog ical Assets
Bio logical assets o f th e Compan y comprises un-harvested green tea leaves that are classi fied  as
current assets.
The Company recognises b iological assets when, and only when, the Compan y controls the assets as
a result of past events. It is probable that future economic benefits associated  with such assets will flow
to the Company and the fai r value or cost o f the assets can  be measured reliably. Expenditure incurred
on biolog ical assets are measured on initial recognition and at the end of each repor ting period at its fair
value less costs to sell . The gain or loss arising from a change in fai r value less costs to sell of biological
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assets are included in statement of profit and loss for the period in which i t arises.

On transi tion to Ind AS the Company has recognised biological assets for the fi rst time as required by Ind
AS 101 at fair value less cost to sell as at 1st April,  2016 (transition date).

3.12  Trade Receivables

Trade rec eivables are rec ognised at Fair Value less provision for impairmen t if any.

3.13  Provision and Contingent Liabilities
Provision s are recognised when the Company has a present obl igation (legal or  constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be requi red to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the ob ligation.
The amoun t recognised as a provision is th e best estimate o f the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the repor ting period, takin g in to account the risks and uncer tainties
surrounding the obligation.
Contingent L iabilities are disclosed when there is a possible ob ligation which may arise from past
events and the existence o f which will be confirmed only by the occurrence o r non-occurrence of one or
more uncer tain future even ts not wholly within the control of the Company or  a present obligation that
arises from past events wh ere it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle th e obligation or reliable estimate of  the amount cannot be made.

3.14  Borrowing Cost
Interest and other borrowing costs attributable to qualifying  assets are capitalised. Other Interest and
Operational Borrowing  Costs are recognised as Revenue Expenditure in the year in which th ese are
incurred  and are charg ed to Profit and Loss.

3.15  Taxes on Income
Taxes on income comprises o f current taxes and deferred taxes. Current Tax in the statement of p rofit and
loss is determined as the amount of income-tax  payable/recoverable in respect of the taxab le income
for the curren t period using tax rates and tax laws enacted during the period, together with any adjustment
to tax payable in respect of previou s years.
Deferred Tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities
and the co rresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxab le profit.
Deferred Tax Assets are rec ognised subject to the consideration of prudence only to the extent that there
is reason able cer tainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such  deferred
tax assets can be realised . Such deferred tax assets and liab ilities are not recognised if the temporary
differen ces arises from the initial recognition of assets and liabiliti es in a transaction that affects neither
the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
Deferred tax liabilities an d assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
in whic h the liabili ty is settled  or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted o r substantively enacted by the en d of the repor tin g period.
Current and  deferred tax are rec ognised  in pro fit or loss, except wh en they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or  directly in equi ty, in which case, the current and  deferred
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tax are also recognised in other comprehen sive income or d irectly in equity net of tax respectively.

4.   First-time adoption of Ind AS
Transition to Ind AS
These are the Company’s first financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS. The date of Transition
to Ind AS is 1st April , 2016.

The accounting policies set out above have been applied in preparing the financial statements for the year ended
31st Marc h, 2018, comparative information presented in these financial statemen ts for the year ended 31st
March, 2017 and in the preparation of an opening Ind AS Balance Sheet at 1st April, 2016 (date of transition).
In prepar ing its opening Ind AS Balance Sheet, the Company h as adjusted the amounts repor ted p reviously
in f inancial statements prepared in  accordance with th e accounting  standards no tified  under  Companies
(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amen ded) and other relevant provisions of the Act (previous GAAP
or Indian GAAP).

Exemptions and Exceptions availed
Set out below are the appl icable Ind AS 101 optional exemptions and mandatory exceptions applied in the
transition  from previous GAAP to Ind AS.

Ind AS Optional Exemptions
4.1 Deemed cost
Ind AS 101 permits a first-time adopter to elect to continue with the carrying value for all of its proper ty,
plant and equipment as recog nised in th e financial statements as at the date of tran sition to Ind AS,
measured as per the previous GAAP and use that as its deemed cost as at the date of transition. This
exemption  can also be used for Intangible Assets covered by In d AS 38 .

According ly, the Company h as elected to measure all of its p roper ty, plant an d equipment and intangible
assets at their p reviou s GAAP carrying valu e. The Compan y does not have any de-commissioning
liabiliti es as on the date of transition and accordingly n o adjustments have been made for the same.

4.2 Measurement of Investment in Associate
In d AS 101 allows a f irst time adopter to measure investmen t in  associate at c ost determined in
accordanc e with Ind AS 27 or at deemed cost i.e, fair value of such investmen ts at the entity’s date of
transition or previous GAAP carrying amou nt at the date of  transition. Acc ordingly, the Company has
elected to apply this exemption and have adopted previous GAAP carrying amount of such in vestments
at the company’s date of transition as carrying amount of  investment in Associate.

Ind AS Mandatory Exceptions
4.3 Estimates
An entity’s estimates in ac cordance with Ind AS at the date of transition to Ind AS shall be consistent with
estimates made for the same date in accordance with previous GAAP (after adjustments to reflect any
diff erence in ac counting pol icies), unless there is objective evidence that those estimates were in
erro r. Ind AS estimates as at 1st April, 2016 are consistent wi th the estimates as at the same date made
in conformity with previous GAAP.
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4.4 Classification and Measurement of Financial Assets

The Company under took an  assessment of c lassification an d measurement of  financial assets on the
basis of the facts and circ umstances that ex ist at the date o f transition to In d AS as required by Ind AS
101.

5. Notes to First-time Adoption
5.1  Replanting Cost
Under the previous GAAP, replantin g cost was charged off to p rofit and loss account as and when
incurred.  Under Ind AS, su ch cost is being  recognised as Bearer Plant within  the meaning of Ind AS 16
“Proper ty, Plant and Equipment”.
5. 2  Depreciation on Bearer Plants
Under Ind  AS, since bearer  plants come within the ambit of Ind AS 16 “Proper ty, Plant and Equipment”,
depreciation is being provided on bearer  plants.

5.3  Fair valuation of Investments
Under the previous GAAP, investments in equity instruments were classified  as long-term in vestments
based on the intended hold ing period and realisability. Long -term investments were carried at cost less
provision  for o ther than temporary decl ine in  the value o f such  investments. Under Ind AS, th ese
investmen ts are required to be measured at fair value , exc ept for Investmen ts in associates for which
exemption  with regard to c arryin g amou nt of  such investments at th e enti ty’s date o f tran sition  as
deemed cost is adopted.

5.4  Inventories
Finished Goods :
Under previous GAAP, tea stock has been valued at the lower  of cost and net realisable value. Cost of
inventories comprise all costs of production  of  green leaf, costs of conversion and other costs incurred
in bringing the inventories to their present location and c ondition.

Under Ind AS, cost of inventories comprise fai r value of green leaf at the time of  harvest less cost to sell,
conversion cost (i.e 40 % of factory cost) and other costs in curred in bringin g the inventories to their
present location and condition.

5.5  Borrowings
Ind AS 109 requires transaction costs incurred towards origination of borrowings to be deducted from the
carrying amount of borrowings on initial recognition. These costs are recognised in the profit or loss over
the tenure of the borrowing  as par t of the in terest expense by applying the effective interest rate method.
Under previous GAAP, these transaction costs were charged  to profit or loss as and when incurred.

5.6  Remeasurements of post employment benefit obligations
Under Ind  AS, remeasuremen ts i.e. actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets, excluding
amounts included in the net interest expense on the net defin ed benefit liabili ty are recognised  in other
comprehensive income instead of profit or loss.

5.7  Retained Earnings
Retained earnings as at 1st April, 2016, th e transition date, has been adjusted consequent to the above
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Ind AS transition adju stments.

5.8  Other Comprehensive Income
Under Ind AS, all items of income and expense recognised in a period should be included in p rofit or loss
for the period, unless a Standard requires o r permits otherwise, Items of income and expense that are not
recognised in profit or loss but are shown in the statement of profit and loss as ‘other comp rehensive
income’ includes re-measurements of defined benefit p lans and fair value gains or (losses) on investments
in equity instruments. Th e concept of oth er comprehensive income did not exist under previous GAAP.

6. Financial Instruments and Related Disclosures
Capital Management
The Compan y’s ob jective is to  have a stron g capi tal base in order to maximise the shareholders’ wealth
and to ensure the continuity of the business from its internal resources and if found necessary, from a judicious
use of  bor rowing f acil ities to  fun d requi rements during the peak season of  working capi tal as w ell as
requiremen ts for a comprehen sive growth of the Company.

7. Financial risk management objectives
The Compan y’s faces a variety of financial risks, including market risk, credit risk and liq uidity risk.  The
Company c ontinues to focu s on business risk management. The Company manag ement seeks to enable the
early iden tification, evaluation and  effec tive management of key risks fac ing th e busin ess. The Company
has strong  internal control systems resting on  policies and  procedures issued  by appropriate au thorities,
process o f regular audits and monitoring of risks.

a) Market risk
The Company’s business, primari ly agricultural in n ature, future cash f lows will fluctuate because of
adverse weather conditions and lack of f uture markets. The Company closely monitors the changes
in market conditions and select the sales strategies to mitigate its exposure to risk.

b) Foreign currency risk
The Company under takes transactions den ominated in foreign currency wh ich results in exchange
rate fluctuations. Such exchange rate risk primarily arises from transactions made in foreign exchange.
A significant por tion of these transactions are in US Dollar and Euro.

c) Foreign currency sensitivity
The impac t of sensitivity analysis arisin g on account of outstanding foreign currency den ominated
assets and liabiliti es is insigni ficant.

d) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk refers to  the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of chan ges in market interest rates. The objective of the Company is to lessen the
impact o f adverse interest rate movements on its earning s and cash flows and to minimise counter
par ty risks.

The Company is exposed to interest rate volatilities primarily with respect to its shor t terms borrowings
from ban ks as well as Financial Insti tutions.
The Compan y manages such risk by proper leverag e of its internal resources.
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e) Interest rate sensitivity

Since the borrowings are all shor t term in nature, the possible volatility in the interest rate is minimal.

f) Liquid ity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Compan y may encounter d ifficulty including seasonality in meeting
its oblig ations. The Company mitigates its liquidity risks by ensuring timely collections of its trade
receivables, close monito ring of its credi t cycle and ensu ring optimal movements of its inventories.

g) Cred it risk
Credit risk is the risk that counter par ty w ill not meet its obligations leadin g to a financial loss. The
Company has its policies to limit its exposure to credit risk arising f rom ou tstand ing receivab les.
Management regularly assess the credit qu ality of its customers.Th e cred it risk of the Company
is relatively low as the Company also sells larg ely its teas throu gh the auction system wh ich is on
cash and carry basis and through expor ts which are mostly backed by letter or credit or on advance basis.

8. Fair value measurements
Fair value hierarchy
Fair value of the financ ial instruments is classified in various fair value hierarchies based on the f ollowing
three levels:

Level 1: Quoted prices in active market for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted price includ ing within level  1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly ( i.e. derived from prices).
The fair  valu e of f inanc ial instru ments that are n ot traded in an  active market is determin ed using
valuation  techniques which  maximize the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on
entity-specific estimates. If signific ant inputs requ ired to fair value an instrument are observable, the
instrumen t is included in  Level 2.

Level 3: Inputs for the assets o r liabilities that are not based on observable market data . If on e or more
of th e signif icant in puts is not based  on observable market data, the f air valu e is determined using
generally accepted pricing  models based on  a discounted cash flow analysis, with the most significant
input being the discoun t rate that ref lects the credi t risk of coun terpar ty. This is the case with listed
instrumen ts where market is not liquid and  for unlisted instruments.
The manag ement consider that the carrying  amounts of finan cial assets (oth er than those measured at
fai r valu es) an d liabiliti es recognised in the f inancial statemen ts app roximate th eir f air value as on
March 31, 2018, March 31, 2017 and April 1, 2016.

There has been no change in the valuation methodology for Level 3 inputs during the year. There were no
transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the year.
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                                                                                                                                                       (` in Lakhs)

9 Un der the Assam Fixation of C eiling o f Land Holding Act,  1956, u ndeveloped lands,app roximately
2145 hec tares (Previous Year - 2145 hectares) have been vested in the State Government. Necessary
adjustmen ts in respect of  land compensation will be made in the accounts on settlement of the same.

Curren t Year Previou s Year
` `

10 Estimated amount of contracts remaining to
be execu ted on Capital Account and not provided
for (Net o f Advance) 36.01 24.00

11 Contingent Liabilities
(a) Claims n ot acknowledged  as debt 1.50 1.50
(b) Ban k Guarantees — 24.39
(c) Sales Tax Demands in d ispute (under Appeals) 98.19 98.19

Cash outf lows, if any, in  respect of the above is not determinable at this stage.

12 Unpaid D isputed Statutory Dues in respect of
(a) Income-tax

Forum : Deputy Commissioner of In come-Tax 33.53 33.53
Commissioner of Income-tax (Appeals) 25.07 25.07

(b) Sales tax
Forum : Deputy Commissioner of Taxes (Appeals) 68.16 68.16

Commissioner of Taxes 5.86 5.86
Gauhati High Cour t 17.60 17.60

(c) Land Revenue
Forum : Addition al Deputy Commissioner 28.33 28.33

13 Loans and Advances to Employees include
(i) Amounts du e by a Director of the Company

(a) On Long-Term 4.84 6.93
(b) On Sh or t-Term 2.09 1.94

(Advanced  to an employee since elevated as a Director)

(i i) Amounts du e by an Officer of the Company
(a) On Long-Term — 0.44
(b) On Sh or t-Term 0.44 0.48

14 There are no outstanding dues of micro an d small enterprises based on inf ormation
availab le with the C ompany.

15 Expenditu re incurred on C orporate Social Responsibility activities
(a) Gross Amount requi red to be spen t by the

Company during the year — 33.48
(b) Amou nt spent during the year — —
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Note 30 (Contin ued)                                                                                                                    (` in Lakhs)
Curren t Year Previou s Year

` `

16 Amounts paid/payable to Auditors
Statutory Auditors

(a) Statutory Audit Fees 9.00 10.35
(b) Tax Audit Fees 1.00 1.16
(c) Limited Review & Other Matters 2.84 2.87
(d) Out of Pocket Expenses 0.29 0.24

17 Consumption of Stores an d Spares % %
Indigenous 1427.27 99 1256.93 100
Impo r ted 9.01 1 — —

1436.28 100 1256.93 100
18 Earnings in Foreign Exchange

Expor ts on F.O.B. basis 496.07 956.97

19 Expenditure in Foreign Currency
(a)  Subscription and Other Charges 1.68 1.88
(b)  Pension 1.37 1.48
(c)  Travelling 12.33 21.08

20 Post Employment Defined Benefit Plans
The Company operates defined Benefit Schemes like Gratuity, Superannuation, Pension and Additional
Retiral Benefi t Plans based on c urrent salaries  in accordance with  the Rules of the Funds/Plans.
In terms of Accounting Policies enumerated in Note 30 the fol lowing Table sets for th the par ticu lars in
respect o f Defined Benefit Plans of th e Company f or the year  ended  31st March,  2018 arising out of
actu arial valuations:
A) Funded  Plans

I) Changes in Present Value of Obligation                                       Fun ded Plans
Gratui ty   Superannuation

2017-18 2016-17 2017-18 2016-17
Present Value of Obligation as on

last valuation 2853.91 2427.95 805.21 661.62
Current Service Cost 136.06 148.76 79.95 77.34
Past Service Cost — — — —
Interest Cost 212.17 172.27 58.04 49.62
Vested Por tion at the end of  the year

(Past Service) 22.37                 — — —
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations

due to change in Financial Assumption   (650.93) 115.11 (34.51) 10.22
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations

due to unexpec ted Experience 450.07 251.90 (14.79) 6.41
Benefits paid (203.85) (262.08) (82.95)              —
Present Value of Obligation as on

valu ation date 2819.80 2853.91 810.95 805.21
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Note 30 (Contin ued)                                                                                                                    (` in Lakhs)

                                                                                                                       Funded Plans
Gratui ty   Superannuation

2017-18 2016-17 2017-18 2016-17
 II) Chang es in Fair Value of Plan Asset

Fair value of Plan Assets at the
beginning o f the year 2373.67 1955.31 827.44 706.84

Interest In come 183.01 146.64 62.88 63.61
Return on Plan Asset excluding

Interest In come 49.04 61.16 (13.23) 22.93
Actuarial  Gains/(Losses) — — —              —
Contributions 480.22 472.64 34.36 34.06
Benefits paid (203.85) (262.08)           (82.95)            —
Fair value of Plan Assets at the

end of the measurement period 2882.09 2373.67 828.50 827.44

III) Reconciliation to Balance Sheet
Funded Status

Fund Asset 2882.09 2373.67 828.50 827.44
Fund Liability 2819.80 2853.91 810.95 805.21

(62.29) 480.24 (17.55) (22.23)

IV) Plan Assumptions
Discoun t Rate% 7.71 7.50 7.60 7.50
Expected Return on Plan Asset (%) 7.71 7.50 7.60 9.00
Rate of Compensation Increase

(Salary Inf lation) (%) 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00
Average Expected Future Service

(Remaining w orking life) 21,12,2 18,9,3 10, 8, 2 10, 8, 2

Mor tality Table IALM IALM IALM IALM
2006-2008 2006-2008 2009-2008 2009-2008

Ul timate Ultimate
Superannuation at age -

Male / Female 58,60,62 58,60,62 58,60,62 58,60,62
Early Retirement and  Disablement

(All Causes C ombined) (%) 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00

Mor tality Table IALM IALM IALM IALM
2006-2008 2006-2008 2009-2008 2009-2008

Ul timate Ultimate
Above ag e 45 (%) 0.06 0.06
Between 29 to 45 (%) 0.03 0.03
Below ag e 29 (%) 0.01 0.01
Volun tary Retir ement Ignored Ignored
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Note 30 (Contin ued)                                                                                                                    (` in Lakhs)

                                                                                                                       Funded Plans
Gratui ty   Superannuation

2017-18 2016-17 2017-18 2016-17
V) Expenses recognised in the Statement

of Profit and Loss
Current Service Cost 136.06 148.76 79.95 77.34
Past Service Cost (vested) 22.37 — — —
Net Interest Cost 29.17 25.62 (4.84) (13.99)
Benefit Cost (Expense recognised

in Statement of Profit and Loss) 187.60 174.38 75.11 63.35
VI) Other Comprehensive Income

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on
Obligations due to ch ange in
Financial Assumption (650.93) 115.11 (34.51) 10.22

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on
Obligations due to unexpected
Experience 450.07 251.90 (14.79) 6.41

Total  Actuarial  (Gains)/Losses (200.86) 367.01 (49.30) 16.63
Return on Plan Asset excluding

Interest In come 49.04 61.16 (13.24) 22.93
Balance at the end of the year (249.90) 305.85 (36.06) (6.30)
Net (In come)/Expense for the

period recog nised in OCI (249.90) 305.85 (36.06) (6.30)
VII) Alloc ation of Plan Asset at end of measurement period

Cash and Cash  Equivalents 175.11       34.44              92.94     104.12
Special Deposit Scheme 105.20 105.20 53.06 53.06
State Government Securi ties 90.15 100.77 30.51 30.58
Government of India Assets 204.84 209.63 66.25 66.00
Corporate Bonds 1042.35 1232.09 256.97 257.17
Debt Securi ties 43.49 — — —
Annuity Contracts/Insurance Fund 697.35 652.72 301.98 280.66
Other Assets 523.61 38.83 26.79 35.85

2882.10 2373.68 828.50 827.44
VIII) Allocation in % of Plan Asset at

end of measurement period
Cash and Cash  Equivalents 6.08        1.45              11.22       12.58
Special Deposit Scheme  3.65        4.43                6.40        6.41
State Government Securi ties 3.13        4.25                3.68        3.70
Government of India Assets 7.09        8.82                8.00        7.98
Corporate Bonds 36.17       51.91              31.02       31.08
Debt Securi ties 1.51 — — —
Annuity Contracts/Insurance Fund 24.20       27.50              36.45       33.92
Other Assets 18.17        1.64                3.23        4.33

100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
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Note 30 (Contin ued)                                                                                                                    (` in Lakhs)

                                                                                                                       Funded Plans
Gratui ty   Superannuation

2017-18 2016-17 2017-18 2016-17
IX) Mor tal ity Table

Age Mor tali ty Mor tali ty
(per annum) (per annum)

25 0.000984 0.000984
30 0.001056 0.001056
35 0.001282 0.001282
40 0.001803 0.001803
45 0.002874 0.002874
50 0.004946 0.004946
55 0.007888 0.007888
60 0.011534 0.011534
65 0.017009 0.017009
70 0.025855 0.025855

X) Sensitivi ty Analysis

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

Impact for change in Discount Rate ( -/+0.5% ) 2400.44 2652.15 2737.67 3170.21 794.97 825.95 790.72 820.48
% change Compared to base due to sensitivity - 4.79% 5.19% 2.78% 19.02% - 1.97% 1.85% -1.80% 1.90%

Impact for change in Salary growth (-/+ 0.5%) 2653.97 2397.86 2981.43 2735.34 824.66 797.81 820.30 790.86

% change Compared to base due to sensitivity 5.27% - 4.89% 11.93% 2.69% 1.69% -1.62% 1.88% -1.78%

Impact for change in Attrition growth (-/+ 0.5%) 2525.72 2516.64 2846.51 2816.34 810.79 811.11 803.92 806.49

% change Compared to base due to sensitivity 0.18% - 0.18% 6.87% 5.74% 0.02% - 0.02% - 0.16% 0.16%

Impact for change in Mortality Rate (-/+ 10%) 2540.52 2501.84 2818.21 2770.49 810.39 811.51 804.83 805.58

% change Compared to base due to sensitivity 0.77% - 0.77% 5.81% 4.01% - 0.07% 0.07% - 0.05% 0.05%

XI) Estimated Future payments of Benefits ( Past Service )

Year
1 471.56 169.08
2 112.01 75.37
3 237.58 53.74
4 183.96 55.08
5 218.55 35.43

6  to 10 1277.35 193.43
More than  10 years 4647.01 545.84

Total Undiscounted Payments related to
       Past Service 7148.03 1127.97
Less Discount for Interest 4328.23 317.02
Projected Benefit Obl igation 2819.80 810.95
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Note 30 (Contin ued)                                                                                                                    (` in Lakhs)

                                                                                                                       Funded Plans
Gratui ty   Superannuation

2017-18 2016-17 2017-18 2016-17

XII) Outlook for Net Periodic Benefit Cost Next Year
Current Service Cost (Employer por tion only)

Next p eriod 141.31

Interest Cost next period 176.20
Expected  Return on Plan Asset 222.21
Benefi t Cost 95.31

XIII) Bif urcation of Net Liability
Current L iability 465.25 561.03 162.99 150.29

Non Current Liability 2354.55 2292.87 647.96 654.92
Net Liabil ity 2819.80 2853.90 810.95 805.21

B) Unfunded Plans

      I)  Changes in Present Value of Ob ligation
Unfunded Plans

Additional
Pension Reti ral Ben efit

Present Value of Obligation as on last valuation 1169.02 1153.44 64.66 64.64
Current Service Cost 31.47 65.80 3.81 4.10
Past Service Cost — — — —
Interest Cost 88.77 85.40 4.61 4.85
Vested Por tion at the end of the year (Past Service) — — 11.21 —
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations

due to change in Financial Assumption (159.72) 42.68 (5.82) (2.25)
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations due

to unexpected Experience (40.16) (148.83) (6.31) (6.68)
Benefits paid (35.23) (29.47) 8.11 —
Present Value of Obligation as on valuation date 1054.15 1169.02 64.04 64.66

    II) Reconciliation to Balance Sheet

Funded Status
Fund Asset — — — —
Fund Liability 1054.15 1169.02 64.04 64.66
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Note 30 (Contin ued)                                                                                                                    (` in Lakhs)

                                                                              Unfu nded Plans
Additional

Pension Reti ral Ben efit
2017-18 2016-17 2017-18 2016-17

III) Plan Assump tions
Discoun t Rate (%) 7.71 7.50 7.60 7.50
Rate of Compensation Increase

(Salary In flation) (%) 1.50 5.00 5.00 5.00
Average Expected Future Service

(Remaining w orking life) 11 8 12,9,2 12,9,3

IALM 2009- IALM 2009- IALM IALM
2008 Ul timate2008 Ultimate 2006,2008 2006,2008

Mor tality Table
Superannuation at age - Male / Female 60 60 58,60,62 58,60,62
Early Retirement and  Disablement

(All Causes Combined) (%) 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Above age 45 (%) 0.06 0.06
Between 29 to 45 (%) 0.03 0.03
Below age 29 (%) 0.01 0.01
Volun tary Retir ement Ignored Ignored

    V) Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Current Service Cost 31.47 65.80 3.81 4.10
Past Service Cost (vested) — —     11.21 —
Net Interest Cost 88.77 85.40 4.61 4.85

Benefit Cost ( Expense recognised in Statement
of Profit and Loss ) 120.24 151.20 19.63 8.95

VI) Other Comprehensive Income

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations due
to change in Financial Assumption (159.72) 42.68 (5.82) (2.25)

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations due
to unexpected Experience (40.16) (148.83) (6.31) (6.68)

Total Ac tuarial (Gains) / Losses (199.88) (106.15) (12.13) (8.93)
Return on Plan Asset excluding Interest Income
Balance at the end of the year (199.88) (106.15) (12.13) (8.93)
Net (Income) / Expense for the period

recognised in OCI (199.88) (106.15) (12.13) (8.93)
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Note 30 (Contin ued)                                                                                                                    (` in Lakhs)
                                                                              Unfunded Plans

Pens ion Additional Retiral Benefit
2017-18 2016-17 2017-18 2016-17

VII) Mor ta lity Table
Age Mor tality Mor tality

(per annum) (per annum)

25 0.000984 0.000984
30 0.001056 0.001056
35 0.001282 0.001282
40 0.001803 0.001803
45 0.002874 0.002874
50 0.004946 0.004946
55 0.007888 0.007888
60 0.011534 0.011534
65 0.017009 0.017009
70 0.025855 0.025855

VIII) Sensitivity Analysis
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

Impact for change in Discount Rate ( -/+0.5% ) 1033.75 1075.52 1137.81 1201.76 60.08 62.50 63.50 65.90
% change Compared to base due to sensitivity - 1.94 % 2.03 % - 2.67 % 2.80 % (1.92) 2.04 (1.80) 1.92
Impact for change in Salary growth (-/+ 0.5%) 1075.84 1033.27 1202.11 1137.11 62.41 60.16 65.79 63.48
% change Compared to base due to sensitivity 2.06 % - 1.98 % 2.83 % - 2.73 % 1.88 (1.78) 1.74 (1.83)
Impact for change in Attrition growth (-/+ 0.5%) 1054.60 1053.71 1169.73 1168.32 61.29 61.22 64.71 64.61
% change Compared to base due to sensitivity 0.04 % - 0.04 % 0.06 % - 0.06 % 0.06 (0.06) 0.08 (0.08)
Impact for change in Mortality Rate (-/+ 10%) 1058.17 1050.14 1175.11 1162.95 61.45 61.05 64.86 64.47
% change Compared to base due to sensitivity 0.38 % - 0.38 % 0.52 % - 0.52 % 0.32 (0.32) 0.30 (0.30)

IX) Est imated Future payments of Benefits (Past S ervice)
Year
1 67.25 28.04
2 53.09 6.84
3 59.33 10.92
4 62.55 4.19
5 66.21 3.26

6 to 10 414.32 12.75
More than 10 years 1824.43 30.33

  Total  Undiscounted Payments rel ated to Past Service 2547.18 96.33
Less Di scount for I nterest 1493.03 32.28
Projected Benefit Obl igation 1054.15 64.04

X) Outl ook for Net Periodic Benefit Cost Next Year
Particulars

Current Service Cost (  Employer por t ion only) Next period 2.73
Interes t Cost next period 3.59
Expected Return on Plan Asset —
Benefi t Cost 6.32

XI) Bifurcation of Net Liability
Current Liability 64.80 97.71 27.13 28.34
Non Current Liability 989.35 1071.32 36.91 36.32
Net Liability 1054.15 1169.03 64.04 64.66



101

Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 30 (Contin ued)                                                                                                                    (` in Lakhs)

Curren t Year Previou s Year
21 Basic and  Diluted Earnings Per Share

Number of  Equity Shares at the beginning of  the year 11950804 11950804
Number o f Equity Shares at the end of the year 11950804 11950804
Weighted average number of  Equity Shares ou tstanding

during the year 11950804 11950804
Face valu e of each Equity Share (`) 10 10
Profit af ter tax available for distribution to the Equity Shareholders (789.24) (1628.26)
Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share (`) (6.60) (13.62)
Dilutive Potential Equity Shares Not App licable    Not Applicable

22 Related Par ty Disclosu res
(i) Names and Relationship

          Relationship                              Name
Assoc iate Maple Hotels & Resor ts Limited
Significant Influence by Key Management Personnel Warren Industrial Limited

Sec tra Plaza Private Limi ted
Softweb Technologies Private Limited

Key Manag ement Person nel Mr. Vinay K. Goenka (C hairman)
Mr. S. K.  Ghosh (Managing Director)
Mr. S. Roy (Company Secretary)
Mr. S. K. Mukhopadhyay (Chief

 Financial  Officer)
Relative of a Key Management Personnel Mr. Vivek Goenka

Post Employment Benef it Plan Warren Staff Provident Fund
Warren Tea Gratuity Fund
Warren In dustrial & Associated Co’s

Superannuation Fund
(i i)  Par ticu lars of Transactions and year-end  balances

Names and Relationship    ` `
Significant Influence by Key Management Personnel

Receiving o f Services
Sec tra Plaza Private Limi ted 7.28 7.28
Softweb Technologies Private Limited 31.66                    35.62

Key Manag ement Personnel & Relative
Remuneration

Mr. Vinay K. Goenka 151.99 130.34
Mr. S. K. Ghosh 129.86 110.91
Mr. S. Roy 27.55 29.99
Mr. S. K. Mukhopadhyay 25.14 21.61
Mr. Vivek Goenka 23.45 24.43

Compensation of Key Management Personnel & Relative
Shor t Term Employee Benefits 305.66 292.94
Post Employee Benefits 39.40 18.50
Other Long Term Benefits 12.93 5.84
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Note 30 (Contin ued)                                                                                                                    (` in Lakhs)

Curren t Year Previou s Year

 (ii)Par ticulars of Transactions and year-end balances

Names and Relationship ` `

Balanc e at the year-end
Assoc iate

In vestmen ts
Maple Hotels & Resor ts Limited 3146.98 3146.98

Significant Influence by Key Management Personnel
Security Deposit

Sec tra Plaza Private Limi ted 430.80 430.80
Current Liabilities

Sec tra Plaza Private Limi ted 4.32 —
Softweb Technologies Private Limited 7.97 2.59

Key Manag ement Person nel
Current Liabilities

Mr. Vinay K. Goenka 43.20 40.20
Mr. S. K. Ghosh 32.40 30.00

Advanc es
Mr. S. K. Ghosh 6.93 8.87
Mr. S. Roy 0.44 0.92

23 Segment In formation
(i) The Company is engaged in the integrated process of growing, harvesting, manufacturing and sale of

Black Tea during the year and has iden tified one operating segment i .e, Tea.
(i i) Geographical Information

Domestic Expor ts Total
Revenue from External C ustomers 11366.18 479.21 11845.39

(9924.38) (953.88) (10878.26)

Non-Curren t Assets* 8830.03 — 8830.03
(8435.70)                          — (8435.70)

* Non-Current Assets excludes Financial Assets, Deferred Tax Assets and Post Employment Benefit Assets.

Figures o f Previous Year are indicated in Italics within brackets “(  )”

(ii i)The Company has entered into transactions with a single external customer exceeding 10% of the
Turnover of the Company.
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Note 30 (Contin ued)                                                                                                                    (` in Lakhs)

24 Movements in Deferred Tax Assets /( Liabilities)
                                                                       Recogni sed in

Balance  as at Other Balance  as at
1st Apri l, 2017 Profit & Loss Comprehensive 31st March, 2018

Income

Deferred Tax Liabilities
on financial allowances on Proper ty,

Plant & Equipment ( 808.07) (28.73) — ( 836.80)
On Capi tal Work in P rogress ( 349.65) (43.94) — ( 393.59)

(1157.72) (72.67) — (1230.39)

Deferred Tax Assets
Business Loss 873.01 404.58 ( 147.45) 1130.14
Provisi on for doubtful debts 2.04 (0.13) — 1.91
Change in value of inventory 12.51 (12.51) — —
Expenses  allowable on payment 147.55 (29.28) — 118.27
Change i n value of Inv estment 4.49 (15.78) (11.29)
Other timing difference 3.22 (1.33) — 1.89

1042.82 361.33 ( 163.23) 1240.92

Deferred Tax Assets/ (Liabilities) (Net) ( 114.90) 288.66 ( 163.23) 10.53

                                                                      Recognised in
Balance  as at Other Balance  as at

1st Apri l, 2016 Profit & Loss Comprehensive 31st March, 2017
Income

Deferred Tax Liabilities
on financial allowances on Proper ty,

Plant & Equipment ( 693.45) ( 114.62) — ( 808.07)
On Capi tal Work in P rogress ( 273.26) (76.39) — ( 349.65)

( 966.71) ( 191.01) — (1157.72)

Deferred Tax Assets
Business Loss — 815.80 57.21 873.01
Provisi on for doubtful debts 2.04 — — 2.04
Change in value of inventory 37.77 (25.26) — 12.51
Expenses  allowable on payment 3.51 144.04 — 147.55
Change i n value of Inv estment 3.97 — 0.52 4.49
Other timing difference 4.78 (1.56) — 3.22

52.07 933.02 57.73 1042.82

Deferred Tax Assets /(Liabilities)(Net) ( 914.64) 742.01 57.73 ( 114.90)
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Note 30 (Contin ued)                                                                                                                    (` in Lakhs)

25. Reconciliation of Effective Tax Rate As at As at
31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017

Profit be fore Tax (1077.90) (2370.27)
Income Tax Expense at 28.30%

(Previous  Year - 30.36%) ( 305.04) ( 719.61)
Impacts  on

Exem pt Income 1.77 23.38
Items not deductible i n Taxes (1.19) (0.17)
Deducti on available i n Taxes 2.45 6.41
Other Items 13.34 (52.01)

Income Tax recognised in Profit and Loss ( 288.66) ( 742.01)

26 (i) Categories of Fi nancial Instruments
Particulars As at 31.3.2018 As at 31.3.2017 As  at 01.04.2016

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
value value value Value value Value

Financial Assets
Measured at amor tised cost

Equity shares in Associate 3146.98 3146.98 3146.98 3146.98 3146.98 3146.98
Cash and Cash Equiv alents 8.65 8.65 10.21 10.21 1420.41 1420.41
Other Bank  Balances 1.19 1.19 1.19 1.19 1.19 1.19
Loans 624.67 624.67 629.95 629.95 631.95 631.95
Trade Receivables 3953.57 3953.57 4606.41 4606.41 3660.58 3660.58
Other Financial Assets 6.86 6.86 205.69 205.69 844.63 844.63

4594.94 4594.94 5453.45 5453.45 6558.76 6558.76
Measured at Fair value  through

Other Comprehensive  Income
Equity Shares 168.36 168.36 133.46 133.46 165.49 165.49

Total Financial Assets 4763.30 4763.30 5586.91 5586.91 6724.25 6724.25
Financial Liabilities

Measured at amor tised cost
Borrowings 3334.90 3334.90 2570.56 2570.56 1030.82 1030.82
Trade Payables 1451.15 1451.15 1314.66 1314.66 1049.00 1049.00
Other financia l Liabilities 910.32 910.32 1385.02 1385.02 1431.57 1431.57

Total Financia l Liabilities 5696.37 5696.37 5270.24 5270.24 3511.39 3511.39

(ii) Fair Val ue Hierarchy of Assets and Liabilities measured at Fair Val ue on a recurri ng basis
Fair Value                   Fair Va lue as at

Particulars  Hierarchy 31st M arch, 31st M arch, 1st April,
Level 2018 2017 2016

Financial Assets
Equity Shares 1 1.31 6.10 32.13
Equity Shares 3 167.05 127.36 133.36

(iii) Fair val ue measurements for biological assets othe r than bearer plants:
2 161.60 69.19 67.07

Fair value is being arrived at based on the observable market prices of made tea adjusted for manufacturing costs.
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Note 30 (Contin ued)                                                                                                                    (` in Lakhs)

27. First time Ind-AS adoption reconcil iations:

(i) Reconciliation of Equity as repor ted under previous GAAP
Par ticulars As at As at

31st March, 2017 1st April, 2016
(Date of Transition)

Total Equ ity (Shareholders’Funds)
under previous GAAP 10530.04 12094.35

Adjustments for
Investments in shares (14.80) (13.08)
Loans to Employees (10.59) (15.74)
Value of  Inventory of b lack tea (83.19) (124.41)
Value o f Biological  Assets 69.19 67.07
Replantin g Subsidy (81.42) —
Bearer Plan ts — 2635.08
Revaluation Reserve — (1879.62)

Tax Effect on above Adjustments (424.51) (1018.76)
Total Equity under Ind AS 9984.72 11744.89

(ii) Reconcilliation of Total Comprehensive Income
    Par ticulars For the year ended

31st March, 2017
Profit /  (Loss) after Tax as per previous GAAP (1516.88)
Adjustments

Change in Value of Inventory of  Black Tea 41.22
Recognition of Biological Assets 2.12
Valuation of Investments in Shares at Fair Value (1.72)
Reclassification of Replantin g Subsidy as Defer red Income (81.42)
Valuation of Loans to Employees at Fair Value 5.15

Tax effect on above adjustments (208.64)
Total Comprehensive Income un der Ind AS (1760.17)

28. Figures of Previous Year and as on Transition Date have been regrouped or rearranged, wherever necessary

                       Sign atures to Note Nos. 1 to 30

B M Chatrath & Co LLP
Firm Registration Number - 301011E/E300025
Char tered Accountants
Sukhpreet S. Sidhu S. Roy Vinay K.  Goenka
Partner Company Secretary Ch airman
Membership Number - 052187 S. K. Mukhopadhyay S. K. Ghosh
Kolkata, 26th May, 2018 Chief Financial Officer Managing Director
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT
for the year ended 31st March, 2018

         ( ̀  in Lakhs)

Curren t Year Previou s Year

A. Cash Flow from operating activities

Profit /  (Loss) before Taxation (1077.90) (2370.27)
Adjustments for

Depreciation and Amor tisation 363.87 361.91
Finance Costs 374.76 232.20
Income from Interest and Dividends (4.20) (51.07)
Biological Assets oth er than Bearer  Plants (92.41) (2.12)
Provisions no longer required w ritten back (0.53) (13.20)
Net Gain on Sale of Current Investments —                       (1.60)
Net (Gain ) / Loss on Sale of Non-Current In vestments (0.30)                     (16.96)
Profit on D isposal of Proper ty,  Plant and

Equipmen t (Net) (1.64) (2.23)
Operatin g Profit before working capital  changes (438.35) (1863.34)
Adjustments for changes in

Trade and Other Receivables 775.77 (100.03)
Inventor ies 68.51 65.02
Trade Payables and Oth er Liabil ities (135.84) 72.39

Cash gen erated from operations 270.09 (1825.96)
Direct Taxes Paid (0.34) 76.59

Net Cash from operating activities (A) 269.75 (1749.37)

B. Cash Flow from investing activities

Purchase of  Proper ty, Plant and  Equipment (675.68) (995.14)
Payment of Capital Advances (23.71) (97.95)
Purchase of Current Investments — (5.01)
Sale of Non-current Investments 5.29  43.82
Sale of  Current Investments — 6.61
Sale of Proper ty, Plant and Equipment 1.75 2.23
Interest and Dividend Received 29.08 70.13

Net Cash  from / (used) in investing ac tivities (B) (663.27) (975.31)

C. Cash Flow from financing activities

Proceeds from Shor t-term Borrowings 3378.95  2655.95
Proceeds from Long-term Borrowings 500.10 999.90
Repayment of Long -term Borrowings (214.71) (116.11)
Repayment of Shor t -term Borrowings (2900.00) (2000.00)
Finance C osts Paid (372.38) (225.26)
Net Cash  from / (used) in financing ac tivities (C) 391.96 1314.48

Net increase / (decrease) in  Cash and
Cash Equ ivalents (A+B+C) (1.56) (1410.20)
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT (Continued)

( ̀  in Lakhs)

Curren t Year Previou s Year

     Cash and Cash Equ ivalents
Opening Balance

Cash and Cash Equivalents [Note 10] 10.21 1420.41

Closing Balance
Cash and Cash Equivalents [Note 10] 8.65 10.21

1. The above Cash Flow Statement has been  prepared in ac cordance with Ind AS 7.

2. The Notes referred to above form an integral par t of the Cash Flow Statement.

3. Previous year’s figures have been regrouped or rearran ged, wherever necessary.

As per our repor t of even date.

B M Chatrath & Co LLP
Firm Registration Number - 301011E/E300025
Char tered Accountants
Sukhpreet S. Sidhu S. Roy Vinay K.  Goenka
Partner Company Secretary Ch airman
Membership Number - 052187 S. K. Mukhopadhyay S. K. Ghosh
Kolkata, 26th May, 2018 Chief Financial Officer Managing Director
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of

Warren Tea Limited

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS financ ial statements of  Warren Tea Limi ted (“the
Company”) and  its associate company, comprising of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018,
the Conso lidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the Con solidated
Statement of Changes in Equity, the Consolidated Statement o f Cash Flows for the year then ended, and a
summary o f the significant accounting policies and other explan atory information (hereinafter refer red to as
“the con solidated Ind AS financial statements”).

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of these consolidated Ind AS financial
statemen ts in terms of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Ac t”) that
give a true and fai r view of the consolidated financial  position, consolidated financial per formance including
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the
Company including its associate company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act. The respective
Board of Directors of the company and of its associate company are responsible for maintenance of adequate
accounting rec ords in accordance with th e provisions of the Act fo r safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irreg ularities; the selection and application of app ropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate in ternal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements that give a true and  fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been  used for the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated Ind AS financ ial statements by the Directors of the Company, as aforesaid.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated Ind AS financ ial statements based on our
audit. Wh ile conducting the audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accou nting and
auditing standards and matters which are requ ired to be included in the audit repor t under the provisions of
the Act an d the Rules made th ere under.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the
Act. Those Standards requi re that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and per form the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated Ind AS financial statements are free from material
misstatemen t.

An audit involves per forming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the
consolidated Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant
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Auditors’ Report (Continued)

to the Company’s preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on whether the Company has an adequate internal financial controls system over financial repor ting
in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of the ac counting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s
Board of Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

We believe that the audi t evidence obtained by us is suf ficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on  the consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to th e best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
consolidated Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and
give a true and fair view in conformity with  the accounting pr inciples generall y accepted in India, of the
consolidated state of affairs of the Compan y and its associate company as at March 31, 2018, and their
consolidated loss, consolidated total comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
their consolidated cash  flows for the year ended on th at date.

Other Matter

The comparative financial information of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2017 and the transition
date opening balance sheet as at April 1, 2016 included in these consolidated Ind AS financial statements, are
based on the previously issued statutory fin ancial statements for the years ended March 31, 2017 and March
31, 2016 prepared in acco rdance with the Companies (Accou nting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended)
which were audited by us,  on which we expressed an unmodif ied opinion dated  May 30, 2017 an d May 26,
2016 respectively. The adjustments to those financial statements for the differenc es in accounting principles
adopted by the Company on transition to the Ind  AS have been audi ted by us.

Our opinion is not qualified  in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act,  we repor t, to th e extent applicab le, that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanation s which to the best of our  knowledge and
belief were necessary for th e purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated
Ind AS financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Conso lidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement o f Pro fit an d Loss (in cluding other
comprehen sive income), Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and th e Consolidated C ash Flow
Statement dealt with by this Repor t are in agreement with the relevant books of  account maintained for the
purpose o f preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements comply with the Ind ian Accounting
Standards specified under  Section 133 of the Act.



110

Auditors’ Report (Continued)

(e) On th e basis of the wri tten representations received from the directors of th e Company and its associate
company as on March 31, 2018 and the repor ts of the statutory auditor of the associate company, none of the
directo rs of the Company and its associate compan y is disqualif ied as on Marc h 31, 2018 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Sec tion 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to  the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial repor ting  of the Company and
its assoc iate company and the operating eff ectiveness of suc h controls, refer  to our separate Repor t in
“Annexure A”.

(g) With  respect to the other matters to be included in  the Auditor’s Repor t in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion an d to the best of our information
and acco rding to the explanations given to us:

i. The conso lidated Ind AS financial statements disclose the impact of pending li tigations
on consolid ated financial position of the Company and its associate company as referred
to in Note No. 30 (11) to the financial statements.

ii. The Company and its assoc iate company did not have any long -term contracts including
derivative contracts f or which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts whic h were required to be transferred  to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company and its associate c ompany during the year.

For B M Chatrath & Co LLP
Char tered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 301011E/E300025

Sukhpreet S. Sidhu
Plac e: Kolkata Partner
Date: 26 May, 2018 Membership Number 052187
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‘ANNEXURE – A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial repor ting of Warren Tea Limited (“the Company”)
and its associate company as of March 31, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated Ind AS
Financial  Statements of th e Company for th e year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Respective Board of Directors of the Company and i ts associate company are responsible for establishing
and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over f inancial repor ting  criteria
establish ed by the Company considering the essential components of internal con trol stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Repor ting issued by the Institute of Char tered
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial contro ls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduc t of its
business,  including adherence to company’s policies, the saf eguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection  of frauds and er rors, the accurac y and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable fin ancial information , as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsib ility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal fin ancial c ontrols over financial
repor ting  based on our aud it. We conducted  our audit in acc ordance with the Guidance Note on  Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Repor ting (the “Gu idance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing,
issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to  the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Gu idance Note require that we
comply wi th ethical requi rements and plan and per form the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal f inancial controls over financial repor ting was establ ished and maintain ed and if
such con trols operated effectively in  all material r espects.

Our audit involves per forming  procedures to ob tain aud it evidence about the adequacy of  the internal
financial  controls system over financial repor ting and thei r operating effec tiveness.

Our audit of internal financial controls over financial repor ting included obtaining an understanding of
internal f inancial controls over financial repor ting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing an d evaluating the design and operatin g effectiveness of  internal control based on the assessed risk.
The p rocedures selected depen d on the auditor ’s judgement, inc luding the assessment of  the risks of
material misstatement of th e Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have ob tained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opin ion on the Company’s internal financ ial controls system over financial r epor ting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s in ternal financial control over finan cial repo r ting is a process designed to provide reasonable
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assurance regard ing the rel iability o f financial  repor ting  and the preparation of financial statemen ts for
external purposes in acco rdance with generall y accepted accounting princip les. A company’s internal
financial  control over fin ancial repor ting includes those pol icies and procedu res that:

(1) per tain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonab le assu rance th at transactions are rec orded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial  statements in ac cordance with gen erally accepted accounting princip les, and that rec eipts and
expenditu res of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of manag ement and
directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assu rance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations o f internal financial controls over financial repor tin g, including the
possibili ty of collusion or  improper management override of c ontrols, material misstatements due to error
or fraud  may occur and n ot be detected.  Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
over  financial repo r ting to  future periods are sub ject to  the risk that the internal fin ancial control over
financial repor ting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opin ion and to the best of  our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company
and its associate company h as, in all material respects, an adequate internal fin ancial controls system over
financial repor ting and such  internal financial controls over fin ancial repor ting w ere operating effectively as
at March 31, 2018, based on the internal control over f inancial repor ting cr iteria established by the Company
considering the essential c omponents of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of  Internal
Financial  Controls Over Financial Repor ting  issued by the Institute of Char tered Accountants of India.

For B M Chatrath & Co LLP
Char tered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 301011E/E300025
Sukhpreet S. Sidhu

Plac e: Kolkata Partner
Date: 26 May, 2018 Membership Number 052187
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
as at 31st March, 2018 As at As at As at

31st March, 31st March, 1st April,
Notes 2018 2017 2016

` in Lakhs ` in Lakhs ` in Lakhs
ASSETS

Non-Current Assets
Proper ty, Plant and Equipment 1 6931.66 6891.40 6477.22
Capital Work-in-Progress 1516.90 1241.32 1017.03
Other Intang ible Assets 2 1.93  6.07 11.31
Fin ancial Assets

In vestmen ts 3 4162.07 4167.28 3640.57
Loans 4 616.68 621.36 626.47
Oth er Financial Assets 5 3.80 177.75 797.63

Deferred Tax Assets - Liab ilities(Net) 6 10.53  — —
Other Non-Cu rrent Assets 7 379.54 296.91 348.76

13623.11 13402.09 12918.99
Current  Assets

Inventor ies 8 825.67 894.18 959.20
Biological Assets oth er than Bearer  Plants 161.60 69.19 67.07
Fin ancial Assets

Trade Rec eivab les 9 3953.57 4606.41 3660.58
Cash and Cash  Equivalents 10 8.65 10.21 1420.41
Other  Bank Balances 11 1.19 1.19 1.19
Loans 12 7.99 8.59 5.48
Oth er Financial Assets 13 3.06 27.94 47.00

Other Current Assets 14  108.89 111.51 185.63
5070.62 5729.22 6346.56

18693.73 19131.31 19265.55

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

Equity Share Capital 15 1195.08 1195.08 1195.08
Other Equity 9221.77 9676.48 10877.91

10416.85 10871.56 12072.99
Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities

Fin ancial Liabilities
Borrowings 16 1800.00 1699.90 914.71
Trade Payab les 110.00 110.00 122.07
Oth ers 17 113.61 81.42 —

Deferred Tax Assets - Liab ilities(Net) 6 — 114.90 914.64
Provisions 18 868.95 1255.78 1158.19

2892.56 3262.00 3109.61
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (Continued)
As at As at As at

31st March, 31st March, 1st April,
Notes 2018 2017 2016

`  in Lakhs `  in Lakhs `  in Lakhs

Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities

Borrowings 19 1134.90 655.95 —
Trade Payables 1341.15 1204.66 926.93
Other Financial Liabilities 20 1196.71 1518.31 1547.68

Other Current Liabilities 21 6.00 81.12 82.37
Provisions 22 746.13 577.94 642.79
Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 959.43 959.77 883.18

5384.32 4997.75 4082.95

18693.73 19131.31 19265.55
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 30

The Notes referred to above form an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

As per our report of even date.

B M Chatrath & Co LLP
Firm Registration Number - 301011E/E300025
Chartered Accountants
Sukhpreet S. Sidhu S. Roy Vinay K. Goenka
Partner Company Secretary Chairman
Membership Number - 052187 S. K. Mukhopadhyay S. K. Ghosh
Kolkata, 26th May, 2018 Chief Financial Officer Managing Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS
for the year ended 31st March, 2018

Curren t Year Previou s Year
Notes ` in Lakhs ` in Lakhs

Income
Revenue from Operations 23   11899.11   10970.66
Other Income 24   138.43   184.70

Total Income 12037.54   11155.36

Expenses
Changes in  Inventories of Finished Goods 25   (72.02)   51.17
Employee Benefits Expense 26   8486.16   8943.01
Finance Costs 27   374.76   232.20
Depreciation and Amor tisation Expense 28   363.87   361.91
Other Expenses 29   3962.67   3937.34

Total Expenses 13115.44 13525.63

Loss before Tax  (1077.90)  (2370.27)
Tax Expense

Current Tax — —
Deferred Tax (288.66) (742.01)

Loss after tax but before share of profit/(loss) from Associate (789.24)  (1628.26)
Add : Share of Profit / (Loss) of Investments in  Associate

  [Refer Note No. 30(26)] (48.87) 556.53
Loss for the year (838.11) (1071.73)

Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss :

Employee Benefits Expense 497.98 (184.47)
Effect for Change in Value of Investments 39.89  (5.17)
Share of  Other Comprehen sive Income in Associate 11.80 3.20
Income Tax relating to Items that wil l not be

reclassi fied to Profit or Loss (166.27) 56.74
383.40 (129.70)

Total Comprehensive Income (454.71)   (1201.43)
Basic an d Diluted Earnin gs per Equity Sh are of ̀  10 each (`) (7.01)   (8.97)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 30
The Notes referred to above form an integral p ar t of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

As per our repor t of even date.

B M Chatrath & Co LLP
Firm Registration Number - 301011E/E300025
Char tered Accountants
Sukhpreet S. Sidhu S. Roy Vinay K.  Goenka
Partner Company Secretary Ch airman
Membership Number - 052187 S. K. Mukhopadhyay S. K. Ghosh
Kolkata, 26th May, 2018 Chief Financial Officer Managing Director

sheetal.pawar
Highlight
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the year ended 31st March, 2018

  (` in Lakhs)

A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
Changes in
Equity Share

Balance as Capital during Balance as
 at  01.04.2017 th e Year  at  31.03.2018

1195.08 — 1195.08

B. OTHER EQUITY
Reserves and Surplus   Equity

   Instruments
Sec urities through other Total

Capi tal Premium General Retain ed comprehensive
Reserve Reserve Reserve Earnings Income

Balance as at 1st Apri l, 2016 185.37 963.03 2415.58 7319.59 (5.66) 10877.91

Profit /  (Loss) for th e Period — — — (1071.73) — (1071.73)

Other C omprehensive Income — — — (125.62) (4.08) (129.70)

Balance as at  31st March, 2017 185.37 963.03 2415.58 6122.24 (9.74) 9676.48

Profit /  (Loss) for th e Period — — — (838.11) — (838.11)

Other C omprehensive Income — — — 353.79 29.61 383.40

Balance as at  31st March, 2018 185.37 963.03 2415.58 5637.92 19.87 9221.77

As per our repor t of even date.

B M Chatrath & Co LLP
Firm Registration Number - 301011E/E300025
Char tered Accountants
Sukhpreet S. Sidhu S. Roy Vinay K.  Goenka
Partner Company Secretary Ch airman
Membership Number - 052187 S. K. Mukhopadhyay S. K. Ghosh
Kolkata, 26th May, 2018 Chief Financial Officer Managing Director
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
As at As at As at

31st March, 31st March, 1st April,
2018 2017 2016

` in Lakhs ` in Lakhs ` in Lakhs

Note 3

INVESTMENTS
(NON-CURRENT ASSET)

(At Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income)
Unquoted  - Equity Instruments

10000 Equity Sh ares of ̀  10/- each fully
paid-up  in ABC Tea Workers * *  *
Wel fare Services

        150000 Equity Shares of  ̀  10/- each fully
paid-up in  Warren Steels Private Limited   167.05 127.36 133.36

Quoted - Equity Instruments
15150 Equity Shares of  ̀  10/- each fully

paid-up in Pal Peugeot Limited  * *  *
35 Equity Shares of  ̀  10/- each fully

paid-up in Hindusthan Engineering  * *  *
& Industries Limited

225 Equity Shares of  ̀  5/- eac h fully
paid-up in  McLeod Russel Ind ia Limited   0.32  0.37 0.42

864 Equity Shares of  ̀  10/- each f ully paid-up
in Syndic ate Bank   0.50 0.62 0.58

100 Equity Sh ares of  ` 10/- each f ully paid-up
in Good ricke Group Limited   0.32 0.27 0.17

100 Equity Sh ares of ̀  10/- each f ully paid-up
in NTPC Limited   0.17 0.17         0.13

Ni l (Previou s Year - 2700) Equity Sh ares of  ̀  2/-
each full y paid-up in Bank of Baroda — 4.67 3.97

Ni l Equity Shares of  ̀  1/- each fully paid-up in
State Bank of India — —  3.89

Ni l Equity Sh ares of ̀   2/- each f ully paid-up
in Rain Indu stries Ltd. — —  5.21

Ni l Equity Sh ares of ̀  10/- each f ully paid-up
in Subex Ltd. — — 17.76

Quoted - Debenture an d Bonds
100 Debenture of  ̀  12.50 each f ully paid-up

in NTPC Limited  *  *  *

                                Carried  forward 168.36 133.46 165.49
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As at As at As at
31st March, 31st March, 1st April,

2018 2017 2016
` in Lakhs ` in Lakhs ` in Lakhs

Note 3 (Continued)

                              Brought forward 168.36 133.46 165.49

Unquoted  - Equity Instruments (Equity Method)
Investmen t in Associate
6500000   Equity Shares of ̀  10/- each f ully paid-up

in  Maple Hotels & Resor ts Limited 3993.71 4033.82   3475.08
4162.07 4167.28   3640.57

Notes :
1 Market Value of Quoted Investments 1.31 6.10 32.13
2 Aggregate Book Value of Quoted Investments 0.77 5.76 36.12

3 Aggregate Book Value o f Unquoted Investments 4160.76 4161.18 3608.44
4 Aggregate Provision for d iminution in the value of

In vestmen ts 23.31 57.00 63.31

5 * Indicates that amount is below the roun ding off
norm adopted by the C ompany.

Note 4

LOANS
(NON-CURRENT ASSET)

(Unsecured - Considered Good)
Secur ity Deposits

(Include Deposit to Related Par ty ̀  430.80; 611.45  607.42 608.59
Previous Year - ̀  430.80:
Transition date - ̀  433.20) [Refer Note No. 30(22)]

Other Loans
Loans to  Employees for  housing, vehicle and
furniture [Refer Note No. 30(22)]                     5.23 13.94    17.88

616.68 621.36 626.47
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As at As at As at
31st March, 31st March, 1st April,

2018 2017 2016
` in Lakhs ` in Lakhs ` in Lakhs

Note 5

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
(NON-CURRENT ASSET)

Deposits with National Bank for Agricul ture and
Rural  Development 3.80 177.75 797.63

3.80 177.75 797.63
Note 6

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (NET)
(NON-CURRENT ASSET)

 Deferred Tax Assets
Timing difference on account of :

Expenses allowable on payment 118.27  147.55                   3.51
Provision for Doubtful Debts  1.91 2.04                   2.04
Business Loss 1130.14 873.00 —
Value of  Inventory of Black Tea — 12.51                 37.77
Present Value of Loans to Employees 1.89 3.22                   4.78
Fair Value of Investments  — 4.49                   3.97

1252.21 1042.81                 52.07
 Less : Deferred Tax Liabilities

Timing difference on account of :
Effect o f change in Proper ty, Plant & Equipment 836.79 808.07               693.45
Effect o f change in Investments 11.29 — —
Effect of change in Capital work-in-progress 393.60 349.64               273.26

 10.53  (114.90)             (914.64)
Note 7

OTHER ASSETS
(NON-CURRENT ASSET)

(Unsecured - Considered Good)
Deposits with Government Authorities an d Others  5.10  4.87  5.69
Capital Advances 183.56 159.85 61.90
Other Advances 190.88 132.19 281.17

379.54 296.91 348.76
Note 8

INVENTORIES
(CURRENT ASSET)

(At lower o f cost or net realisable value)
Stock of Tea 440.93  368.91 420.08
Stock o f Stores and  Spares 384.74 525.27 539.12

825.67 894.18 959.20
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As at As at As at
31st March, 31st March, 1st April,

2018 2017 2016
` in Lakhs ` in Lakhs ` in Lakhs

Note 9

TRADE RECEIVABLES
(CURRENT ASSET)

  (Unsecured)
Trade Rec eivab les

Considered Good 3953.57 4606.41 3660.58
Considered Doubtful 34.85 34.85               34.85
Less: Provision for Doubtful Debts                    34.85 34.85               34.85

                      — — —
3953.57 4606.41 3660.58

Note 10

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(CURRENT ASSET)

Cash and Cash  Equivalents
Balan ces with Banks

Current Accounts 4.77  6.37               65.91
Deposit Ac counts with less than three

months matu rity — — 1350.00
Cash on hand 3.87  2.30                 2.82
Cash with Garden Kayahs  0.01 1.54                 1.68

8.65 10.21 1420.41
Note 11

OTHER BANK BALANCES
(CURRENT ASSET)

Deposit Accounts  1.19  1.19                 1.19
1.19 1.19 1.19

Note 12

LOANS
(CURRENT ASSET)

(Unsecured - Considered Good)
Loans to Employees for housing, vehicle and furniture 7.99 8.59                 5.48

[Refer Note No. 30(22)]
7.99 8.59 5.48

Note 13

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
(CURRENT ASSET)

(Unsecured - Considered Good)
Interest Accrued on Deposits 3.06 27.94               47.00

3.06 27.94 47.00
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As at As at As at

31st March, 31st March, 1st April,
2018 2017 2016

` in Lakhs ` in Lakhs ` in Lakhs
Note 14

OTHER ASSETS
(CURRENT ASSET)

Deposits with Government Au thorities
 and O thers 1.28 3.45 2.98

Other Advances  53.78 41.04             113.34
Subsidy Receivable — —                 5.06
Prepaid Expenses  53.83 67.02               64.25

108.89 111.51 185.63
Note 15

EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised

2,00,00,000 Equity Shares of ̀  10/- each 2000.00 2000.00 2000.00
Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid-up

1,19,50,804 Equity Shares of ̀  10/- each
(including Bonus Shares - 57,86,601) 1195.08 1195.08 1195.08

1195.08 1195.08 1195.08

No. of Shares No. of Shares No. of Shares
Reconcil iation of the n umber of Equity Shares

Outstand ing at the beg inning and at the end
of the year 11950804 11950804 11950804

Shareholders holding more th an 5% shares of th e Company
Name No. of No. of No. of

Shares % Shares % Shares %

Vinay K.  Goenka 3977613 33.28 4009202 33.55 2004601 16.77
Maple Hotels & Resor ts Limited 3196448 26.75 3196448 26.75 1598224 13.37
Vivek Goen ka 1476876 12.36 1476876 12.36 738438 6.18
C. K. Dhanuka, P. K. Khaitan

and D. P. Jindal — — 1416074 11.85 1416074 11.85
(Jointly as Escrow Agents)

Ashden e Investments Ltd. —  — — — 1181505 9.89
Isis Enterp rises Ltd. — — —  — 1102785 9.23
Maygrove Investments Ltd. — — — — 630106 5.27

Rights, preferences and  restrictions attached  to shares
The Company has only one c lass of shares being Equity Shares having a par value of  ̀  10/- each. All
equity shares ran k  pari  passu in all r espects inc lud ing voting righ ts,  entitlemen t to  dividend and
repayment o f capital.
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As at As at As at
31st March, 31st March, 1st April,

2018 2017 2016
` in Lakhs ` in Lakhs ` in Lakhs

Note 16

BORROWINGS
(NON-CURRENT LIABILITY - SECURED )

Term Loans from a Bank 500.00 700.00               900.00
[Secured  by joint equi table mor tgage / first
charge on  the entire fixed assets of the Company,
ranking  pari passu amon gst the Banks, repayable
in quar terly instalments ending in Ju ly 2021]

Term Loans from a Bank 1300.00 999.90 —
[Secured by first charge on equitable mor tgage of
all the fixed assets, movable and immovable, and
second c harge on stock and book debts of the
Company ranking pari passu amongst th e banks,
repayab le in quar ter ly instalmen ts with a moratorium
of one year, ending in Febru ary 2023]

Term Loan f rom a Bank — — 14.71
[Secured  by way of hypothecation of related car,
repayable in monthly instalments]

1800.00 1699.90               914.71
Note 17

OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
(NON-CURRENT LIABILITY)

Deferred  Income received from
Govern ment Autho rities 113.61 81.42 —

113.61 81.42                     —

Note 18

PROVISIONS
(NON-CURRENT LIABILITY)

Provision for Employee Benefits 868.95 1255.78 1158.19
868.95 1255.78 1158.19
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As at As at As at
31st March, 31st March, 1st April,

2018 2017 2016
` in Lakhs ` in Lakhs ` in Lakhs

Note 19

BORROWINGS
(CURRENT LIABILITY - SECURED)

Working Capital Facilities f rom Banks
[Secured  by joint equi table mor tgage/charge
on the c urrent assets an d fixed assets,  present
and future,  ranking pari passu amongst the
Banks severall y, repayable on demand] 1134.90 655.95  —

1134.90 655.95 —

Note 20

OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
(CURRENT LIABILITY)

Current Maturity of Long-Term Debt 400.00 214.71               116.11
Interest accrued and due on borrowings 18.11 15.73                  8.79
Oth er Payab les

Employee Benefits Payable 771.94 1282.34 1418.04
Retention Money 6.66 5.53 4.74

1196.71 1518.31 1547.68

Note 21

OTHER LIABILITIES
(CURRENT LIABILITY)

Advance from Customers 0.88 3.43                  2.54
Statutory Dues 5.12 77.69                79.83

6.00 81.12 82.37
Note 22

PROVISIONS
(CURRENT LIABILITY)

Provision for Employee Benefits 746.13 577.94 642.79
746.13 577.94 642.79
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Curren t Year Previou s Year
` in Lakhs ` in Lakhs

Note 23

REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Sale of Products - Tea 11845.39 10878.26
Other Operating Revenues

Sale of Tea Waste                  15.59 —
Government Gran t / Assistance 38.06 92.12
Sale of  Scrap 0.07 0.28

11899.11 10970.66

Note 24

OTHER INCOME
Changes in Fair value of Biolog ical Assets

other than Bearer Plants 92.41 2.12
Interest Income on Financial Assets on  Deposit 4.19 50.83
Dividend  Income from Non - Current Investments 0.01 0.24
Net Gain  on Sale of Non  - Current Investments 0.30 16.96
Net Gain on Sale of Current Investment                     —                   1.60
Other Non-operating  Income

Profit on D isposal of Proper ty,  Plant and
Equipmen t (Net) 1.64 2.23

Insuranc e Claims 15.52 25.72
Miscellaneous Receipts 6.97 63.28
Liabilities no longer required written back 0.53                 13.20
Net Gain  on Foreign Cur rency Transactions and

Translation 16.86                   8.52
138.43 184.70

Note 25

CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS
Opening In ventories 368.91 420.08
Less : Closing Inventories 440.93 368.91

(72.02) 51.17

Note 26

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
Salar ies and Wages 6343.01 6722.53
Contributions to Provident and Other Funds 1036.00 1000.68
Staff Welfare Expenses 1107.15 1219.80

8486.16 8943.01
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Curren t Year Previou s Year
` in Lakhs ` in Lakhs

Note 27

FINANCE COSTS
Interest Expense 358.09 212.60
Other Borrowing Costs 16.67 19.60

374.76 232.20

Note 28

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE
Depreciation on Proper ty, Plant and Equipment 359.73 356.67
Amor tisation on Intangible Assets 4.14 5.24

363.87 361.91

Note 29

OTHER EXPENSES
Consumption of Stores and Spare Par ts

Pac king Materials 132.14 128.09
Oth ers 1304.14 1128.84

Power and Fuel 1121.50 1067.19
Rent 43.27 20.43
Repairs to  Buildings 24.40 35.03
Repairs to  Machinery 21.36 19.24
Insurance 25.14 21.49
Rates and Taxes 170.82 159.60
Tea Board Cess 7.41 31.03
Administrative Overheads 532.00 699.59
Sell ing

Freight 320.13 309.12
Insurance 16.73 21.91
Other Selling Expenses 243.63 295.78

3962.67 3937.34
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1. Company Overview
Warren Tea Limited is engaged in the growing, harvesting, manufacture and sale of tea. The Company operates
with seven tea estates situ ated in Assam and sells  tea  in bulk both in domestic  and international  markets.
The Company is listed on the Bombay and C alcutta Stock Exchanges.

2. Statement of Compliance with Ind AS
These Consolidated financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting  Standards
(In d AS) as contained  in Companies (Ind ian Accou ntin g Standards) Rules, 2015  n otifi ed u nder Section
133 and other March 2017 were prepared in accordance with the accounting standards notified under Companies
(Acc ountin g Stan dards) Rules,  2006 (as amended) and oth er relevant provisions of  the Ac t. The finan cial
statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018 are the first f inancial statemen ts of the Company under Ind
AS. Comparative figures relating to  previous year and on the date of transition  have also been prepared in
accordan ce with Ind AS.  The date of tr ansition to  In d AS is 1st Apr il 2016.

3. Significant Accounting Policies

3.1  Classification of Current and Non-Current Assets and Liabilities
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal
operating  cycle and other c riteria set out in the Schedule III  to the Companies Act, 2013 and Ind  AS 1.The
Compan y has ascer tained its operating cycle as tw elve month s for the purpose of c lassification of
current and non-current assets and liab ilities.

3.2  Historical Cost Conventions
These fin ancial statements have been prepared in accordan ce with the generally accepted accounting
principles in India under  the historical c ost convention, except for the f ollowing:

 i) cer tain financial assets and liabil ities that are measured at fai r value;
 ii) Plan  assets relating  to defined benef it plans that are measured at fair value;
iii) biological assets (in cluding un-plucked green leaves) – measured at fai r value less cost to sell.

Historical cost is general ly based on the f air value of the c onsideration received in exchange for goods
and services.

Fair Value is the price that would be received  to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market par ticipants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation tec hnique. In  estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the C ompany takes into account the charac teristics of the asset or liability if market
par ticipants would take those characteristics into account when pr icing th e asset or liab ility at the
measurement date.

Fair valu e for measuremen t and/or disclosu re purposes in these financial statements is determined on
such a basis and measurements that have some similarities to  fair value but are not fair value, such as
net real isable value in  Ind AS 2 or value in use in In d AS 36.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make estimates
based on its  judgements, and assumptions that affect the app lication of the accounting policies and the
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repor ted amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date
of the financ ial statemen ts,  and  the repor ted amoun ts o f reven ues and expenses du ring  the year.
Ac tual  results could differ from those estimates. The estimates and un derlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to acc ounting estimates are recognised  in the per iod in which the
estimate is revised if the revision  affects only that period ; they are recognised in the per iod of  the
revision  as well as for future periods i f the revision affects both cur rent and future periods.

Th e C onsol idated  Finan cial Statements c omprise the financial statements of its Assoc iate being
Maple Ho tels & Resor ts L imited, India, h olding 46.92% ownership by the Company.

Investments in Associate Companies is accounted for in  accordance w ith IND AS 28 on Investments
in Associates an d Join t Ventures in consolidated fin ancial  statements prescribed under the Act, u nder
Equity Method.

3.3  Sales and Revenue Recognition

Revenue is measured at th e fair value of the consideration  received or receivable. Amounts disclosed
as revenue are net of sales returns and trade discounts.

Revenue f or Sale of Goods is recognised in the Income Statement when the title, risk and rewards of
ownership passed to th e buyer.

3.4  Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions in foreign  currenc y are acc ounted fo r at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities related to foreign currency transactions remaining unsettled
at the en d of the year are translated at year-end exchange rates. Exchange Gains or Losses ar ising out
of fluctu ations in the exch ange rates on settlement or translation are recognised  in the Statement of Profit
and Loss in the period  in which they arise.

3.5  Government Grants/ Assistance

Government Grants/Assistance (Grant) are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance
that the Grant will be received and the Company will comply with the conditions attached to them.

Grants relating to income are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which
the Company recognises as expenses the related costs for wh ich the Grants are intended to compensate.

Grants relating to assets are presented as deferred income in the Balance Sh eet and are recognised in
profit o r loss on a systematic basis over the useful lif e of the related  assets.

3.6  Property, Plant and Equipment

(i) Bearer Plants

Bearer Plants have been recognised  on 1st April, 2016 as an item of Proper ty, Plant and Equipment
in accordance with previous GAAP, on which depreciation has been provided. Expenses on replanting
and young tea maintenance of Bearer Plants are considered as Capital Work-in-Progress. Depreciation
on  Bearer Plants is ch arged  on  estimated useful  li fe of  77 years ascer tained u pon  tech nic al
evaluation . Depreciation on Bearer Plants is rec ognised so as to wr ite of f its cost over useful  lives,
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using the straight-line method. In ac cordanc e wi th Ind AS, Bearer Plants are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

(ii) Items Other than Bearer Plants

Freehold land is carried at historical cost. All other items are stated at historical cost less depreciation.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the construction or acquisition of the
items of the related proper ty, plant and equipment.

However, d epreciation on Proper ty, Plant and Equ ipment and Intan gible Assets of  the associate
Company is provided on Wr itten Down Value Method over the useful life of an asset as per Schedule
II to the Compan ies Act, 2013. 

Proper ties in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative purposes are carried at
cost, less any recognised impairment  loss. Depreciation of these assets, are on the same basis as other
proper ty assets, and commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Subsequen t costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.  All other repairs and maintenance
are charg ed to profit and loss during the repor ting period in which they are incurred.

An item of proper ty, plant and equipment is derec ognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from its use.  Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or reti rement of
an item o f proper ty, plan t and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Items of Proper ty, Plant and Equipment are depreciated in  a manner that amor tises the cost of the
assets net of its residual value, over their useful lives on a straight line basis. For additions/ disposals
of items during the course of the year, depreciation/amor tisation is recognised on a pro- rata basis.
Estimated useful lives of the assets are considered as specified in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013.

The estimated useful lives, residual valu es and depreciation method are reviewed at the en d of each
repor ting  period and the effect of any ch anges in estimate is accounted fo r on a prospective basis.
Compensation receivable for acquisition of Assets of the Company is accounted for upon acceptance
of the Company’s claim by the appropriate authorities.

Impairment of Assets
Assets are tested for impairment wh enever  events or c hanges in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised  in profit or loss for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amou nt. Assets that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each repor ting period.

Transition to Ind AS
On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its proper ty,
plant an d equipment recognised as at 1st April, 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP and use
that carrying value as the deemed cost of proper ty, plant and equipment.
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3.7  Intangible Assets

Intangible Assets of the C ompany are recog nised when it is an identifiable n on-monetory asset without
physical substance. An Asset is recognised  when it is expec ted to provide fu ture economic benefits to
flow to the Company. These assets are capitalised at the pr ice what would be received to sale an asset
or paid to transfer a liab ility in an order ly transaction between market par ticipants at the measurement
date. Useful life is determined as the period over which an asset is expected to be available f or use by
the Company. Depreciation on Intangible Assets is recognised so as to write-off its cost over the useful life.

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its Intangible
Assets recognised as of 1st April, 2016 (transition date) measured as per the previous GAAP and use
that carrying value as its deemed cost.

3.8 Financial instruments
Financial assets an d finan cial liabilities are recognised when the Company bec omes a par ty to  the
contrac tual provisions of the relevant instru ment and are initially measured at fai r value. Tran saction
costs that are directly attr ibutab le to the ac quisition or  issues of financial assets and  finan cial l iabili ties
(oth er than  financ ial assets and fin ancial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of fin ancial assets or financial
liabili ties. Pu rchase o r sale o f financ ial assets that requ ire delivery of assets w ithin a time frame
establish ed by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the
trade date, i.e., the date when the Company commits to pu rchase or sell the asset.

(i) Financial Assets Recognition and Classification
The finan cial assets are c lassified at initial recognition in the following measurement categ ories as:
- those subsequently measured at amor tised cost.
- those to be subsequently measured at fair value [either through other comprehensive income (OCI),
   or th rough profit o r loss]

Subsequent Measurement
- Financial assets measured at amortised cost –
Financial  assets which are held within th e business model  of collection o f contractual cash flows
and where those cash flows rep resent payments solely towards principal  and interest on the principal
amount outstanding are measured at amor tised cost. A gain or loss on a financial asset that is measured
at amor tised cost is rec ognised in prof it or loss when  the asset is derecognised or impaired.

- Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
- Financial assets that are held within a business model o f collection of c ontractual cash flows and
for selling and where the assets’ cash flow  represents solely payment of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding are measured at fair  value through OCI.  Movements in carrying amount
are taken through OCI, except for recognition of impairment gains or  losses.
When a financial asset, o ther than investment in equity in strument, is derecognised, the c umulative
gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified f rom equity to statement of profit and loss.
Classification of  equity instruments, not being investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
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arrangements, depend on whether the Company has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account fo r the equity investment at fair value through OCI. When investmen t in such
equity in strument is derecognised, the cu mulative gains o r losses recognised in OCI is transferred
within equity on such derecognition.

- Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss
Financial  assets are measu red at fair valu e through profit or loss unless it is measured at amor tised
cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income on initial recog nition. Movements in fair
value of these instruments are taken in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets
The Company assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or a group of  financial
assets is impaired. Impairment losses are recognised in the profit or loss w here there is an objective
evidenc e of impairment based  on reasonable and suppor table information th at is availab le without
undue cost or effor t.
The Company recognises loss allow ances on trade receivables when there is ob jective evidence
that the C ompany will n ot be able to collect all  the due amou nts dependin g on product catego ries
and the payment mechanism p revailing in the industry.
Income recognition on financial assets
Interest income from f inancial assets is recog nised in prof it or loss u sing effective interest rate
method, where applicable.  Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss only when the Company’s
right to  receive payments is established and the amoun t of dividend can be measured reliably.

(ii) Financial Liabilities
The Company’s financial l iabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including
bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts.
Financial  liabilities are classified accord ing to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered
into. Fin ancial liabilities are classified, at initial recogn ition, as subsequently measured at amortised
cost unless they fulfill the requirement of  measurement at f air value through  profit or loss. Where the
financial  liability has been measured at amor tised cost, the difference between the initial  carrying
amount of  the financial li abilities and their redemption value is recognised in the statement of profit
and loss over the contractual terms using the effective interest rate method.
Financial liabil ities at fai r valu e through profit or  loss are carried at fai r valu e with  chang es in fair
value recognised in the finance income or finance cost in the statement of profit and loss.

(iii) Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive benefits have expired or been transferred,
and the C ompany has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ow nership of such financial
asset. Financial liabilities are derecognised when the liability is extinguished, that is when the contractual
obligation is discharged , cancelled or expires.

(iv) Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial  assets and liabi lities are offset and the net amount is repor ted in the balance sh eet where
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised  amounts and there is an intention to settle
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on a n et basis or  realise the asset an d settle th e liability simultaneously.

3.9 Employee Benefits
a)  Short Term Employee Benefits
These are recognised at the undiscounted  amount as expense for the year  and are expensed as the
related  service is provided.

b)  Other Long term Employment Benefits
The cost o f providing long-term employee benefits is determined usin g Projected Unit Credit Method
with actu arial valuation being carried out at each Balance Sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses and
past service cost are rec ognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the period in
which they occur. Long term employee benefit obligation recognised in the Balance Sheet represents
the present value of related obligation.

c)  Post Employment Benefits
Contributions un der Defined Contribution Plans payable in keeping with the related schemes are
recognised  as expenditure for  the year.
In case of Defined Benefit Plans, the cost of providing the benefit is determined using the Projected Unit
Credit Method with  actuarial valu ation being carr ied out at each  Balance Sheet date.  Actuarial
gain s and losses are recog nised in  full in the Other Comprehensive Income for the per iod in w hich
they occu r. Past service cost is recognised immediately to  the extent that the benefits are already
vested, and otherwise is amor tised on a straight-line basis over the average period until the benefits
become vested. The retirement benef it obl igation  recog nised in the Balanc e Sheet represents the
present value of the defined benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecognised past service cost, if any,
and as reduced by the fair value of plan assets, where funded. Any asset resulting from this calculation
is limited to the present value of any economic benefit available in the form of refunds from the plan or
reductions in future contributions to the plan.

(i)    The Compan y operates defined  Contr ibution Schemes of  Provident Funds and makes reg ular
contributions to  Provident Fu nds wh ich are fully funded and administered by the Trustees and  are
independent of the Company’s finance. Such contributions are recognised in the Accounts on accrual
basis. In terest accruing to the Fund admin istered by the Trustees are credited to respective members’
accounts based on the rates stipulated by the Government and shor tf all if  any, recognised on  the
basis of  actuarial valu ation repor t in  this regard, is borne by the Company.
(ii)   The Company operates defined benefit Su perannuation and Gratuity Schemes administered
by the Trustees, which are independent o f the Company’s finance. Such ob ligations are recognised
in the Ac counts  on the basis of actuarial  valuation applying Projected Uni t Credit Method including
gains and  losses at the year-end.
(iii)  The Company operates a defined benefit Pension Scheme and Additional Retiral Benefit for certain
categories of employees for w hich obligations are recognised  in th e Accou nts based on  actuarial
valuation applying Projected  Unit Credit Method including gains and losses at the year-end.

3.10  Inventories
Inventories of Stores, as existing at the year-end, represent weighted average cost of proc urements.
Provision is made for obsolete and slow moving inventories whenever necessary in the Accou nts.
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Finished goods produced from agricultural p roduce are valued  at lower of cost, arrived at by adding the
cost of conversion to the fai r value of ag ricultu ral produce and the net realisable value.  Net realisable
valu e represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all selling  costs.

3.11 Biolog ical Assets
Bio logical assets of the Company c omprises un-harvested green  tea leaves that are c lassi fied  as
current assets.

The Company recognises b iological assets when, and only when, the Compan y controls the assets as
a result of past events. It is probable that future economic benefits associated  with such assets will flow
to the Company and the fai r value or cost o f the assets can  be measured reliably. Expenditure incurred
on biolog ical assets are measured on initial recognition and at the end of each repor ting period at its fair
value less costs to  sell . The gain  or loss ar ising  from a ch ange in fai r value less costs to  sell  of
biological assets are inc luded in statement of profit and  loss for the period in which it arises.
On transi tion to Ind AS the Company has recognised biological assets for the fi rst time as required by Ind
AS 101 at fair value less cost to sell as at 1st April,  2016 (transition date).

3.12  Trade Receivables
Trade rec eivables are rec ognised at Fair Value less provision for impairmen t if any.

3.13  Provision and Contingent Liabilities
Provisions are recognised w hen the Company has a present ob ligation ( legal or constructive) as a
result of  a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obl igation.
The amoun t recognised as a provision is th e best estimate o f the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the repor ting period, takin g in to account the risks and uncer tainties
surrounding the obligation.
Contingent Liabilities are disc losed when there is a possible oblig ation wh ich may arise from past
events and the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncer tain future even ts not wholly within the control of the Company or  a present obligation that
arises from past events wh ere it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle th e obligation or reliable estimate of  the amount cannot be made.

3.14  Borrowing Cost
Interest and other borrowing costs attributable to qualifying  assets are capitalised. Other Interest and
Operational Borrowing Costs are recognised as Revenue Expenditure in the year in which these are
incurred  and are charg ed to Profit and Loss.

3.15  Taxes on Income
Taxes on in come comprises of cur rent taxes and deferred taxes. Current Tax in the statement of  profit and
loss is determined as the amount of income-tax  payable/recoverable in respect of the taxab le income
for the current period usin g tax rates and tax laws enacted during the period, together with any adjustment
to tax payable in respect of previou s years.
Deferred Tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities
and the co rresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxab le profit.
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Deferred Tax Assets are rec ognised subject to the consideration of prudence only to the extent that there
is reasonable cer tainty that sufficient futu re taxable income wi ll be available again st wh ich such
deferred  tax assets can be realised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition o f assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor  the accounting  profit.

Deferred tax liabilities an d assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (an d tax laws) that have been
enacted o r substantively enacted by the en d of the repor tin g period.
Current and deferred tax are recognised in pro fit or loss, exc ept when they relate to i tems that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which  case, the current and deferred
tax are also recognised in other comprehen sive income or d irectly in equity net of tax respectively.

4.   First-time adoption of Ind AS
Transition to Ind AS
These are the Company’s first financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS. The date of Transition
to Ind AS is 1st April , 2016.
The accounting policies set out above have been applied in preparing the financial statements for the year ended
31st March , 2018, comparative inf ormation presen ted in these financ ial statemen ts for the year  ended
31st March, 2017 and in the preparation of an opening Ind AS Balance Sheet at 1st April, 2016 (date of transition).
In preparing its opening  Ind AS Balance Sheet, th e Compan y has ad justed th e amounts repor ted previously
in f inancial statements prepared in  accordance with th e accounting  standards no tified  under  Companies
(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amen ded) and other relevant provisions of the Act (previous GAAP
or Indian GAAP).

Exemptions and Exceptions availed
Set out below are the appl icable Ind AS 101 optional exemptions and mandatory exceptions applied in the
transition  from previous GAAP to Ind AS.

Ind AS Optional Exemptions
4.1 Deemed cost
Ind AS 101 permits a first-time adopter to elect to continue with the carrying value for all of its proper ty,
plant an d equipment as recognised in  the financial statements as at the date of  transition to  Ind AS,
measured as per the previous GAAP and use that as its deemed cost as at the date of transition. This
exemption  can also be used for Intangible Assets covered by In d AS 38 .
According ly, the Company h as elected to measure all of its p roper ty, plant an d equipment and intangible
assets at th eir previous GAAP carrying value. The Company does no t have any de-c ommissioning
liabiliti es as on the date of transition and accordingly n o adjustments have been made for the same.

4.2 Measurement of Investment in Associate
Ind  AS 101 allows a fir st time adop ter to measure in vestment in associate at cost determined  in
accordanc e with Ind AS 27 or at deemed cost i.e., fair value of such investmen ts at the entity’s date of
transition or previous GAAP carrying amou nt at the date of  transition. Acc ordingly, the Company has
elected to apply this exemption and have adopted previous GAAP carrying amount of such in vestments
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at the company’s date of transition as carrying amount of  investment in Associate.
Ind AS Mandatory Exceptions
4.3 Estimates
An entity’s estimates in ac cordance with Ind AS at the date of transition to Ind AS shall be consistent with
estimates made for the same date in accordance with previous GAAP (after adjustments to reflect any
diff erence in ac counting pol icies), unless there is objective evidence that those estimates were in
erro r. Ind AS estimates as at 1st April, 2016 are consistent wi th the estimates as at the same date made
in conformity with previous GAAP.

4.4 Classification and Measurement of Financial Assets
The Company under took an assessment of classification and measurement of financial assets on the
basis of the facts and circumstances that exist at the date of transition to Ind AS as required by Ind AS 101.

5. Notes to First-time Adoption
5.1 Replanting Cost
Under th e previous GAAP,  replanting cost was charged of f to profit and loss account as and when
incurred.  Under Ind AS, su ch cost is being  recognised as Bearer Plant within  the meaning of Ind AS 16
“Proper ty, Plant and Equipment”.

5.2  Depreciation on Bearer Plants
Under Ind  AS, since bearer  plants come within the ambit of Ind AS 16 “Proper ty, Plant and Equipment”,
depreciation is being provided on bearer  plants.

5.3  Fair valuation of Investments
Under the previous GAAP, investments in equity instruments were classified  as long-term in vestments
based on the intended hold ing period and realisability. Long -term investments were carried at cost less
provision f or oth er than  temporary dec line in  the value of  such investments. Un der In d AS, these
investmen ts are required to be measured at fair value , exc ept for Investmen ts in associates for which
exemption with regard to carrying amount of  such investments at the entity’s date of transition as
deemed cost is adopted.

5.4  Inventories
Finished Goods :
Under previous GAAP, tea stock has been valued at the lower  of cost and net realisable value. Cost of
inventories comprise all costs of produc tion of  green leaf, costs of conversion and other c osts incurred
in bringing the inventories to their present location and c ondition.
Under Ind AS, cost of inventories comprise fai r value of green leaf at the time of  harvest less cost to sell,
conversion cost (i.e 40 % of factory cost) and other costs in curred in bringin g the inventories to their
present location and condition.

5.5  Borrowings
Ind AS 109 requires transaction costs incu rred towards origination of borrowings to be dedu cted from
the carrying amount of borrowings on ini tial recognition. These costs are recognised in the profit or loss
over the tenure of the bor rowing as par t of  the interest expense by applying the effective interest rate
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method. Under previous GAAP, these transaction costs were charged to profit or loss as and when
incurred.

5.6  Remeasurements of post employment benefit obligations
Under Ind  AS, remeasuremen ts i.e. actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets, excluding
amounts included in the net interest expense on the net defin ed benefit liabili ty are recognised  in other
comprehensive income instead of profit or loss.

5.7  Retained Earnings
Retained earnings as at 1st April, 2016, the transition date,   has been adjusted consequent to the above Ind
AS tran sition adjustments.

5.8  Other Comprehensive Income
Under Ind AS, all items of income and expense recognised in a period should be included in profit or loss
for the period, unless a Standard requires or permits otherwise, Items of in come and expense that are
not recog nised in profit or  loss but are shown in the statemen t of profit and loss as ‘other comp rehensive
income’ includes remeasurements of defined benefit plans and fair value gains or (losses) on investments
in equity instruments. Th e concept of oth er comprehensive income did not exist under previous GAAP.

6. Financial Instruments and Related Disclosures
Capital Management
The Compan y’s ob jective is to  have a stron g capi tal base in order to maximise the shareholders’ wealth
an d to  ensure the con tinu ity of the business from its internal resourc es and i f found nec essary, from a
judicious u se of borrowing facili ties to fund requirements during the peak season of  working capi tal as well
as requirements for a compreh ensive growth of th e Company.

7. Financial risk management objectives
The Company’s faces a variety of financial risks, including market risk, credit r isk and liquidity risk. The
Company continues to foc us on business risk management.  The Company management seeks to enable
the early identification, evaluation and effective management of key risks facin g the business. Th e Company
has stron g internal control  systems resting on policies and p rocedures issued by appropriate authorities,
process o f regular audits and monitoring of risks.

a) Market risk
The Company’s business, p rimarily agricul tural in nature,  future cash flows will fluctuate because
of adverse weather conditions and lack of future markets. The Company closely monitors the changes
in market conditions and select the sales strategies to mitigate its exposure to risk.

b) Foreign currency risk
The Company under takes transactions den ominated in foreign currency wh ich results in exchange
rate fluctuations. Such exchange rate risk primarily arises from transactions made in foreign exchange.
A significant por tion of these transactions are in US Dollar and Euro.

c) Foreign currency sensitivity
The impac t of sensitivity analysis arisin g on account of outstanding foreign currency den ominated
assets and liabiliti es is insigni ficant.
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d) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk refers to  the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of chan ges in market interest rates. The objective of the Company is to lessen the
impact o f adverse interest rate movements on its earning s and cash flows and to minimise counter
par ty risks.

The Company is exposed to interest rate volatilities primarily with respect to its shor t terms borrowings
from ban ks as well as Financial Insti tutions.
The Compan y manages such risk by proper leverag e of its internal resources.

e) Interest rate sensitivity
Since the borrowings are all shor t term in nature, the possible volatility in the interest rate is  minimal.

f) Liquid ity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Compan y may encounter d ifficulty including seasonality in meeting
its oblig ations. The Company mitigates its liquidity risks by ensuring timely collections of its trade
receivables, close monito ring of its credi t cycle and ensu ring optimal movements of its inventories.

g) Cred it risk
Credit risk is the risk that counter par ty w ill not meet its obligations leadin g to a financial loss. The
Company has its pol icies to  limit i ts exposure to credit risk ar isin g from outstanding receivables.
Managemen t regularly assess the credit qu ality of its customers. The cred it risk of the C ompany is
relatively low as the Company also sells largely its teas through the auction system which is on cash
and carry basis and through expor ts which are mostly backed by letter or credit or on advance  basis.

8. Fair value measurements
Fair value hierarchy
Fair value of the financ ial instruments is classified in various fair value hierarchies based on the f ollowing
three levels:

Level 1: Quoted prices in active market for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2: Inputs other than quoted price includ ing within level  1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly ( i.e. derived from prices).
The fair value of fin ancial instruments that are n ot traded in an active market is d etermined using
valuation  techniques which  maximize the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on
entity-specific estimates. If significant in puts required to fair value an instrument are observable, the
instrumen t is included in  Level 2.
Level 3: Inputs for the assets o r liabilities that are not based on observable market data . If on e or more
of th e signific ant inputs is not based on observable market data,  the fair value is determined using
generally accepted pricing  models based on  a discounted cash flow analysis, with the most significant
input being the discount rate that reflects the credit risk o f counterpar ty. Th is is the case wi th listed
instrumen ts where market is not liquid and  for unlisted instruments.
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The manag ement consider that the carrying  amounts of finan cial assets (oth er than those measured at
fair  values) and  liabil ities recogn ised in  the f inancial statements approximate their fair value as on
March 31, 2018, March 31, 2017 and April 1, 2016.

There has been no change in the valuation methodology for Level 3 inputs du ring the year. There were
no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during  the year.

9 Un der the Assam Fixation o f Ceiling o f Land Holding Act, 1956, u ndeveloped lands,app roximately
2145 hec tares (Previous Year - 2145 hectares) have been vested in the State Government.Necessary
adjustments in respect of land compensation will be made in the accounts on settlement of the same.

Curren t Year Previou s Year
` `

10 Estimated amount of contracts remaining to
be execu ted on Capital Account and not provided
for (Net o f Advance) 36.01 24.00

11 Contingent Liabilities
(a) Claims n ot acknowledged  as debt 1.50 1.50
(b) Ban k Guarantees — 24.39
(c) Sales Tax Demands in d ispute (under Appeals) 98.19 98.19

Cash outf lows, if any, in  respect of the above is not determinable at this stage.

12 Unpaid D isputed Statutory Dues in respect of
(a) Income-tax

Forum : Deputy Commissioner of In come-Tax 33.53 33.53
Commissioner of Income-tax (Appeals) 25.07 25.07

(b) Sales tax
Forum : Deputy Commissioner of Taxes (Appeals) 68.16 68.16

Commissioner of Taxes 5.86 5.86
Gauhati High Cour t 17.60 17.60

(c) Land Revenue
Forum : Addition al Deputy Commissioner 28.33 28.33

13 Loans and Advances to Employees include
(i) Amounts du e by a Director of the Company

(a) On Long-Term 4.84 6.93
(b) On Sh or t-Term 2.09 1.94

(Advanced  to an employee since elevated as a Director)
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Curren t Year Previou s Year
` `

(i i) Amounts du e by an Officer of the Company
(a) On Long-Term — 0.44
(b) On Sh or t-Term 0.44 0.48

14 There are no outstandin g dues of micro and small enterprises
based on  informationavai lable with the Company.

15 Expenditu re incurred on C orporate Social Responsibility activities
(a) Gross Amount requi red to be spen t by the

   Company during the year — 33.48
(b) Amou nt spent during the year — —

16 Amounts paid/payable to Auditors
Statutory Auditors

(a) Statutory Audit Fees 9.00 10.35
(b) Tax Audit Fees 1.00 1.16
(c) Limited Review & Other Matters 2.84 2.87
(d) Out of Pocket Expenses 0.29 0.24

17 Consumption of Stores an d Spares % %
Indigenous 1427.27 99 1256.93 100
Impo r ted 9.01 1 — —

1436.28 100 1256.93 100
18 Earnings in Foreign Exchange

Expor ts on F.O.B. basis 496.07 956.97

19 Expenditure in Foreign Currency
(a)  Subscription and Other Charges 1.68 1.88
(b)  Pension 1.37 1.48
(c)  Travelling 12.33 21.08

20 Post Employment Defined Benefit Plans

The Company operates defined Benefit Schemes like Gratuity, Superannuation, Pension  and Add itional
Retiral Benefi t Plans based on c urrent salaries  in accordance with  the Rules of the Funds/Plans.

In terms of Accounting Policies enumerated in Note 30 the following Table sets for th the par ticulars in
respect o f Defined Benefi t Plans of the C ompany for the year ended 31st March, 2018 arising out of
actu arial valuations:
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A) Funded  Plans

I) Changes in Present Value of Obligation                                     Funded Plans
Gratui ty Superannuation

2017-18 2016-17 2017-18 2016-17

Present Value of Obligation as on
last valuation 2853.91 2427.95 805.21 661.62

Current Service Cost 136.06 148.76 79.95 77.34
Past Service Cost — — — —
Interest Cost 212.17 172.27 58.04 49.62
Vested Por tion at the end of  the year

(Past Service) 22.37                 — — —
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations

due to change in Financial Assumption (650.93) 115.11 (34.51) 10.22
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations

due to unexpec ted Experience 450.07 251.90 (14.79) 6.41
Benefits paid (203.85) (262.08) (82.95)              —
Present Value of Obligation as on

valu ation date 2819.80 2853.91 810.95 805.21

      II) Changes in Fair Value of Plan Asset
Fair value of Plan Assets at the

beginning o f the year 2373.67 1955.31 827.44 706.84
Interest In come 183.01 146.64 62.88 63.61
Return on Plan Asset excluding

Interest In come 49.04 61.16 (13.23) 22.93
Actuarial  Gains/(Losses) — — —              —
Contributions 480.22 472.64 34.36 34.06
Benefits paid (203.85) (262.08)           (82.95)            —
Fair value of Plan Assets at the

end of the measurement period 2882.09 2373.67 828.50 827.44

    III) Reconciliation to Balance Sheet
Funded Status

Fund Asset 2882.09 2373.67 828.50 827.44
Fund Liability 2819.80 2853.91 810.95 805.21

(62.29) 480.24 (17.55) (22.23)
IV) Plan Assumptions

Discount Rate (%) 7.71 7.50 7.60 7.50
Expected Return on Plan Asset (%) 7.71 7.50 7.60 9.00
Rate of Compensation Increase

(Salary Inf lation) (%) 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00
Average Expected Future Service

(Remaining w orking life) 21,12,2 18,9,3 10, 8, 2 10, 8, 2
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Funded  Plans

Gratui ty Superannuation
2017-18 2016-17 2017-18 2016-17

Mor tality Table IALM IALM IALM IALM
2006-2008 2006-2008 2009-2008 2009-2008

Ul timate Ultimate
Superannuation at age -

Male / Female 58,60,62 58,60,62 58,60,62 58,60,62
Early Retirement and  Disablement

(All Causes C ombined) (%) 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Above ag e 45 (%) 0.06 0.06
Between 29 to 45 (%) 0.03 0.03
Below ag e 29 (%) 0.01 0.01
Volun tary Retir ement Ignored Ignored

V) Expenses recognised in the Statement
of Profit and Loss

Current Service Cost 136.06 148.76 79.95 77.34
Past Service Cost (vested) 22.37 — — —
Net Interest Cost 29.17 25.62 (4.84) (13.99)
Benefit Cost (Expense recognised

in Statement of Profit and Loss) 187.60 174.38 75.11 63.35
VI) Other Comprehensive Income

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on
Obligations due to ch ange in
Financial Assumption (650.93) 115.11 (34.51) 10.22

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on
Obligations due to unexpected
Experience 450.07 251.90 (14.79) 6.41

Total  Actuarial  (Gains)/Losses (200.86) 367.01 (49.30) 16.63
Return on Plan Asset excluding

Interest In come 49.04 61.16 (13.24) 22.93
Balance at the end of the year (249.90) 305.85 (36.06) (6.30)
Net (In come)/Expense for the

period recog nised in OCI (249.90) 305.85 (36.06) (6.30)
VII) Alloc ation of Plan Asset at end of measurement period

Cash and Cash  Equivalents 175.11       34.44 92.94     104.12
Special Deposit Scheme 105.20 105.20 53.06 53.06
State Government Securi ties 90.15 100.77 30.51 30.58
Government of India Assets 204.84 209.63 66.25 66.00
Corporate Bonds 1042.35 1232.09 256.97 257.17
Debt Securi ties 43.49 — — —
Annuity Contracts/Insurance Fund 697.35 652.72 301.98 280.66
Other Assets 523.61 38.83 26.79 35.85

2882.10 2373.68 828.50 827.44
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Funded Plans

Gratuity Superannuation
2017-18 2016-17 2017-18 2016-17

VIII) Allocation in % of Plan Asset at
end of  measurement period

Cash and Cash Equivalents 6.08        1.45              11.22       12.58
Special Deposit Scheme  3.65        4.43                6.40        6.41
State Government Securities 3.13        4.25                3.68        3.70
Government of India Assets 7.09        8.82                8.00        7.98
Corporate Bonds 36.17       51.91              31.02       31.08
Debt Securities 1.51 — — —
Annuity Contracts/Insurance Fund 24.20       27.50              36.45       33.92
Other Assets 18.17        1.64                3.23        4.33

100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00
IX) Mor tality Table

Age Mor tality Mor tality
(per annum) (per annum)

25 0.000984 0.000984
30 0.001056 0.001056
35 0.001282 0.001282
40 0.001803 0.001803
45 0.002874 0.002874
50 0.004946 0.004946
55 0.007888 0.007888
60 0.011534 0.011534
65 0.017009 0.017009
70 0.025855 0.025855

X) Sensitivity Analysis
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

Impact for change in Discount Rate ( -/+0.5% ) 2400.44 2652.15 2737.67 3170.21 794.97 825.95 790.72 820.48
% change Compared to base due to sensitivity - 4.79% 5.19% 2.78% 19.02% - 1.97% 1.85% -1.80% 1.90%
Impact for change in Salary growth (-/+ 0.5%) 2653.97 2397.86 2981.43 2735.34 824.66 797.81 820.30 790.86
% change Compared to base due to sensitivity 5.27% - 4.89% 11.93% 2.69% 1.69% -1.62% 1.88% -1.78%
Impact for change in Attrition growth (-/+ 0.5%) 2525.72 2516.64 2846.51 2816.34 810.79 811.11 803.92 806.49
% change Compared to base due to sensitivity 0.18% - 0.18% 6.87% 5.74% 0.02% - 0.02% - 0.16% 0.16%
Impact for change in Mortality Rate (-/+ 10%) 2540.52 2501.84 2818.21 2770.49 810.39 811.51 804.83 805.58
% change Compared to base due to sensitivity 0.77% - 0.77% 5.81% 4.01% - 0.07% 0.07% - 0.05% 0.05%

XI) Estimated Future payments of Benefits ( Past Service )

Year
1 471.56 169.08
2 112.01 75.37
3 237.58 53.74
4 183.96 55.08
5 218.55 35.43

6  to 10 1277.35 193.43
More than 10 years 4647.01 545.84

Total Undiscounted Payments related to Past Service 7148.03 1127.97
Less Discount for Interest 4328.23 317.02

Projected Benefit Obligation 2819.80 810.95
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                                                                                                                       Funded Plans
Gratui ty   Superannuation

2017-18 2016-17 2017-18 2016-17

XII) Outlook for Net Periodic Benefit Cost Next Year
Current Service Cost (Employer por tion only)

Next p eriod 141.31
Interest Cost next period 176.20

Expected  Return on Plan Asset 222.21
Benefi t Cost 95.31

XIII) Bif urcation of Net Liability
Current L iability 465.25 561.03 162.99 150.29
Non-Current Liability 2354.55 2292.87 647.96 654.92

Net Liabil ity 2819.80 2853.90 810.95 805.21

B) Unfunded Plans

      I)  Changes in Present Value of Ob ligation
Unfunded Plans

Additional
Pension Reti ral Ben efit

Present Value of Obligation as on last valuation 1169.02 1153.44 64.66 64.64
Current Service Cost 31.47 65.80 3.81 4.10
Past Service Cost — — — —
Interest Cost 88.77 85.40 4.61 4.85
Vested Por tion at the end of the year (Past Service) — — 11.21 —
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations

due to change in Financial Assumption (159.72) 42.68 (5.82) (2.25)
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations due

to unexpected Experience (40.16) (148.83) (6.31) (6.68)
Benefits paid (35.23) (29.47) 8.11 —

Present Value of Obligation as on valuation date 1054.15 1169.02 64.04 64.66

    II) Reconciliation to Balance Sheet

Funded Status
Fund Asset — — — —
Fund Liability 1054.15 1169.02 64.04 64.66
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                                                                              Unfu nded Plans
Additional

Pension Reti ral Ben efit
2017-18 2016-17 2017-18 2016-17

III) Plan Assump tions
Discoun t Rate (%) 7.71 7.50 7.60 7.50
Rate of Compensation Increase

(Salary In flation) (%) 1.50 5.00 5.00 5.00
Average Expected Future Service

(Remaining w orking life) 11 8 12,9,2 12,9,3

Mor tality Table IALM 2009- IALM 2009- IALM IALM
2008 Ul timate2008 Ultimate 2006,2008 2006,2008

Superannuation at age - Male / Female 60 60 58,60,62 58,60,62
Early Retirement and  Disablement

(All Causes Combined) (%) 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Above age 45 (%) 0.06 0.06
Between 29 to 45 (%) 0.03 0.03
Below age 29 (%) 0.01 0.01
Volun tary Retir ement Ignored Ignored

    V) Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Current Service Cost 31.47 65.80 3.81 4.10
Past Service Cost (vested) — —     11.21 —
Net Interest Cost 88.77 85.40 4.61 4.85

Benefit Cost ( Expense recognised in Statement
of Profit and Loss ) 120.24 151.20 19.63 8.95

VI) Other Comprehensive Income

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations due
to change in Financial Assumption (159.72) 42.68 (5.82) (2.25)

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations due
to unexpected Experience (40.16) (148.83) (6.31) (6.68)

Total Ac tuarial (Gains) / Losses (199.88) (106.15) (12.13) (8.93)
Return on Plan Asset excluding Interest Income
Balance at the end of the year (199.88) (106.15) (12.13) (8.93)
Net (Income) / Expense for the period

recognised in OCI (199.88) (106.15) (12.13) (8.93)
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                                                                              Unfunded Plans

Pens ion Additional Retiral Benefit
2017-18 2016-17 2017-18 2016-17

VII) Mor ta lity Table
Age Mor tality Mor tality

(per annum) (per annum)
25 0.000984 0.000984
30 0.001056 0.001056
35 0.001282 0.001282
40 0.001803 0.001803
45 0.002874 0.002874
50 0.004946 0.004946
55 0.007888 0.007888
60 0.011534 0.011534
65 0.017009 0.017009
70 0.025855 0.025855

VIII) Sensitivity Analysis Current Year            Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

Impact for change in Discount Rate ( -/+0.5% ) 1033.75 1075.52 1137.81 1201.76 60.08 62.50 63.50 65.90
% change Compared to base due to sensitivity - 1.94 % 2.03 % - 2.67 % 2.80 % (1.92) 2.04 (1.80) 1.92
Impact for change in Salary growth (-/+0.5%) 1075.84 1033.27 1202.11 1137.11 62.41 60.16 65.79 63.48
% change Compared to base due to sensitivity 2.06 % - 1.98 % 2.83 % - 2.73 % 1.88 (1.78) 1.74 (1.83)
Impact for change in Attrition growth (-/+0.5%) 1054.60 1053.71 1169.73 1168.32 61.29 61.22 64.71 64.61
% change Compared to base due to sensitivity 0.04 % - 0.04 % 0.06 % - 0.06 % 0.06 (0.06) 0.08 (0.08)
Impact for change in Mortality Rate (-/+10%) 1058.17 1050.14 1175.11 1162.95 61.45 61.05 64.86 64.47
% change Compared to base due to sensitivity 0.38 % - 0.38 % 0.52 % - 0.52 % 0.32 (0.32) 0.30 (0.30)

IX) Est imated Future payments of Benefits (Past S ervice)
Year
1 67.25 28.04
2 53.09 6.84
3 59.33 10.92
4 62.55 4.19
5 66.21 3.26

6 to 10 414.32 12.75
More than 10 years 1824.43 30.33

  Total  Undiscounted Payments rel ated to Past Service 2547.18 96.33
Less Di scount for I nterest 1493.03 32.28
Projected Benefit Obl igation 1054.15 64.04

X) Outl ook for Net Periodic Benefit Cost Next Year
Particulars

Current Service Cost (  Employer por t ion only) Next period 2.73
Interes t Cost next period 3.59
Expected Return on Plan Asset —
Benefi t Cost 6.32

XI) Bifurcation of Net Liability
Current Liability 64.80 97.71 27.13 28.34
Non Current Liability 989.35 1071.32 36.91 36.32
Net Liability 1054.15 1169.03 64.04 64.66
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Note 30 (Contin ued)                                                                                                                    (` in Lakhs)

Curren t Year Previou s Year
21 Basic and  Diluted Earnings Per Share

Number of  Equity Shares at the beginning of  the year 11950804 11950804
Number o f Equity Shares at the end of the year 11950804 11950804
Weighted average number of  Equity Shares ou tstanding

during the year 11950804 11950804
Face valu e of each Equity Share (`) 10 10
Profit af ter tax available for distribution to the Equity Shareholders (838.11) (1071.73)
Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share (`) (7.01) (8.97)
Dilutive Potential Equity Shares Not App licable    Not Applicable

22 Related Par ty Disclosu res
(i) Names and Relationship

          Relationship                              Name
Assoc iate Maple Hotels & Resor ts Limited
Significant Influence by Key Management Personnel Warren Industrial Limited

Sec tra Plaza Private Limi ted
Softweb Technologies Private Limited

Key Manag ement Person nel Mr. Vinay K. Goenka (C hairman)
Mr. S. K.  Ghosh (Managing Director)
Mr. S. Roy (Company Secretary)
Mr. S. K. Mukhopadhyay (Chief

 Financial  Officer)
Relative of a Key Management Personnel Mr. Vivek Goenka

Post Employment Benef it Plan Warren Staff Provident Fund
Warren Tea Gratuity Fund
Warren In dustrial & Associated Co’s

Superannuation Fund
(i i)  Par ticu lars of Transactions and year-end  balances

Names and Relationship    ` `
Significant Influence by Key Management Personnel

Receiving o f Services
Sec tra Plaza Private Limi ted 7.28 7.28
Softweb Technologies Private Limited 31.66                    35.62

Key Manag ement Personnel & Relative
Remuneration

Mr. Vinay K. Goenka 151.99 130.34
Mr. S. K. Ghosh 129.86 110.91
Mr. S. Roy 27.55 29.99
Mr. S. K. Mukhopadhyay 25.14 21.61
Mr. Vivek Goenka 23.45 24.43

Compensation of Key Management Personnel & Relative
Shor t Term Employee Benefits 305.66 292.94
Post Employee Benefits 39.40 18.50
Other Long Term Benefits 12.93 5.84
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Note 30 (Contin ued)                                                                                                                    (` in Lakhs)

Curren t Year Previou s Year

 (ii)Par ticulars of Transactions and year-end balances

Names and Relationship ` `

Balanc e at the year-end
Assoc iate

In vestmen ts
Maple Hotels & Resor ts Limited 3146.98 3146.98

Significant Influence by Key Management Personnel
Security Deposit

Sec tra Plaza Private Limi ted 430.80 430.80
Current Liabilities

Sec tra Plaza Private Limi ted 4.32 —
Softweb Technologies Private Limited 7.97 2.59

Key Manag ement Person nel
Current Liabilities

Mr. Vinay K. Goenka 43.20 40.20
Mr. S. K. Ghosh 32.40 30.00

Advanc es
Mr. S. K. Ghosh 6.93 8.87
Mr. S. Roy 0.44 0.92

23 Segment In formation
(i) The Company is engaged in the integrated process of growing, harvesting, manufacturing and sale of

Black Tea during the year and has iden tified one operating segment i .e, Tea.
(i i) Geographical Information

Domestic Expor ts Total
Revenue from External C ustomers 11366.18 479.21 11845.39

(9924.38) (953.88) (10878.26)

Non-Curren t Assets* 8830.03 — 8830.03
(8435.70)                          — (8435.70)

* Non-Current Assets excludes Financial Assets, Deferred Tax Assets and Post Employment Benefit Assets.

Figures o f Previous Year are indicated in Italics within brackets “(  )”

(ii i)The Company has entered into transactions with a single external customer exceeding 10% of the
Turnover of the Company.
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Note 30 (Contin ued)                                                                                                                    (` in Lakhs)

24 Movements in Deferred Tax Assets /( Liabilities)
                                                                       Recogni sed in

Balance  as at Other Balance  as at
1st Apri l, 2017 Profit & Loss Comprehensive 31st March, 2018

Income

Deferred Tax Liabilities
on financial allowances on Proper ty,

Plant & Equipment ( 808.07) (28.73) — ( 836.80)
On Capi tal Work in P rogress ( 349.65) (43.94) — ( 393.59)

(1157.72) (72.67) — (1230.39)

Deferred Tax Assets
Business Loss 873.01 404.58 ( 147.45) 1130.14
Provisi on for doubtful debts 2.04 (0.13) — 1.91
Change in value of inventory 12.51 (12.51) — —
Expenses  allowable on payment 147.55 (29.28) — 118.27
Change i n value of Inv estment 4.49 — (15.78) (11.29)
Other timing difference 3.22 (1.33) — 1.89

1042.82 361.33 ( 163.23) 1240.92

Deferred Tax Assets/ (Liabilities) (Net) ( 114.90) 288.66 ( 163.23) 10.53

                                                                      Recognised in
Balance  as at Other Balance  as at

1st Apri l, 2016 Profit & Loss Comprehensive 31st March, 2017
Income

Deferred Tax Liabilities
on financial allowances on Proper ty,

Plant & Equipment ( 693.45) ( 114.62) — ( 808.07)
On Capi tal Work in P rogress ( 273.26) (76.39) — ( 349.65)

( 966.71) ( 191.01) — (1157.72)

Deferred Tax Assets
Business Loss — 815.80 57.21 873.01
Provisi on for doubtful debts 2.04 — — 2.04
Change in value of inventory 37.77 (25.26) — 12.51
Expenses  allowable on payment 3.51 144.04 — 147.55
Change i n value of Inv estment 3.97 — 0.52 4.49
Other timing difference 4.78 (1.56) — 3.22

52.07 933.02 57.73 1042.82

Deferred Tax Assets /(Liabilities)(Net) ( 914.64) 742.01 57.73 ( 114.90)
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Note 30 (Continued)  (` in Lakhs)

25. Reconc iliation of Effective Tax Rate
As at As at

31st March, 2018 31st March, 2017

Profit before Tax (1077.90) (2370.27)
Income Tax Expense at 28.30%

(Previous Year - 30.36%) (305.04) (719.61)

Impac ts on
Exempt Income 1.77 23.38
Items no t deductible in Taxes (1.19) (0.17)
Deduction available in Taxes 2.45 6.41
Oth er Items 13.34 (52.01)

Income Tax recognised in Profi t and Loss (288.66) (742.01)

26. Statement containing Financial Information of Associate :

Share in Share in Other Total
Net Assets Profit or Loss Comprehensive Income Comprehensive Income

As % of As % of
Consolidated Consolidated

As % of As % of Other Total
   Sl Consolidated Consolidated Comprehensive Comprehensive
   No  Name of the Entity Net Assets Amount Profit or Loss Amount Income Amount Income Amount

1 Parent
Warren Tea Limited 91.87 9570.12 94.17 (789.24) 97.72 374.64 91.18 (414.60)

[91.84] [9984.72] [151.93] [(1628.26)] [101.70] [(131.91)] [146.51] [(1760.17)]
2 Associate

Maple Hotels &
Resor ts Limited 8.13 846.73 5.83 (48.87) 2.28 8.76 8.82 (40.11)

[8.16] [886.84] [-51.93] [556.53] [-1.70] [2.21] [-46.51] [558.74]

Total 100.00 10416.85 100.00 (838.11) 100.00 383.40 100.00 (454.71)
[100.00] [10871.56] [100.00] [(1071.73)] [100.00] [(129.70)] [100.00] [(1201.43)]

Figures o f Previous Year are indicated in italics within brackets “[  ]”

27 (i) Catego ries of Financial Instruments
Par ticulars As at 31.3.2018 As at 31.3.2017 As at 01.04.2016

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Value Value Value Value Value Value

Fin ancial Assets
Measu red at amor tised  cost

Cash and Cash  Equivalents 8.65 8.65 10.21 10.21 1420.41 1420.41
Other  Bank Balances 1.19 1.19 1.19 1.19 1.19 1.19
Loans 624.67 624.67 629.95 629.95 631.95 631.95
Trade Rec eivab les 3953.57 3953.57 4606.41 4606.41 3660.58 3660.58
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Note 30 (Continued)  (` in Lakhs)

27 (i) Catego ries of Financial Instruments
Par ticulars As at 31.3.2018 As at 31.3.2017 As at 01.04.2016

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Value Value Value Value Value Value

Oth er Financial Assets 6.86 6.86 205.69 205.69 844.63 844.63
4594.94 4594.94 5453.45 5453.45 6558.76 6558.76

Measured  at Fair value through
Other C omprehensive Income

Equity Shares 168.36 168.36 133.46 133.46 165.49 165.49

Total Fin ancial Assets* 4763.30 4763.30 5586.91 5586.91 6724.25 6724.25

Fin ancial Liabilities
Measu red at amor tised  cost

Borrowings 3334.90 3334.90 2570.56 2570.56 1030.82 1030.82
Trade Payab les 1451.15 1451.15 1314.66 1314.66 1049.00 1049.00
Other f inancial Liab ilities 910.32 910.32 1385.02 1385.02 1431.57 1431.57

Total  Financial Liabil ities 5696.37 5696.37 5270.24 5270.24 3511.39 3511.39
* excludes investments in  Associates measured using Equity Method

(i i) Fair Valu e Hierarchy of Assets and Liabilities measured at Fair  Value on a recurr ing basis
Fai r Value Fair  Value as at

Par ticulars Hierarc hy 31st March, 31st March, 1st April,
Level 2018 2017 2016

Fin ancial Assets
Equity Shares 1 1.31 6.10 32.13
Equity Shares 3 167.05 127.36 133.36

(ii i)Fair valu e measurements for  biological assets other than bearer plants:
2 161.60 69.19 67.07

Fair value is being arrived at based on  the observable market prices o f made tea adju sted for
manufacturing costs.

28. First time Ind-AS adoption reconcil iations:
(i) Reconciliation of equity as repor ted under previous GAAP

Par ticulars As at As at
31st March, 2017 1st April, 2016

(Date of Transition)
Total Equ ity ( Shareholders’ Funds)

under previous GAAP 11413.65 12419.07
Adjustments for

Investments in shares (14.80) (13.08)
Loans to Employees (10.59) (15.74)
Value of  Inventory of b lack tea (83.19) (124.41)
Value o f Biological  Assets 69.19 67.07
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Note 30 (Continued)

Par ticulars As at As at
31st March, 2017 1st April, 2016

(Date of Transition)

Replantin g Subsidy (81.42) —
Bearer Plan ts — 2635.08
Revaluation Reserve — (1879.62)

Tax Effect on above Adjustments (424.51) (1018.76)
Adjustmen t of Equity in Associate 3.23 3.38
Total Equity under Ind AS 10871.56 12072.99

(ii) Reconcilliation of Total Comprehensive Income
    Par ticulars For the year ended

31st March, 2017
Profit /  (Loss) after Tax as per previous GAAP (957.99)
Adjustments

Change in Value of Inventory of  Black Tea 41.22
Recognition of Biological Assets 2.12
Valuation of Investments in Shares at Fair Value (1.72)
Reclassification of Replanting Subsidy as Deferred Income (81.42)
Valuation of Loans to Employees at Fair Value 5.15

Tax effect on above adjustments (208.64)
Adjustmen t of Profit in Associate (0.15)
Total Comprehensive Income un der Ind AS (1201.43)

29. Figures of Previous Year  and as on Tran sition Date have been regrouped  or rearranged, wherever
nec essary.

                         Sig natures to Note Nos. 1 to 30

B M Chatrath & Co LLP
Firm Registration Number - 301011E/E300025
Char tered Accountants
Sukhpreet S. Sidhu S. Roy Vinay K.  Goenka
Partner Company Secretary Ch airman
Membership Number - 052187 S. K. Mukhopadhyay S. K. Ghosh
Kolkata, 26th May, 2018 Chief Financial Officer Managing Director
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
for the year ended 31st March, 2018

Curren t Year Previou s Year

A. Cash Flow from operating activities

Profit /  (Loss) before Taxation (1077.90) (2370.27)
Adjustments for

Depreciation and Amor tisation 363.87 361.91
Finance Costs 374.76 232.20
Income from Interest and Dividends (4.20) (51.07)
Biological Assets oth er than Bearer  Plants (92.41) (2.12)
Provisions no longer required w ritten back (0.53) (13.20)
Net Gain on Sale of Current Investments —                       (1.60)
Net (Gain ) / Loss on Sale of Non-Current In vestments (0.30)                     (16.96)
Profit on D isposal of Proper ty,  Plant and

Equipmen t (Net) (1.64) (2.23)
Operatin g Profit before working capital  changes (438.35) (1863.34)
Adjustments for changes in

Trade and Other Receivables 775.77 (100.03)
Inventor ies 68.51 65.02
Trade Payables and Oth er Liabil ities (135.84) 72.39

Cash gen erated from operations 270.09 (1825.96)
Direct Taxes Paid (0.34) 76.59

Net Cash from operating activities (A) 269.75 (1749.37)

B. Cash Flow from investing activities

Purchase of  Proper ty, Plant and  Equipment (675.68) (995.14)
Payment of Capital Advances (23.71) (97.95)
Purchase of Current Investments — (5.01)
Sale of Non-current Investments 5.29  43.82
Sale of  Current Investments — 6.61
Sale of Proper ty, Plant and Equipment 1.75 2.23
Interest and Dividend Received 29.08 70.13
Net Cash  from / (used) in investing ac tivities (B) (663.27) (975.31)

C. Cash Flow from financing activities

Proceeds from Shor t-term Borrowings 3378.95  2655.95
Proceeds from Long-term Borrowings 500.10 999.90
Repayment of Long -term Borrowings (214.71) (116.11)
Repayment of Shor t -term Borrowings (2900.00) (2000.00)
Finance C osts Paid (372.38) (225.26)
Net Cash  from / (used) in financing ac tivities (C) 391.96 1314.48

Net increase / (decrease) in  Cash and
Cash Equ ivalents (A+B+C) (1.56) (1410.20)

(` in Lakhs)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (Continued)

( ̀  in Lakhs)

Curren t Year Previou s Year

     Cash and Cash Equ ivalents
Opening Balance

Cash and Cash Equivalents [Note 10] 10.21 1420.41

Closing Balance
Cash and Cash Equivalents [Note 10] 8.65 10.21

1. The above Consolidated Cash  Flow Statement has been prepared in accordance with Ind AS 7.

2. The Notes referred to above form an integral par t of the Consol idated Cash Flow Statement.

3. Previous year’s figures have been regrouped or rearran ged, wherever necessary.

As per our repor t of even date.

B M Chatrath & Co LLP
Firm Registration Number - 301011E/E300025
Char tered Accountants
Sukhpreet S. Sidhu S. Roy Vinay K.  Goenka
Partner Company Secretary Ch airman
Membership Number - 052187 S. K. Mukhopadhyay S. K. Ghosh
Kolkata, 26th May, 2018 Chief Financial Officer Managing Director
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Form AOC - 1

[Pursuant to first proviso  to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with
Rule 5  of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014]

Statement containing salient features of the
financial statement of Associate Companies

Part “B” : Associates
Statement pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013

related to Associated Companies

Name of Associate Maple Hotels & Resor ts Limited

1 Latest audited Balance Sheet Date 31st March, 2018

2 Date on which the Associate was associated 7th March, 2014

3 Shares of Associate held by the Company on the year end

Number 65,00,000
Amount o f Investment in  Associate (‘ in Lacs) 3146.98
Extent of Holding % 46.92%

4 Description of how there is significant influence Holding directly 20% or
more of the voting power

5 Reason w hy the associate is not consolidated Fin ancial Statements are
consolidated in accordance with

the applicable Accounting Standards

6 Networ th  attributable to Shareholdin g as per
latest audited Balance Sheet ( ` in Lacs) 3422.84

7 Loss for the year ( ` in Lacs) (104.17)

(i) Considered in Consolidation (48.87)

(ii) Not Considered in Consolidation (55.30)

S. Roy Vinay K.  Goenka
Company Secretary Ch airman

Ko lkata S. K. Mukhopadhyay S. K. Ghosh
26th May, 2018 Chief Financial Officer Managing Director


